
MEETING: Audit Committee
DATE: Wednesday, 11 September 2019
TIME: 4.00 pm
VENUE: Reception Room, Barnsley Town Hall

AGENDA

Procedural/Administrative Items

1.  Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interest  

2.  Minutes  (Pages 3 - 14)

To receive the minutes of the meeting held on the 22nd July, 2019.

Items for Discussion/Decision

3.  Risk Management Update  

The Head of Internal Audit and Corporate Anti-Fraud will provide an update on 
current Risk Management issues.

4.  Corporate Financial Performance Report - Quarter Ended 30th June, 2019  
(Pages 15 - 46)

The Executive Director Core Services and Service Director Finance will submit a 
joint report that was submitted to Cabinet on the 4th September, 2019 outlining the 
financial performance of the Authority during the first quarter ending 30th June, 
2019 and assessing the implications against the Council’s Medium Term 
Financial Strategy.

5.  Capital Programme Performance Report - Quarter Ended 30th June, 2019  
(Pages 47 - 76)

The Executive Director Core Services and Service Director Finance will submit a 
joint report that was submitted to Cabinet on the 4th September, 2019 on the 
financial performance of the Council’s Capital Programme to the end of the first 
quarter ending 30th June, 2019 and assessing the implications against the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy.

6.  Treasury Management Update - Quarter Ended 30th June, 2019  (Pages 77 - 86)

The Executive Director Core Services and Service Director Finance will submit a 
joint report that was submitted to Cabinet on the 4th September, 2019 reviewing 
the treasury management activities carried out by the Council during the quarter 
ended 30th June, 2019 in accordance with statutory guidance.

7.  Annual Audit Letter  (Pages 87 - 100)

The Council’s External Auditor (Grant Thornton) will submit their Annual Audit 
Letter summarising the key findings arising from the work undertaken for the 
Council and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31st March, 2019, detailing the 
reports issued to August 2019, the audit fees charged (including the way these 

Public Document Pack



have been calculated) and outlining the scope of the audit and outlining the 
arrangements for undertaking additional work for which separate fees were 
applicable. 

Items for Information

8.  Business Improvement, Human Resources and Communications Progress Report  
(Pages 101 - 132)

The Service Director Business Improvement, Human Resources and 
Communications will submit a report providing an overview of the functions of the 
Business Improvement, Human Resources and Communications Business Unit 
and related elements of the Annual Governance Statement process.  The Annual 
Customer Feedback report is provided as an Appendix to the report.

9.  Audit Committee Work Plan 2019/20 and 2020/21  (Pages 133 - 136)
The Committee will receive the indicative Audit Committee Work Plan for 2019/20 
and for indicative meetings for 2020/21.

To: Chair and Members of Audit Committee:-

Councillors Richardson (Chair), Barnard, P. Birkinshaw and Lofts; together with 
Independent members Ms K Armitage, Ms D Brown, Mr S Gill, Mr P Johnson and 
Mr M Marks

Diana Terris, Chief Executive
All Executive Directors
Andrew Frosdick, Executive Director Core Services
Rob Winter, Head of Internal Audit
Neil Copley, Service Director Finance (Section 151 Officer)
Ian Rooth, Head of Financial Services
Michael Potter, Service Director Business Improvement and Communications
Louise Booth, Audit Manager

Council Governance Unit – 3 copies

Please contact William Ward on email governance@barnsley.gov.uk

Tuesday, 3 September 2019



MEETING: Audit Committee
DATE: Monday, 22 July 2019
TIME: 4.00 pm
VENUE: Council Chamber - Barnsley Town Hall

1

MINUTES

Present Councillors Richardson (Chair), Barnard, P. Birkinshaw and Lofts 
together with Independent Members - Ms K Armitage, Mr P Johnson 
and Mr M Marks

8. DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY AND NON-PECUNIARY INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest from Members in respect of items on the 
agenda.

9. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on the 5th June, 2019 were taken as read and 
signed by the Chair as a correct record.

10. IT SERVICES - PRESENTATION 

The Head of IT (Service Management) made a presentation on the current and future 
work of her service.

Her presentation included:

 A ‘look back’ at 2018/19 with particular reference to the rise in the number of 
incidents reported, the work with the Data Protection Officer, his report and 
Internal Audit Assurance

 Current education and communications including E-learning programmes for 
staff and for Elected Members, the use of the weekly newsletter ‘Straight Talk’ 
as well as various other blogs and a recent phishing campaign

 Looking forward, the Service had purchased MetaCompliance software which 
was a policy management, awareness and training platform that ensured 
policies were understood and that employees were engaged.  It also 
automated, delivered and managed the education lifestyle.  

 The Committee also viewed a video which outlined the purpose of this 
software and how it would be used within the Council

 The benefits of this were as follows:
o It provided bite-sized education in different formats and at various 

intervals
o It was graphically engaging
o It provided knowledge assessments (or agreements)
o It increased knowledge of current threats and risks
o It could be used to target specific groups of users and avoid the current 

‘one size fits all’ approach
o It used intelligence to inform future training and communications

 Information was provided about the specific support to be provided to Elected 
Members and which had been developed alongside Leeds City Council.

Page 3

Item 2



2

In the ensuing discussion particular reference was made to the following:

 The outcome of a recent phishing campaign and the action taken to ensure 
that the small number of staff who had not identified this as a phishing attempt 
received additional training

 The reasons for the increase in the number of data breaches and the action 
taken to address these issues.  Arising out of this discussion, reference was 
made to the arrangements for reporting serious data breaches to the 
Information Commissioners Office (ICO).  It was noted that the Authority took 
a proactive, transparent and open approach to informing the ICO of such 
breaches and in seeking advice.  It was noted that over the last three years 
only a very small number of cases had been referred for investigated but the 
open approach of the Authority had probably been taken into account when 
these cases had been considered and no major errors had been identified that 
required substantial remedial action

 Information was provided about the disposal arrangements for both paper and 
electronic records  

RESOLVED that Ms S Hydon be thanked for a most informative presentation.

11. REPORT TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (ISO 260) 2018/19 

The Committee considered a report of the External Auditor (Grant Thornton) which 
had been submitted in accordance with International Standard on Auditing 260, the 
External Audit Governance Report 2018/19.  Mr G Mills (Engagement Lead) and Mr 
T DeZoysa (Engagement Manager) attended the meeting to present the report.

The report incorporated, amongst other things, the following:

 The Financial Statements, including the significant audit risks, findings, area of 
audit focus and judgements and estimates, the going Concern assumption  
and other responsibilities under the Code

 The Value for Money Conclusion
 The Accounts Production and audit process
 The current position with regard to the completion of the audit of the financial 

statements

Appendices to the report provided the following:

 The Action Plan to address issues identified
 The Audit Adjustments
 The audit fees charged for the audit and the provision of non-audit services
 The proposed audit opinion – it was anticipated that the Group and Council 

would be provided with an unmodified/clean; audit opinion by 31st July, 2019

In relation to the Financial Statements, the report summarised the key findings in 
relation to the 2018/19 external audit.  Subject to all outstanding issues being 
resolved to their satisfaction it was anticipated that an unqualified audit opinion on 
the Authority’s financial statements would be issued before the deadline of 31st July, 
2019 following consideration by the Council on the 25th July, 2019.

Page 4



3

Two adjustments had been identified as being of a significant nature and these were 
included within Appendix B.  In addition some recommendations for management 
had been identified and these were detailed within Appendix A.

In relation to Value for Money, two key areas of focus included:

 Financial Standing – the delivery of the 2018/19 budget and savings plan and 
the achievement of the medium Term Financial Strategy

 The arrangements in place for the Glassworks development

The External Auditors had concluded that the Council had proper arrangement in 
place to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources around 
these two risks.  In addition, appropriate arrangements were in place in relation to the 
management of the Council’s Financial Position and in the governance, risk 
management and financial management of the Glassworks scheme to date.

The External Auditors had completed the majority of work under the Code and 
expected to be able to certify the conclusion of the audit once they had completed 
the review of the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts return.  It was anticipated 
that the audit certificate would be issued by the National Audit Office Whole of 
Government Accounts deadline of 31st August, 2019.

Finally, thanks were expressed to officers and members for their continuing help and 
co-operation throughout the audit work.

The presentation engendered a full and frank discussion during which matters of a 
detailed and general nature were raised and answers were given to Members 
questions where appropriate.

The following issued were referred to:

 The amount of work to be undertaken prior to the 31st July, 2019 was not 
uncommon for an Authority the size of Barnsley.  In addition, since the report 
had been produced a number of those issues had already been addressed.  

 There was a discussion of the significant findings and particularly
o  as this related to the McCloud judgement in relation to the fire service 

pensions scheme.  Given the change in liability resulting from this 
decision, the Council had agreed to process the adjustment of around 
£12m on receipt of the updated IAS19 report which was considered to 
be an appropriate adjustment to the Council’s financial statements

o The prior period adjustment in relation to the disposal of the Horizon 
school building.  It was noted that this adjustment did not affect the final 
2018/19 closing Balance Sheet Position for the Council; rather the 
accounting treatment for the disposal was undertaken in the incorrect 
year

 Reference was made to the difficulties caused to both the External Auditors 
and the Authority by the change in the deadline for the submission of the ISA 
report, AGS and Statement of Accounts. 

 There was a discussion of the way in which the fixed asset register was 
compiled and of the benefits that an appropriate software application could 
provide.  This matter was under constant review

Page 5



4

RESOLVED:-

(i) That the External Auditor’s Report 2018/19 be received and referred for 
consideration by the Council to be held on the 25th July, 2019;

(ii) That the Auditor’s findings on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal 
controls and the conclusion on the Council’s arrangements for securing Value 
for Money be noted; and

(iii) That the Committee place on record their thanks and appreciation for the hard 
work of the External Auditor and the Service Director Finance and his Team in 
this process.

RECOMMENDED TO FULL COUNCIL ON THE 25th JULY, 2019:-

(i) That the External Auditor’s Annual Governance Report 2018/19 be approved;

(ii) That the findings on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal controls and the 
conclusions on the Council’s arrangements for securing Value for Money be 
noted; and

(iii) That the findings from the audit work in relation to the 2018/19 financial 
statements be noted and accordingly, the final accounts 2018/19 be approved.

12. GLASSWORKS PROJECT - UPDATE 

Mr D Shepherd (Service Director Regeneration and Property) made a presentation 
on the current position with regard to the Glassworks Project.

He commented on the following:

 The progress on the Glassworks project which was now 22 weeks into Phase 
2 and which was progressing well.  Arising out of the, he made reference to 

o the due diligence arrangements that were in in place
o the awarding of contracts to businesses within the area and the benefits 

to the economic regeneration of the area 
o the majority of the phase 2 groundworks were now complete and no 

issues had been identified
 The successful opening of the Library@thelightbox which had seen over 5,000 

visitors on the first day.  He also outlined the range of services and facilities 
that were available and made reference to the successful liaison/partnership 
arrangements with other businesses and initiatives and particularly the joint 
working arrangements with the Falco Lounge, Barnsley College and 
Community Learning Services

 The current leasing arrangements in place and planned.  Reference was 
made to the businesses it was proposed would be locating into the 
Glassworks some hopefully before Christmas.  It was the intention that the 
Town Centre be brought back into use at the earliest opportunity

 The development of the Market Kitchen which was hoped would be open by 
September/October

Page 6



5

 The alignment/co-location of the Police, Council Enforcement Staff and 
Barnsley CCTV services within the Glassworks management suite

 The development of the leisure offer
 The continued development of the car parking strategy a report on which was 

progressing through Cabinet

In the ensuing discussion the following matters were highlighted:

 It was noted that the financial projections were currently on track although 
there could be fluctuations which was to be expected due to the challenging 
retail sector.  This was kept under review and future reports would update on 
progress

 Work was continuing with Queensbury leasing agency and there was a 
discussion of the Leasing Strategy.  The strategy would be carefully monitored 
as the project developed.  It was important to ensure that the Glassworks had 
the correct mix of tenants as this could influence whether or not other 
businesses chose to locate there

 The Service Director commented that the rest of the Town Centre ‘offer’ was 
kept under review particularly in view of the impact that the development of the 
Glassworks could have.  Indeed a report had been submitted to the Barnsley 
Economic Partnership this morning.  Reference was made to recent 
developments and to the discussions that had taken place with the owner of 
the Parkway Cinema who was to develop a unique cinema offer.  
Consideration was also being made to the submission of an application to the 
Historic High Street Fund which would focus on the cinema side of Eldon 
Street and the Civic

 Arising out of questioning, the Service Director gave the Committee details of 
the anchor tenants who had agreed to locate to the Glassworks

 Information was provided about the Marketing Strategy being undertaken and 
planned.  This strategy involved external agencies as well as the Council’s 
own marketing team and would include a television campaign at the 
appropriate time

RESOLVED  that the report be received and the Service Director Regeneration and 
Property be thanked for his presentation.

13. REVISED AUDITED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2018/19 

Further to Minute 5 of the meeting held on the 5th June, 2019, the Service Director 
Finance submitted the revised audited Statement of Accounts for 2018/19

RESOLVED  that submission for approval for the revised audited Statement of 
Accounts 2018/19 to the Council on the 25th July, 2019 be noted.

14. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE REPORT 2018/19 

The Chief Executive and Executive Director Core Services submitted a report on the 
final Annual Governance Statement 2018/19 and requesting the Committee to refer it 
to Council for consideration and adoption as part of the process for approving the 
2018/19 Statement of Accounts.  A copy of the Statement was appended to the 
report.

Page 7



6

The Risk and Governance Manager gave a brief resume of the contents of the 
Statement and how the review had been undertaken.  An action plan had been 
prepared to capture the issues raised throughout the review process and this 
document would form the basis for the Committee monitoring throughout the year.  
The action plan was appended as Appendix one to the Annual Governance 
Statement and outlined the two items upon which further action was required.  An 
update of the action plan would be submitted to the Committee throughout the year.

It was noted that Mr Hunt (Risk and Governance Manager) was to leave the 
employment of the Authority shortly and the Chair and Members of the Committee 
asked to place on record their thanks and appreciation for his hard work, dedication 
and commitment to the Council over a number of years.

RECOMMENDED TO FULL COUNCIL ON THE 25th JULY, 2019 that the final 
Annual Governance Statement 2018/19 be approved and adopted.

15. LETTER OF REPRESENTATION 

The Executive Director Core Services and Service Director Finance submitted the 
Letter of Representation which was to be sent to the External Auditor.

RESOLVED that the submission of the letter to the External Auditor be approved.

16. INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 

Further to Minute 4 of the previous meeting held on the 5th June, 2019, the Head of 
Internal Audit and Corporate Anti-Fraud submitted his final Internal Audit Annual 
Report 2018/19 providing an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Authority’s Framework of Governance, Risk Management and Control Arrangements 
based on the work of Internal Audit during 2018/19. 

At the June meeting the Committee had noted that an indicative annual assurance 
opinion of adequate had been given.  Internal Audit had now substantially completed 
their work programme and the current report had been written on an exceptions basis 
to highlight any outcomes that may have a positive or negative effect on the interim 
assurance opinion.  Taking the whole year into account, the Head of Internal Audit 
and Corporate Anti-Fraud was able to confirm an overall adequate (positive) 
assurance opinion for the year.

Particular reference was made to the commissioning of the Service to undertake a 
review of governance and contract management regarding the Glassworks project 
and to the scope of that audit. To date this had included:

 Providing challenge and advice on the Project Execution Plan
 Facilitation a Risk Workshop around the governance arrangements to inform 

work in 2019/20
 Providing challenge and advice on the Risk Registers
 Advice on Board governance and decision making

Page 8



7

This programme would continue throughout the lifetime of the project and was the 
second review of the development, the first being the ‘Town Centre Regeneration – 
Development Management Organisation’ review that had been completed as part of 
the 2016/17 Internal Audit Plan.  This review had resulted in an adequate assurance 
opinion.

RESOLVED that the adequate (positive) assurance opinion for the year based on the 
audit work undertaken to deliver the 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan regarding the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s Framework of Governance, Risk 
Management and Control be noted.

17. ANNUAL FRAUD REPORT 2018/19 

The Head of Internal Audit and Corporate Anti-Fraud submitted an Annual report on 
counter fraud related activity undertaken by the Internal Audit’s Corporate Anti-Fraud 
Team from 1st April, 2018 to 31st March, 2019.

The Team continued to provide the Council with a full, professional counter fraud and 
investigation service for fraud attempted or committed against the Council.

Particular reference was made to:

 Pro-active Anti-Fraud and Corruption Activity for 2018/19 and reference was 
made to:

o The success of the Fraud Awareness week – it was noted that due to 
this success a further week was being planned

o Bribery Act E-Learning which could be accessed through the Council’s 
corporate e-learning platform (POD)

o The National Fraud Initiative
 Reactive Fraud Work with reference to 

o Detecting and investigation Fraud
o Corporate investigations
o Council tax Support Investigations
o Council Tax
o Non domestic rates
o Insurance claims
o Right to buy
o Direct Payment/Personal Budgets
o Housing/Tenancy Fraud

In the ensuing discussion the following matters were highlighted:

 Members were particularly pleased at the success of the Fraud Awareness 
Week 

 It was noted that discussions were progressing to examine whether or not 
fraud training could be made mandatory

 It was noted that the success and impact of the service meant that it would 
probably self-sustaining financially

 Reference was made to the recommendations of the Chartered Institute of 
Internal Auditors which suggested that Internal Audit should have unrestricted 

Page 9



8

access to all aspects of the Council’s business and it was pleasing to note that 
this was something that was permitted and indeed encouraged in Barnsley

RESOLVED that the annual Fraud Report which forms part of the framework of 
assurances to support the Annual Governance statement be noted and that the 
Committee encourage the Authority to continue to embed a culture of zero tolerance 
and high levels of awareness regarding fraud and corruption.

18. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2019/20 

The Head of Internal Audit and Corporate Anti-Fraud submitted a report providing a 
summary of the Internal Audit Activity completed and the key issues arising from it for 
the period 1st April to 30th June, 2019.

The report, which was presented by Mrs L Booth, Audit Manager, outlined:

 The progress of the internal audit plan up to the end of June analysed by the 
number of plan assignments producing a report and audit days delivered by 
Directorate  

 There was a variance of two assignments completed against those planned 
but five were in draft report stage and meetings were scheduled with officers 
to discuss outcomes  

 Three audits had been finalised since the last meeting and copies of all final 
reports were available upon request.  A summary of assurances and the 
number and categorisation of recommendations included in the report was 
outlined 

 Details were provided of the outcome of other Internal Audit activities 
concluded not producing a specific assurance opinion

 Information was provided on the following up of Internal Audit Report 
management actions together with a summary of work in progress

 Information on the status of management actions by directorate/maintained 
schools due for completion was provided

 Details of Internal Audit performance against Performance Indicators
 Based on the audits reported during the period an overall adequate assurance 

was considered to be appropriate.

RESOLVED:

(i) that the issues arising from the completed internal audit work for the period 
along with the responses received from management be noted;

(ii) that the assurance opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Authority’s Internal Control Framework based on the work of Internal Audit in 
the period to the end of June, 2019 be noted; 

(iii) that the progress against the Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 for the period to 
the end of June, 2019 be noted; and

(iv) that the performance of the Internal Audit Division for the first quarter be 
noted.

Page 10



9

19. DATA PROTECTION OFFICER'S ANNUAL ASSURANCE REPORT 

The Data Protection Officer submitted a report providing an assessment of 
compliance with the General Data Protection Regulations and the Data Protection 
Act 2018 based on specific assurance work undertaken over the last few months and 
general activity during the year.

The Council’s Information Governance Board, Chaired by the Senior Information Risk 
Owner, the Executive Director Core Services had received and considered a report 
of the Data Protection Officer at its meeting on the 26th June, 2019 and this report 
reflected the discussions and outcomes from the Information Governance Board.

The report covered the following key areas:

 An overview for the 12 months following the formal implementation of the 
General Data Protections Regulations and the Data Protection Act 2018

 DPO activity during the year
 Specific assurance work undertake and the results thereof
 Suggested audit/assurance activity for 2019/20 and beyond
 How the responsibilities of the Data Protection Officer have been discharged
 The response from the Information Governance Board

An Appendix to the report highlighted the key issues arising from each assurance 
review he had undertaken which showed the positive areas as well as those where 
improvement in compliance or the underlying control and governance framework was 
required.  Overall the review work undertaken showed good compliance but equally 
and acceptance that further work was needed in a number of areas and these were 
outlined within the report.

The Data Protection Officer highlighted the excellent work undertaken by the 
Information Governance Team in supporting services achieve the degree of 
compliance highlighted in the report.

Based on his first series of reviews and considering other areas for DPO and/or 
Internal Audit activity the Data Protection Officer had devised a programme of work 
with suggested frequencies to assist in the future planning of review resources and 
this was outlined within Appendix B to the report.

A further Appendix outlined how the Data Protection Officer discharged his duties 
and responsibilities and the report also outlined three key areas requiring further 
review progress on which would be included within future reports to the Information 
Governance Board and this Committee.

In the ensuing discussion particular reference was made to the following:

 Information was provided about insurance and circumstances in which claims 
for compensation could be made

 Thanks were expressed to the Data Protection Officer for the way in which he 
discharged his duties

 It was noted that the Information Governance Board was satisfied at the 
appropriate level of coverage of the Data Protection Officer

Page 11



10

RESOLVED:

(i) that the report and the actions agreed to address issues raised be notified;

(ii) that the response of the Information Governance Board be noted;

(iii) that the programme of assurance activity proposed be noted and endorsed 
and that full and unfettered access be given to the Data Protection officer 
and/or Internal Audit Staff undertaking work on his behalf to information, 
systems, officers and staff;

(iv) that the Committee receive 6 monthly reports on progress and the results of 
assurance work regarding the Authority’s compliance with GDPR and the Data 
Protection Act; and

(v) that the Committee is satisfied that the key responsibilities of the Data 
Protection Officer have been discharged appropriately.

20. ANNUAL REPORT ON TREASURY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES 2018/19 

The Executive Director Core Services and Service Director Finance (Section 151 
Officer) submitted a joint report reviewing the Treasury Management Activities 
undertaken by the Council during 2018/19 in accordance with statutory guidance.

The report, which was introduced by the Head of Finance and presented by Strategic 
Finance Manager, the included:

 The agreed Treasury Management Strategy for 2018/19
 An economic summary
 The Council’s borrowing activity
 The Council’s investment activity
 The Prudential and Treasury Indicators

In the ensuing discussion particular reference was made to the following:

 The implications of interest rates on borrowing activity over the last few 
months and the action taken to ameliorate the impact of potential rises and 
reduce the council’s exposure to such rises

 It was noted that based on current assumptions, the Council may need to 
borrow up to £201m over the next two years and the reasons for this were 
outlined

 Reference was made to and there was a discussion of the potential 
implications of Brexit on sterling and subsequently upon borrowing 
requirements.  It was reported that the Council had now made use of fixed rate 
loans in order to ‘insure’ against unexpected rate increases.  The current 
borrowing strategy was being closely monitored and plans were in place in the 
event that interest rates started to rise

 It was noted that new long term borrowing undertaken in year was generally 
for 30+ years with the average being 45 years

Page 12



11

 In response to questioning it was reported that the Council loaned money to 
other councils on a short term bases as an effective use of cash balances

RESOLVED:

(i) That the borrowing and investment activities undertaken during 2018/19 be 
noted; and

(ii) That the Prudential and Treasury Indicators detailed within Appendix 1 be 
noted.

21. GOVERNANCE, MEMBER AND BUSINESS SUPPORT BUSINESS UNIT 
PROGRESS REPORT 

The Executive Director Core Services introduced the recently appointed Service 
Director Governance, Member and Business Support who then presented a report 
giving an overview of the functions of the Governance, Member and Business 
Support Unit, related elements of the Annual Governance Statement process and 
other issues affecting Elected Members.

In the ensuing discussion particular reference was made to the meetings 
administration support provided for the Combined Authority and related bodies.

 RESOLVED that the report be received and the work of the Governance, Member 
and Business Support Unit be noted.

22. AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 2019/20 AND 2020/21 

The Committee received a report providing the indicative work plan for the 
Committee for its proposed scheduled meetings for the remainder of the 2019/20 
municipal year and for 2020/21.

The Committee was reminded of the Development/Training Session planned for 
Wednesday 30th October, 2019 and Members were asked to contact the Chair with 
any issues/topics they wished to have included.

RESOLVED:

(i) that the core work plan for 2019/20 and 2020/21 meetings of the Audit 
Committee be approved and reviewed on a regular basis;

(ii) that Members of the Committee inform the Chair of any items they wish to 
have included for discussion at the Development/Training Session planned for 
30th October, 2019.

…………………………….
Chair

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

This matter is not a Key Decision within the Council’s definition and has not been 
included in the relevant Forward Plan 
 

Report of the Executive Director – Core Services & 
Service Director – Finance (Section 151) 

 
 

CORPORATE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE QUARTER ENDING 30th JUNE 2019 
 
 

1.  Purpose of Report 

1.1  To consider the financial performance of the Authority during the first quarter ended 

June 2019 and assess the implications against the Council’s Medium Term 

Financial Strategy (MTFS). The key headlines are: 

 The position for Council services is a projected operational underspend of 

£2.579M for 2019/20; 

 The position on Corporate Budgets shows an operational underspend of 

£1.000M; 

 Although the first quarter is reporting a positive position, the Council still has 

some significant savings to deliver over the next 3 years within a financial 

climate that remains both uncertain and challenging.  

 

 

2.  Recommendations   

2.1 It is recommended that Cabinet: 

 Note the current forecast operational underspend for 2019/20 of £3.579M; 

 Approve the recommended write off totalling £0.575M of historic debt 

(£0.510M General Fund/ £0.065M HRA) as shown at para 7.3 of this report; 

 Approve the budget virements at Appendix 1; 

 Note the ongoing uncertain and challenging and financial environment facing 

the local authorities despite the positive quarter 1 position reported for the 

council.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15

Item 4



2 

3. Overall Position to the Quarter Ending June 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.1 The chart below provides an overview of the overall position which breaks down the 

Deficit/Surplus (-) position across Council Directorates.  

 
 

4.  Delivery of 2019/20 Future Council Savings Proposals   

4.1 The Council’s 2019/20 budget is dependent on the delivery of a number of efficiency 

savings.  These targets are reviewed on a regular basis with Budget Managers and 

-£459 

-£1,000 

-£759 

£0 

-£2,236 

£412 

£4 

-£2,500 -£2,000 -£1,500 -£1,000 -£500 £0 £500 £1,000

Outurn Position as at end of June 2019 (£000) 

People

Place

Communities

Public Health

Core

Corporate

HRA

DIRECTORATE 
 
 

Approved 
Net Budget 

2019/20  
 
 

£’000 

Projected 
Net 

Outturn 
2019/20 

 
£’000 

Forecast 
Deficit / 

(Surplus) 
 
 

£’000 

Adjustment 
for 

Slippage & 
Transfer to 

reserves 
£’000 

Operational 
Deficit / 

(Surplus) 
 
 

£’000 

People 36,553  36,557  4  - 4  

Place 40,426  40,838  412  -  412  

Communities 68,983  65,027  (3,956) 1,720  (2,236) 

Public Health 7,409  5,276  (2,133) 2,133  -  

Core Services 14,922  13,400 (1,522) 763  (759) 

Service Totals 168,293  161,098 (7,195) 4,616  (2,579) 

Corporate / General items 772  (4,168) (4,940) 3,940  (1,000) 

Sub Total – Council 169,065  156,930  (12,135) 8,556  (3,579) 

      

HRA -  (459) (459) -  (459) 

The Council is currently reporting an overall projected underspend for 2019/20 of 

£3.579M.  This is comprised of a forecast underspend on Directorate budgets of 

£2.579M, and a further £1.00M underspend on Corporate Budgets. 

This position is summarised below with further detailed provided at Appendices 2 and 3. 

Page 16



3 

any issues are highlighted early so that recovery plans can be put in place where 

necessary. 

4.2 The Q1 position is forecasting a 100% delivery rate against the target for 2019/20 of 

£5.765M, and thus there are no issues to highlight at this stage.  

 

 

5.  CIPFA Financial Resilience results for 2018/19 

5.1 As part of the 2019-2021 Medium Term Financial Strategy, the S151 Officer 

presented a paper highlighting the Council’s position in terms of its financial 

resilience and ability to continue to meet future financial challenges.  

5.2  This paper demonstrated that, whilst there were some concerns over the 

proportionate levels of spend on social care and debt costs and the councils future 

ability to deliver savings from ‘non protected’ services, the Council continues to 

demonstrate financial sustainability, holding a strong and stable reserves position 

with a sound strategy in place to meet the immediate challenges faced by the 

Council.  

5.3 The Councils financial resilience position has been updated to reflect the latest 

available information. The table below demonstrates a consistent trend and there 

are no real concerns raised by the updated position.  Together with the wider control 

measures already in place across the organisation, the Council continues to be on a 

sound financial footing and has sufficient resilience in place to ensure a sustainable 

financial position.  The major caveat to this being the continuing uncertain impact of 

the European Union exit negotiations on the economy, the timing and outcome of 

the Comprehensive Spending Review and the ultimate impact on local government 

funding.  

100% 

0% 0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Achieved Unachieved

2019/20 Efficiency 
Proposals 

Page 17



4 

 

 

 Reserves as a % of Net Expenditure:  The Council continues to hold a strong 

reserves position, with an average of 76% reserves as a proportion of net 

expenditure over the period 2014/15 to 2018/19. 

 

 Change in Reserves:  The Council has maintained a stable position over the last 3 

financial years, indicating a prudent and planned approach to the use of reserves.  

 

 RSG as a % of Net Expenditure:  The scale shows a moderate level of risk as the 

Council moves towards less reliance on central government funding and increased 

self-sufficiency.  RSG as a proportion of Net Expenditure stands at 11%, a reduction 

of 6% since the last reported position. This is reflective of the trend of diminishing 

RSG funding.  However, this places more reliance on income sources that are 

subject to increased volatility (e.g. business rates). 

 

 Council Tax and Business Rate Retention as a % of Net Expenditure:  There 

has been a gradual increase over the last 4 years in locally generated income from 

council tax and business rates (an increase of 8% from 34% to 42% as a proportion 

of net expenditure since the last reported position). This demonstrates a proactive 

approach to increasing the tax base through various economic strategies to attract 

housing and business growth across the borough.  

 

 Social Care and Debt Financing as a % of Net Revenue Expenditure:  On 

average the Council incurs 72% of its revenue expenditure on these spend 

categories, which has decreased from an average of 77% in the last reported 

position. This improvement relates to a number of factors reflecting effective 

demand management through early help initiatives, additional external funding for 

social care spend and greater scrutiny of the Council’s debt levels to ensure 

borrowing going forward is restricted to a necessary minimum.  

 

 

Page 18



5 

6.  Corporate Resources  

 

 Collection Rates 

6.1 The Council’s major sources of discretionary income are Business Rates and 

Council Tax. As government funding continues to reduce, the Council’s financial 

health becomes almost completely reliant upon the collection of both Council Tax 

and Business Rates (as demonstrated in the financial resilience section of this 

report). The following table compares actual collection rates for the year against the 

stretch targets that were set. 

 2018/19 
Actual 

2019/20 
Stretch 
Target 

Quarter 1 Variance 
Q1 to 
Target 

Council Tax  96.03% 96.00% 95.81% -0.19% 

Business Rates (local share) 97.77% 97.50% 97.84% +0.34% 

 
6.2 Council Tax collection rates are forecased to be slightly short of the current 

stretched target by 0.19% in 2019/20, however there is still confidence that the 

target will be met by the end of the financial year.  Although the current collection 

rate would allow the Council to meet its budgetary requirements, there is a potential 

to generate a further £0.1M for every 0.1% improvement in collection. 

6.3 This continues to represent strong performance and we are closely monitoring 

potential risks which may impact on collection rates, including the continued rollout 

of Universal Credit. The Section 151 Officer will update Cabinet on this position over 

the financial year.  

6.4 The Council, alongside 29 other Local Authorities and the HM Revenue and 

Customs (HMRC) has recently joined a pilot scheme to trial the the use of data 

sharing powers introduced by the Digital Economy Act (2017). This scheme will 

allow the Council to access employer and income information held by  HMRC for 

individuals in arrears on their council tax and apply to the courts for an attachment 

to earnings for monies owed. The pilot will run for 12 months. Future reports will 

update on the outcome of the pilot. 

6.5 In relation to Business Rates collection,  it is currently forecast that the stretch target 

set for 2019/20 will be exceeded by 0.34%. This is attributed to using a more 

targeted approach to collecting high value debts and ensuring that timely action is 

taken and that it is appropriately based on circumstances. 

6.6 The Council’s Capital Investment Strategy is expected to accelerate growth in jobs 

and businesses, resulting in an increase in both business rate  and council tax yield 

over the period of the MTFS, though this is again caveated, dependent on the EU 

exit negociations and the impact on both the national and regional economies.  

 Move towards 75% Business Rate Retention 

6.7 Under the current Business Rate Retention scheme, the Council is able to retain 

50% of business rates collected within the local area. Central Government had 

Page 19



6 

initally indicated that this will increase to 75% by 2020. The ongoing Government 

leadership contest and uncertainty surrounding exit from the European Union may 

delay the introduction of 75% retention.  However, the position remains uncertain at 

this stage and we continue to work towards the 2020 date.  

   7. Arrears Management 

 Total Arrears 

7.1 The table below shows that the overall overdue debt (arrears) position at the end of  

June stands at £26M. This is comprised of prior years debt of £18M and new debt of 

£8M. There has been a reduction of £2.8M in prior year debt during this quarter 

reflecting the activity and initiatives in place to maximise debt recovery.  

   Type of Debt 

Pre-19/20 

Arrears 

£M 

2019/20 

Arrears 

£M  

TOTAL 

Arrears 

£M  
 

Bad Debt  

Provision 

£M 
 

Write Offs 

For 

Approval 

£M 

Opening 2019/20 Position 

(position as at 31.03.2019) 
20.720 n/a 20.720 

 
11.715 

  

Total as at end of June 17.957 8.015 25.972  18.361 
 

*0.510M 

MOVEMENT from Opening to 

June 
(2.763)  8.015  5.252     6.646   

*excludes rent arrears write off 

Bad Debt Provision 

7.2 Historic debt is traditionally much more difficult to collect. To offer some protection 

against non-collection, the Council sets a prudent provision for bad debt (allowed for 

witin th 2019/20 budget). The current bad debt provision as at the end of June 

stands at £18.4M, an increase of £6.6M from the start of the year. Although the 

provision has increased from the opening position, it is expected to reduce as we 

move through the year and more income is collected. 

 Write Offs 

7.3 The S151 Officer is now also seeking approval to write off debt amounting to 

£0.575M which have become uneconomical to pursue. This is summarised in the 

table below:    

 

 

 

 

Type of Dept Value of Write off  
(£M) 

Council Tax 0.130 

Business Rates 0.144 

Trade Debt General Fund 0.105 

Trade Debt HRA 0.017 

Housing Benefit Overpayment 0.114 

Sub-Total 0.510 

Former Tenant Rent Arrears- HRA 0.065 

Total 0.575 

Page 20



7 

 Impact on Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) / Reserves   

8.1      An updated 2019-22 MTFS forecast was approved by Full Council in February 2019. 

This highlighted a number of ongoing pressures and mitigations and showed a 

balanced position for the period 2019-2021 with a modest deficit remaining for 

2021/22.  

 2019/20 
£M 

2020/21 
£M 

2021/22 
£M 

Revised MTFS at February 
2019 

- 0.028 4.857 

 

8.2       The position does make some provision for future demands on services but largely 

assumes that any current service pressures, as outlined in this report, will be 

contained during 2019/20. To the extent that any pressures are not fully contained 

by services there will be a corresponding adverse ongoing impact on the updated 

MTFS position.   

8.3       An updated reserves position / strategy was also included in the 2019/20 budget 

papers. This position is currently in the process of being updated to reflect the 

2018/19 year end outturn position and other updated information which has to light 

in the intervening period will be presented to Cabinet in due course.  

8.4 The current underspend reported for Q1 is predominantly as a result of increased 

funding contributions received for Adult Social Care, and the early delivery of future 

year efficiency savings as explained in more detail in Section 3 of this report. There 

remains continued uncertainty surrounding funding for Adult Social Care and wider 

Local Government. Some provision has therefore been made in the current MTFS 

to reflect, where possible, future pressures in relation to Adult Social Care.  

8.5 The forecast underspend position reported as at the end of June (£3.6M) will be 

considered within the Council’s 2019-2023 updated Reserves Strategy, of which will 

be presented to Cabinet in due course.  

8.6 The current forecast 2020/21 position above is dependent on the delivery of £9.5M 

of efficiency proposals. The MTFS is in the process of being updated including 

rolling forward the forecast position to 2022/23. As part of this exercise, detailed 

delivery plans will be presented for approval for the 2020/21 proposed efficiencies 

together with proposals for addressing any future funding gaps.   

 

  Background Papers 

 The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy -2019/20 Budget 

Recommendations (Cab.6.2.2019/6)  

 

 

Page 21



8 

CONTENTS 

 

SECTIONS 

1. People – Executive Director’s Summary 

2. Place –   Executive Director’s Summary 

3. Communities – Executive Director’s Summary 

4. Public Health & Regulation – Director’s Summary 

5. Core Services – Executive Director’s Summary 

6. Commentary on Corporate Budgets 

 

APPENDICES 

1. Directorate Virement 

2. Overall Budget Monitoring Position for the Council 

3. Detailed Budget Variances for Directorates 

4. Detailed Position for Agreed Savings 

5. HRA Position 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 22



9 

 
SECTION 1 - Executive Director’s Summary for People 

 

Highlights 

 

 

 

 

 

Quarter 1 position to the end of the quarter ending June 2019 

DIRECTORATE Approved 
Net Budget 

2019/20 
(after 

Virement) 
 
 

£’000 

Projected 
Net 

Outturn 
2019/20 

 
 
 

£’000 

Forecast 
Deficit / 

(Surplus) 
 
 
 
 

£’000 

Adjustment 
for Slippage, 

Grant 
balances & 
Transfer to 

reserves 
 

£’000 

Operational 
Deficit / 

(Surplus) 
 
 
 
 

£’000 

Education, Early 
start & Prevention 

7,855 7,859 4 -  4 

Children Social 
Care & 
Safeguarding 

25,729 25,729 - -  - 

Sub-Total 33,584 33,588 4 -  4 

Schools  2,969 2,969 - -  - 

 
Total – People 36,553 

 
36,557 

 
4 

 
- 

 
4 

 

Key Variances 

Education, Early Start & Prevention – a net overspend of £0.004M is currently forecast for 

the year. An explanation of the key variances are detailed below:     

 Education Welfare (underspend of £0.025M): - The reported underspend position is 

due to continuing staff vacancies and turnover in the service.  

 

 School Evaluation (underspend (£0.061M): - The forecast underspend is mainly due 
to reduced spend on externally procured professional support to schools, offset by low 
levels of income in the Schools Clerking Service.    

 

 Targeted Support Services (underspend of £0.021M):- The forecast position is 

attributable to staff vacancies and turnover within Youth Services. 

 

 Inclusion Services (overspend of £0.122M): - The reported overspend relates to the 

use of agency cover staff, which is offset by savings from slippage in recruitment to 

vacant posts. 

The latest 2019-20 approved budget envelope for the People Directorate is 

£36.553M and includes schools related budgets of £2.969M (mainly carry 

forward schools balances).  

A balanced position is forecast for the financial year after adjusting for the planned 

use of specific Children’s Social Care grant.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 23



10 

   
Children’s Social Care & Safeguarding – a balanced budget position is currently forecast for 

Q1 for the Business Unit and reflects the planned use of the allocated Social Care Support 

grant to offset anticipated cost pressures mainly relating to children in care (placement) costs. 

The following explains the key variances in the business unit:     

 Children in Care (overspend of £0.140M): - The forecast overspend is mainly due to 

higher external residential care costs offset by reduced spend on fostering and other 

placement costs over the same period.   

Barnsley’s overall LAC population at the end of Q1 is 301, which represents a decrease 

of 4 since the end of March 2019. This is consistent with the LAC population guideline 

target of 300 assumed in the LAC sufficiency strategy. It should be noted that LAC 

numbers did, however, reach 311 during this quarter and demonstrates the volatility in 

the activity level.  

External residential care costs continue to exert pressure on the LAC budget – 20 

placed at the end of Q1, which is 5 more than assumed in the plan for 2019/20. The 

cost pressure is exacerbated by a small number of secure welfare placement 

commitments (non-recurrent) from last year, which have been mitigated by funding from 

health.      

   

 Safeguarding & Quality Assurance (underspend of £0.076M): - The forecast 

underspend is mainly due to staff vacancies and higher than anticipated training income. 

 

 Other Variances (underspend of £0.064M): - An overall net underspend is reported 

across a number of service areas / budgets and includes the following: Assessment & 

Care (accommodation / staff travel costs partially offset by staff vacancies); Leaving 

Care (support to care leavers - rent/accommodation costs). 

 

Schools DSG - The latest Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) budget for 2019/20 totals 

£93.714M, comprising of £73.318M delegated to schools and £20.396M retained centrally by 

the Council. The following outlines the forecast position for the schools’ budgets:  

  

 Delegated DSG budgets  (underspend of £1.0M) 
Comprises of elements allocated to schools through the local schools funding formula, 

as well as high needs and early years funding.  The latest reported schools balances 

position showed a projected net surplus of £1.0M for the current financial year. Under 

the DSG grant conditions surplus balances at year end will be carried forward to the 

following year and earmarked for spend by schools.    The forecast surplus position 

needs to be considered in the context of the £2.3M surplus reported for 2018/19.  Whilst 

it is a reduction compared to last years reported balances, it should be noted that 

schools tend to take a prudent view in respect of budgeted surpluses at the beginning of 

the financial year.  

 

The above surplus balance position includes Penistone Grammar school with a reported 

deficit projected for the current year. A plan has been agreed with the school to address 

or reduce the deficit over a set timeframe.   

 

 

Page 24



11 

 Centrally retained DSG budgets  (overspend of £4.9M) 
These comprise of schools related spend / budget retained centrally by the council and 

managed on behalf of schools. An overall DSG overspend of £4.9M is currently forecast 

across all the centrally retained budgets and mainly relates to the SEND/High needs 

funding block. This is a worsening position compared to the DSG budget deficit of £3.7M 

originally anticipated for the year. The increase in the deficit from the planned position 

can be explained by the following:  

  
1. Increase in the number of placements in external independent specialist schools. 

Currently the projected number of pupils placed in independent schools is 173 

(including expected placements in September 2019). This is an increase of 26 

compared to the original budget assumption / estimate and is partly as a result of 

the non-delivery of additional and suitable local specialist places as planned (e.g. 

the decision not to proceed with the Kendray 30 place SEMH unit has impacted on 

numbers). The cost pressure associated with out of borough placements has also 

been exacerbated by the increase in overall unit placement cost (£52k compared to 

budget estimate of £47k), which is due to the increasing complexity of needs.  

2. Exceptional top up funding to mainstream schools / academies - to provide support 

in managing SEN pupils with complex / challenging needs. 

3. Increased payments to schools / academies with Special Resource Provision for 

the purchase of additional specialist school places (e.g. Hoyland Springwood) – to 

accommodate SEN pupils with complex needs.  

   

Approved Savings Position 

The Directorate has total approved savings of £1.124M to deliver in 2019/20. All savings have 

either been delivered in full or are on target to be delivered by the end of 2019/20. 

    

Current Actions and Future Risks 

The following outlines the key actions being undertaken to address the identified in-year 

budget / cost pressures in relation to children’s social care and SEND: 

 Children’s Social Care: - Continue to manage placements in an effective and safe 

manner and ensure that costs are managed down through the following: tracking of 

placements by the Placement Oversight Resource Panel; implementing the action plan 

from the review of the fostering service; and continuation of the targeted recruitment 

campaign to attract in-house foster carers. 

 

 SEND/High needs: - A SEND Oversight Board has been established, which adopts a 

‘One Council’ and partnership approach to improving service experience, outcomes for 

children and young people and managing financial resources. The Board is responsible 

for the delivery of the SEND improvement plan and required outcomes as per the SEND 

strategy. It is also accountable for the effective use of the high needs budget / 

resources. The improvement plan details the actions being implemented to improve 

outcomes for SEND pupils as well as managing the financial pressures over the medium 

term. 

 
 

Page 25



12 

The main risks in future years relate to demand-driven pressures in children services 

(children’s social care), as well as the rising cost of supporting and meeting the needs of 

SEND pupils. The following summarises the key risks facing the Directorate : 

 Education, Early Start, & Prevention 

The business unit will continue to face challenges in future years from reductions in grant 

funding (e.g. Youth Justice Board), partner contributions (e.g. police & crime 

commissioner funding) and trading income from schools (e.g. Education Psychology, 

Education Welfare and Schools Governor services). Options are currently being explored 

to address the impact on Early Help services from the potential fallout of the Troubled 

Families funding.   

 

 Schools Budgets (SEND/High Needs) 

An in-year net budgetary pressure of £4.9M is currently forecast against the high needs 

budget in 2019/20, with work currently being undertaken on sufficiency modelling to 

ascertain / project future years’ SEND numbers and funding implications.  The impact of 

the Improvement Plan on managing cost pressures will be assessed. However, it is likely 

that there will continue to be a sustainability issue in future years. A DSG deficit recovery 

plan (showing how the deficit would be managed over 3 years) will be required to be 

submitted by the Council for any deficit greater than 1% of the total DSG funding.    

       

 Children social care & safeguarding 

The increasing pressure on the LAC placement budget, particularly in relation to 

residential care reflects some of the challenges facing the Council such as: finding 

suitable / appropriate secure welfare placements, increasing competition for limited 

placements both locally and within the region and difficulty in placing older children (with 

challenging needs) with foster carers. 

 

The required actions / measures to manage LAC numbers over the medium term are set 

out in the recently reviewed LAC Sufficiency Strategy.  The ongoing work to track / plan 

LAC placements will ensure the stability of Barnsley’s LAC numbers around the 300 

mark and maintain costs within affordable limits. 

 
 

Page 26



13 

 
SECTION 2 – Executive Director’s Summary for Place 

 
Highlights 

 

 

 
 
 
 
Quarter 1 position to the end of the quarter ending June 2019 
 

DIRECTORATE Approved 
Net Budget 

2019/20 
(after 

Virement) 
 
 

£’000 

Projected 
Net 

Outturn 
2019/20 

 
 
 

£’000 

Forecast 
Deficit / 

(Surplus) 
 
 
 
 

£’000 

Adjustment 
for Slippage, 

Grant 
balances & 
Transfer to 

reserves 
 

£’000 

Operational 
Deficit / 

(Surplus) 
 
 
 
 

£’000 

Regeneration &       
 Culture 

12,259 12,259 - - - 

Environment & Transport 28,167 28,579 412 - 412 

Total – Place  40,426 40,838 412 - 412 

      

Housing Revenue A/C 0 (459) (459) - (459) 

 
 

Key Variances 
 
Regeneration & Culture – a break even position is forecast at the end of Quarter 1. An 
explanation of the key variances are detailed below: 
 

 Planning and Building Control (underspend of £0.033M): - The reported underspend is 
due to staff vacancies and increased fee income. 

 

 Culture (overspend of £0.033M): - The service continues to experience difficulties in 
achieving retail sales income targets which has been partially offset by staff vacancies 
during the first quarter of the year. 

Environment & Transport – An overspend of £0.412M is forecast at the end of Quarter 1. An 

explanation of the key variances is detailed below: 

 Operations, Recycling, Neighbourhoods & Transport (overspend of £0.249M): - The 

overspend is mainly due to slippage in the delivery of replacement mitigating efficiency 

proposals from previous periods– see mitigations below. 

 

 Highways, Engineering & Transportation Services (underspend of £0.808M): - The 
service is forecasting an underspend of £0.530M assuming the continuation of the same 
productivity levels as in 2018/19 in line with the highways capital programme of works – 
predicted to continue for several years into the future.  
Highways Maintenance is forecasting to underspend by a further £0.252M. This includes 
savings on reactive maintenance (£0.066M) and from the early delivery of the 2020/21 

The latest revised 2019/20 approved budget envelope for the Place Directorate 

is £40.426M. Based on current projections, the outturn for the Directorate will be 

£40.838M, resulting in a net forecast operational over-spend against the 

approved budget of £0.412M.   

Page 27



14 

KLOE to replace street lighting lanterns with new LEDs (£0.181M). 
Highways / Engineers is forecasting an underspend of £0.026M which relates primarily to 
savings on staffing costs offset by a projected shortfall in fee income.  
 

 Commercial & Operational Services (overspend of £1.001M): - Contracts Management 
/ TLS (Waste Disposal) are forecasting an overspend of £0.939M. This mainly relates to 
the continuation of the problems encountered by the service due to the fall in the market 
price of recyclates and the delays in delivery of mitigating actions required to offset the 
increasing costs associated with the disposal contract. (see below).  
 
Purchasing & Supplies is forecasting to overspend by £0.080M as a result of a reduction in 
income from the sale of surplus materials.  

 
Bulky Waste/Bin Deliveries is overspending by £0.063M due to the increased use of 
agency staff and vehicle costs as a result of increasing demands for the service.  
Car Parking Income is forecasting to over achieve against the income target by £0.025M. 
There are additional underspends of £0.056M across the structure due to staffing 
vacancies.  

  

 Bereavement Services (underspend of £0.050M): - Underspend relates to a forecast 
overachievement of fee income. 
 

Approved Savings Position 

The Directorate had total approved savings of £2.217M to deliver in 2019/20. All savings have 

either been delivered in full or are on target to be delivered by the end of 2019/20. 

 

Mitigations from prior years (£1.844M total target) 

A number of yet to be delivered mitigations have been carried forward from previous years. 

Overall £1.219M of efficiencies have been delivered out of total planned mitigations of 

£1.844M, leaving a target for 2019/20 of £0.625M to be achieved. These are outlined below: 

 

Efficiency Saving £M 

Transfer Loading Station * 0.300M 

Travel Training**  0.075M 

Procurement Savings 0.250M 

TOTAL  0.625M 
* The TLS is currently forecast to be delivered during Quarter 4 of 2019/20 generating a part year saving of 0.30M 

** Travel Training is delivered in conjunction with the People Directorate 

 

Housing Revenue Account - The Housing Revenue Account is currently forecasting an 

operational underspend as at the end of June of £0.459M. An explanation of the key 

variances are detailed below: 

 

 It is currently anticipated that dwellings rental income will achieve approximately £0.550M 
more than the approved budgeted position. This is predominately as a result of lower RTB 
sales than anticipated within the 2019/20 HRA Business Plan. The level of rents and 
associated assumptions (e.g. void levels, stock levels etc.) will continue to be monitored 
rigorously throughout the financial year. 
 

 The above is offset by a forecast overspend (£0.080M) in external fees charged to the 
HRA as a result of the ongoing PRIP 2020 contract procurement process.  

Page 28



15 

 
 

Current Actions and Future Risks 

Whilst the current outturn position for the Directorate shows an overspend of £0.412M, work will 
continue during the year with a view to delivering a balanced budget for this financial year and 
beyond. However there remains a number of ongoing pressures: 

 

 The Home to School Transport budget is highlighted as a key area for concern for the service 
as pupil numbers and costs continue to rise. Additional budget provision of £0.759M has been 
provided through the MTFS this year. However, demand for this service is greatly influenced 
by the demands for SEND/High Needs and LAC placements within People Directorate and 
therefore, future cost pressures are likely to arise if demand for such placements continues to 
rise outside of the parameters already assumed.  

 

 Household Waste & Recycling levels will continue to be monitored and addressed where 
possible. Whilst recycling remains encouraging, the income associated with this has fallen 
due to volatile, competitive markets. China’s announcement that they may ban all waste 
imports by 2020 would have a significant impact on the service’s future income levels and 
budgets. A full review will be undertaken and brought forward as part of the 2020/2021 
budget setting process. 

 

 The Winter Maintenance budget (the cost of gritting roads and snow clearance) continues to 
be an annual pressure. This year it has become necessary to refurbish/reinstate the 5 Ice 
alert stations across the borough to bring them up to specification but could result in a 
reduction in the number of grits required due to more accurate information being made 
available. 

 

 Council Buildings programme the rationalisation of Council buildings programme is expected 
to deliver significant efficiencies following the closure and hand back of buildings. However, 
there remains the risk of significant cost pressures, potentially giving rise to an overspend 
within Property services should the planned programme be delayed beyond the current plan 
for reasons outside of the Business Units control.  In addition potential unknown costs 
relating to the ongoing property maintenance across the estate continues to be a concern, 
this will be monitored and mitigated as far as possible. Finally the  review of unoccupied 
spaces across the asset portfolio will continue, particularly in relation to the Lift Buildings and 
Business Centres, to ensure we are maximising the use of our assets to their full potential. 

 

 Efficiency Savings Targets:  The Directorate continues to feel the strain to deliver mitigations 
identified from previous slipped efficiency savings targets (£1.844M in total).   £1.219M of 
which has successfully been delivered to date, however there is a risk that the remaining 
£0.625M planned to be delivered in 2019/20 may not materialise this financial year impacting 
on the Directorates ability to deliver a balanced budget, placing increasing pressures on the 
councils wider MTFS.  
 

The Directorate continues to work hard to bring forward necessary mitigations for all of the above 
pressures and concerns.  A plan is currently in place to deliver a balanced budget by 2020.  

Page 29



16 

 
SECTION 3 - Executive Director’s Summary for Communities 

 
 
Highlights 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
Quarter 1 position to the end of the quarter ending June 2019 
 

DIRECTORATE Approved Net 
Budget 

2019/20 (after 
Virement) 

 
£’000 

Projected 
Net 

Outturn 
2019/20 

 
£’000 

Forecast 
Deficit / 

(Surplus)  
 

£’000 

Adjustment 
for Slippage 
& Transfer to 

reserves 
 

£’000 

Operational 
Deficit / 

(Surplus) 
 
 

£’000 

Adult Social Care 48,389 46,358 (2,031) - (2,031) 

Provider Services 3,513 2,914 (599) - (599) 

Safer, Stronger, 
Healthier 

8,204 6,487 (1,717) 1,720 3 

IT & Customer 
Services 

8,877 9,268 391 - 391 

Total – Communities  68,983 65,027 (3,956) 1,720 (2,236) 

 
Key Variances 
 
Adult Social Care & Health – An underspend of £2.031M is currently forecast for ASC, mainly 
due to the early delivery of future years’ efficiencies e.g. increased level of client contributions 
and health funding to meet care costs.  
 
The financial position on Adult Social Care has also been impacted by the increasing level of 
non-recurrent Government funding e.g. improved better care fund, winter pressures funding 
and adult social care support grant. However, this ad-hoc one off approach to funding is 
unsustainable and makes it difficult to plan effectively for the long term (i.e. managing future 
risks relating to demography and cost of care). 
 
The following explains the key variances for the year: 
 

Older People aged 65+ (underspend of £1.233M)  

 Increased income / contributions – the level of health funding and income from service 
users is forecast to be higher than budgeted for the year. The full year effect of the 
outcome of the financial assessments review of client contributions undertaken last 
year and the removal of the £150 weekly fee cap on non-residential care continues to 
have a positive impact on income levels. 

  

 Reduction in direct payment costs – due to increased levels of surplus balances 
forecast to be clawed back from service users’ Direct Payments managed accounts in 
accordance with funding conditions.      

 

The latest revised 2019/20 approved budget envelope for the Communities 

Directorate is £68.983M. Total forecast net expenditure is £65.027M, resulting 

in a forecast underspend before earmarking’s of £3.956M. Of this sum 

£1.720M is proposed for earmarking (primarily relating to multi-year grant 

allocations and Commissioning and Ward Alliance budgets) resulting in a net 

forecast operational underspend for the year of £2.236M.  

 It is important to note that earmarking largely relates to multi-year grant 

funding and  

 

 

 

 

Page 30



17 

 
       

   Working Aged Adults aged <65 (underspend of £0.700M) 

 The underspend is mainly attributable to a forecast increase in the level of funding 
contributions from health for jointly funded care packages (for learning disabilities and 
mental health).   

  
Joint Commissioning Unit (underspend of £0.098M)  

 The forecast underspend has arisen mainly from staff turnover / vacancies and minor 
savings on commissioned contracts. 

 
Customer Services are currently projecting an operational underspend (£0.599M) for the year.  
The key contributors to this position are: 
 

 Schools Catering (overspend of £0.056M) – this position is not unexpected and has arisen 

as a result of a combination of loss business from school contracts along with increased food 

prices, the position follows a similar trend to 2018/19.  As a consequence provision has been 

made in the councils current MTFS, to accommodate the shortfall in 2019/20.   

 

 Day Opportunities (underspend £0.312M) – as a result of the closure of the Keresforth 

Centre contributing to the early delivery of 2020/21 efficiency savings along with vacancy 

retention across the service. 

 

 ALT & Reablement (underspend £0.180M) – the underspend is as a result of 

increased income for Assisted Living Technology services (£0.079M) along with vacancy 

management within ALT (£0.032M) and Reablement (£0.043M). 

Safer, Stronger & Healthier are projecting a broadly balanced position after allowing for slippage 
in expenditure to 2020/21. These earmarking’s relate to: 
 

 Devolved Area Councils / Ward Alliance Funding (£0.755M) – these represent 
committed but as yet unspent funding to support the delivery of a range of contracts / 
initiatives across Area Council’s which will be expended in 2020/21. 

 

 Troubled Families (£0.641M) – this represents external funding generated from the 
National Troubled Families Programme, required to support the continuation of the 
programme post March 2020.  

 

 Grants carry forward (£0.324M) – this relates to grants which will be un-utilised during 
2019/20 and will be spent in 2020/21 (Asylum, Migration & Integration Fund and Welfare 
Reform Grant). 

 
IT & Customer Services are currently projecting an operational overspend of £0.391M for the 
year.  The key contributors to this position are: 
 

 Software License and Equipment Costs of £0.494M offset by vacancy management 
(£0.168M).  Although there are some pressures in license costs and changes in 
contracting arrangements the overspend this year is primarily one off and associated 
with facilitating future efficiencies in the configuration of the service and management of 
software licenses. 

 
 

Page 31



18 

Approved Savings Position 
 
The Directorate has total approved savings of £1.964M to deliver in 2019/20. All savings have 

either been delivered in full or are on target to be delivered by the end of 2019/20. 

 

Current Actions and Future Risks 
 
A number of service reviews are ongoing during 2019/20 across the Communities Directorate. 
These reviews will ensure services continue to remain fit for purpose and that the Directorate is 
fully prepared to meet the efficiency requirements of 2020/21 and 2021/22. 
 
Reviews include: 
 
 

 Leading the Council’s Digital First Strategy; 

 Provider Services reviews including Day Opportunities, Reablement and Assisted Living 
Technology; 

 Barnsley Schools Catering Service. 
 
 
Adult social care: - Potential pressures from care providers for fee increases to meet market 
demands, cost of care (to address market sustainability) and the need to improve the quality of 
care provision continue to pose challenges in 2020/21 and beyond. This is in addition to a 
forecast increase in demand for services arising from projected growth in the adult population, 
particularly in the 65+ age group. The delay of the Government’s Adult Social Care Green Paper 
and the continued use of non-recurrent and one-off funding (e.g. IBCF, Winter Pressures funding) 
makes long term planning difficult. 
 
Healthier Communities: - The increase in the cost of Buprenorphine continues to exert pressure 
on the Business Unit in 2020/21. Provision has been made in the Council’s medium term financial 
plan to address this anticipated cost increase but work is continuing to seek alternative solutions.  
 
IT and Customer Services: - Uncertainty remains regarding the increased cost of software 
licenses along with changes in contracting arrangements from external suppliers.  There is a risk 
that the increasing pressures associated with software licenses may impact on the ability to 
deliver the efficiency requirements for 2020/21 and 2021/22. Work is ongoing to monitor these 
arrangements with a view to mitigating these pressures and drive out value for money wherever 
possible.   
 

 

Page 32



19 

 
SECTION 4 - Director’s Summary for Public Health & Regulation 

 
Highlights 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Quarter 1 position to the end of the quarter ending June 2019 
 

DIRECTORATE Approved 
Net Budget 

2019/20 
(after 

Virement) 
 

£’000 

Projected 
Net 

Outturn 
2019/20 

 
 

£’000 

Forecast 
Deficit / 

(Surplus) 
 
 
 

£’000 

Adjustment 
for Slippage 

& Transfer 
to reserves 

 
 

£’000 

Operational 
Deficit / 

(Surplus) 
 
 
 

£’000 

BU10 – Public 
Health & Regulation 

7,409 5,276 (2,133) 2,133 - 

 
Key Variances 
 
The forecast underspend of £2.133M comprises: 
 

 Resources identified through the current 4 Year Plan to be carried forward in order to meet  

future commitments (£2.133M) - this carry forward is crucial to ensure the successful 

delivery of the current plan. 

 

Approved Savings Position 
 

The Directorate savings target of £0.189M has been fully delivered for 2019/20. 
 
Current Actions and Future Risks 
 
A detailed review of the configuration and commissioned contracts across the Public Health 
service is currently underway.  This exercise is crucial to ensure the ongoing sustainability of the 
service, delivery of public health outcomes and contribution to the Council’s efficiency agenda.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The latest approved net budget for the Public Health Directorate is £7.409M.  The 

total forecast net expenditure is £5.276M, resulting in a planned forecast 

underspend of £2.133M, which is all proposed for earmarking to support the 

delivery of the current 4 year Public Health plan, resulting in a balanced year-end 

position.  

Page 33



20 

 
SECTION 5  - Executive Director’s Statement For Core 

 
Highlights 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Quarter 1 Position to the end of the quarter ending June 2019 
 

DIRECTORATE Approved 
Net Budget 

2019/20 
(after 

Virement) 
 
 

£’000 

Projected 
Net Outturn 

2019/20 
 
 
 
 

£.000 

Forecast 
Deficit / 

(Surplus) 
 
 
 
 

£’000 

Adjustment 
for Slippage 

& Transfer 
to reserves 

 
 
 

£’000 

Operational 
Deficit / 

(Surplus) 
 
 
 
 
 

£’000 

Finance 3,762 2,808 (954) 656 (298) 

Business Imp, HR & 
Comms 

5,698 5,380 (318) 107 (211) 

Legal Services 1,112 1,018 (94) 0 (94) 
Elections 802 703 (98) 0 (98) 

Council Governance 3,548 3,490 (58) 0 (58) 
Total – Core 14,922 13,399 (1,522) 763 (759) 

 
Key Variances 

An under-spend of £0.759M is forecast for 2019/20, the key variances are as follows.  
 
Finance – underspend of (£0.298M): 

 (£0.170M) Delays in recruiting to vacant posts as a result of the new staffing structure 
implemented in October 2018; 

 (£0.128M) Overachievement of income due to the Commercial Services Trading arm 
exceeding targets as well as additional grant given to the Benefits and  Taxation service; 

 The slippage in expenditure of £0.656M is associated with the Primary PFI whole life cost 
model to fund expenditure in future years.  

  
Business Improvement, HR and Communications (BIHR&C) – underspend of (£0.211M): 

 There are a number of vacancies across the Business Unit, (mainly due to early 
achievement of 2020/21 efficiencies) which is partly offset by an underachievement of 
income within the Health & Safety team due to lost business with Schools and NPS; 

 A sum of £0.107M will be required in 2020/21 to fund fixed term posts within the service. 

  
Legal Services –  underspend of (£0.094M): 

 Vacancy management and general underspend in overheads (£0.090M); 

 One off additional income received through entertainment licences and court fees as a 
result of an increase in the number of enforcements (£0.067M); 

The latest approved budget for 2019/20 for the Core Directorate is £14.922M.  The 

Directorate is forecasting an outturn of £13.399M as at the end of Quarter 1, 

resulting in an underspend before earmarking’s of £1.523M. Of this £0.763M is 

proposed to be earmarked resulting in an overall forecast net operational under-

spend of £0.759M for 2019/20.   

Page 34



21 

 Unforeseen cost pressures associated with a complex legal case £0.040M; 

 High levels of a printing due to the delays in implementing the new electronic case 
management system £0.023M. 
 

Elections – underspend of (£0.098M): 

 A one off underspend due to costs refunded via Central Government grant relating to the 
European Elections. 
 

Council Governance -  underspend of (£0.058M): 

 Early achievement of 2020/21 efficiencies offset by the loss of income from Sheffield City 
Region governance work. 
 

Approved Savings Position 
 
The Directorate had total approved savings of £0.270M to deliver in 2019/20. All savings have 
either been delivered in full or are on target to be delivered by the end of 2019/20. 

 
Current Actions and Future Risks 

 

 Technology -There is a common risk across the Core Directorate where there is reliance 
on technology to support delivery of future year efficiency savings. This risk cannot be 
mitigated by the Directorate alone and will be dependent on the outcome of the re-design 
of IT services and the ongoing work in support of the Digital First Strategy.  
 

 Capacity and staff turnover continues to be a problem, in particular within the Finance and 
Legal Business Units. Finance has recently undergone a major re-design of the functions it 
delivers, with the revised structure operational from October 2018.  This will allow delivery 
of 2020 efficiency targets and ensures the service is equipped to continue to support the 
delivery of the councils outcomes and  a sustainable basis in the future. Legal Services are 
in the process of implementing a minor restructure to increase capacity within the key 
demand areas Commercial, Planning and Safeguarding to ensure the service is equipped 
to support the Council effectively.   

 

 Health & Safety are reviewing income streams after the loss of SLA income from NPS and 
academisation. A full review of the service will be undertaken to mitigate these losses 
particularly in light of the transfer of the Occupational Health unit. 

 

 The transfer of Housing Benefits to the DWP will be further delayed; however funding has 
been earmarked in 2019/20 to help support this transition. 
 

 
  

Page 35



22 

 

 

SECTION 6  - Corporate Budgets 
 

Highlights   
 
 
 
 
 
 

Quarter 1 position to the end of the quarter ending June 2019 
 

Corporate Area 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved 
Net Budget 

2019/20 
(after 

Virement) 
 
 

£’000 

Projected 
Net Outturn 

2019/20 
 
 
 
 

£’000 

Forecast 
Deficit / 

(Surplus)  
 
 
 
 

£’000 

Adjustment 
for 

Slippage, 
Grant 

balances & 
Transfer to 

reserves 
£’000 

Operational 
Deficit / 

(Surplus) 
 
 
 
 

£’000 

Capital Financing 15,164 14,164 (1,000) - (1,000) 

CDC 766 766 - - - 

Levies 1,887 1,887 - - - 

Corporate Items (2,575) (2,575) - - - 

Provisions 1,194 (2,746) (3,940) 3,940 - 

Provisions – Pension 
Deficit 

7,068 7,068 - - - 

Contributions from 
Balances 

(22,731) (22,731) - - - 

Total – Corporate  772 (4,168) (4,940) 3,940 (1,000) 
 
Key Variances 

 
 The capital financing budget is expected to underspend by £1.000M due to the 

continuing low interest rates environment.  Such savings will reduce as the Council fixes 
more of its debt in line with the Treasury Management Strategy. 
 

 The £3.940M earmarking mainly relates to New Homes Bonus funding which currently 
forms part of 2019/20 reserves strategy. 
 

 Invest to Grow Fund  
 

 A total of £1.285M is allocated to be spent during 2019/20, with a further £0.088M planned  
in 2020/21; 
 

 £0.205M (16%) has been spent to date during 2019/20, with a further £0.829M (65%) 
proposed to be spent within this financial year. The remaining £0.251M (19%) is expected 
to slip into 2020/21 due to project and recruitment delays.  
 

 A full review of the allocated investments will be completed during the next period to 
consider any surplus funds or de-prioritised investments.  Any surplus funding will be 
subject to new bids for investment via the Commercial Board.  

Invest to grow fund Total 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

 £M £M £M £M £M £M 

Fund allocated 3.660 0.305 1.190  1.875 0.202 0.088 

Carry Forward    (1.083) 1.083  

Total Allocation Q1 3.660 0.305 1.190 0.792 1.285 0.088 

 

The latest 2019-20 approved corporate budget is £0.772M. Corporate budgets include for 

example, Capital Financing, Pension costs, Insurance, Levy’s etc.  An underspend of 

£1.000M is currently forecast (after earmarkings) for 2019/20. 

Page 36



APPENDIX 1

CORPORATE BUDGET MONITORING AS AT 30TH JUNE 2019

(col 1) (col 2) (col 3)

Transfers From: Transfers To: Net Effect

£ £ £

SECTION A - VIREMENTS FOR APPROVAL (JUNE):

Care For You 5,000-                  5,000-                

Care For You 5,000               5,000                

YOT KLOE 102,000-              102,000-            

YOT KLOE 102,000           102,000            

Kloe Investment tfr 52,507-                52,507-              

Kloe Investment tfr 52,507             52,507              

Highways Re-org 421,036-              421,036-            

Highways Re-org 421,036           421,036            

Demographics Home to School Transport 629,000-              629,000-            

Demographics Home to School Transport 629,000           629,000            

Demographics SEND 285,000-              285,000-            

Demographics SEND 285,000           285,000            

Inflationary Pressures 280,000-              280,000-            

Inflationary Pressures 280,000           280,000            

CCTV Transfer 32,140-                32,140-              

CCTV Transfer 32,140             32,140              

Business Support Officer Tfr 294,389-              294,389-            

Business Support Officer Tfr 294,389           294,389            

Chief Exec Support Trf 42,181-                42,181-              

Chief Exec Support Trf 42,181             42,181              

Westgate Plaze Lease tfr 966,125-              966,125-            

Westgate Plaze Lease tfr 966,125           966,125            

Public Health NLM Commercial Fund 20,000-                20,000-              

Public Health NLM Commercial Fund 20,000             20,000              

-                    

sub-total: Virements for approval 3,129,378-           3,129,378        -                    

SECTION B - VIREMENTS ALREADY APPROVED BY CABINET (JUNE):

Commercial Investment Fund Tfr 159,000-              1,709-                

Commercial Investment fund tfr to directorates 159,000 1,709                

2018/19 Earmarkings 22,731,404-         27,171,486-       

2018/19 Earmarkings allocation to directorates 22,731,404 27,171,486       

sub-total: Virements already approved by Cabinet 22,890,404-         22,890,404      -                    

SECTION C - VIREMENTS WITHIN DELEGATED POWERS (JUNE):

Sub-total: Virements within powers -                     -                   -                    

GRAND TOTAL - ALL VIREMENTS 26,019,782-         26,019,782      -                    

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2

DIRECTORATE / DIVISION OF SERVICE BUDGET VARIANCES latest

(col 1) (col 2) col 3 (col 4) (col 5) (col 6) (col 7) (col 8)

Original Net 

2019-20 Budget

Cumulative 

Approved 

Variations 

/Earmarkings        

April  - May

Approved 

Variations June

Revised Net 

Budget

Forecast Outturn 

June Variation

Adjustment for 

Slippage & 

Transfer to 

Reserves June 

2019

Operational 

Deficit / 

(Surplus)

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

DIRECTORATE

PEOPLE

BU1 Education and Early Start Prevention (Inc. Schools) 7,567,791 - 3,255,511 10,823,302 10,827,676 4,374 - 4,374 

BU3 Children Assessment and Care Management 25,720,831 - 8,512 25,729,343 25,729,343 - - - 

sub-total People 33,288,622 - 3,264,023 36,552,645 36,557,019 4,374 - 4,374 

PLACE

BU4 Regeneration & Culture 11,878,002 - 381,322 12,259,324 12,259,324 - - - 

BU6 Environment and Transport 26,030,236 - 2,136,213 28,166,449 28,578,449 412,000 - 412,000 

sub-total Place 37,908,238 - 2,517,535 40,425,773 40,837,773 412,000 - 412,000 

COMMUNITIES

BU2 Adult Assessment and Care Management 42,839,795 - 5,549,331 48,389,126 46,358,066 (2,031,060) (2,031,060)

BU7 Customer Services 2,808,935 - 703,760 3,512,695 2,914,162 (598,533) - (598,533)

BU8 Safer Stronger & Healthier Communities 4,225,490 - 3,978,336 8,203,826 6,486,571 (1,717,255) 1,720,000 2,745 

BU12 IT 8,613,534 - 263,495 8,877,029 9,268,128 391,099 - 391,099 

sub-total Communities 58,487,754 - 10,494,922 68,982,676 65,026,927 (3,955,749) 1,720,000 (2,235,749)

PUBLIC HEALTH

BU10 Public Health & Regulation 2,759,509 - 4,649,171 7,408,680 5,275,802 (2,132,878) 2,132,878 - 

sub-total Public Health 2,759,509 - 4,649,171 7,408,680 5,275,802 (2,132,878) 2,132,878 - 

CORE

BU13 Finance 2,161,379 - 1,600,156 3,761,535 2,807,751 (953,784) 656,140 (297,644)

BU15 Business Improvement, HR & Comms 4,845,475 - 852,379 5,697,854 5,379,986 (317,868) 107,091 (210,777)

BU17 Legal Services 968,389 - 143,771 1,112,160 1,018,114 (94,046) - (94,046)

BU18 Elections 696,798 - 104,906 801,704 703,391 (98,313) - (98,313)

BU19 Council Governance 1,702,822 - (52,507) 1,650,315 1,556,934 (93,381) - (93,381)

Joint Authorities 2,051,793 - (153,679) 1,898,114 1,933,245 35,131 - 35,131 

sub-total Core 12,426,656 - 2,495,026 14,921,682 13,399,421 (1,522,261) 763,231 (759,030)

OVERALL SERVICE TOTALS 144,870,779 - 23,420,677 168,291,456 161,096,942 (7,194,514) 4,616,109 (2,578,405)

Other Non Service Items

Capital Financing Costs 14,397,540 - 766,125 15,163,665 14,163,665 (1,000,000) - (1,000,000)

Corporate & Democratic Core & Non Distributed Costs 765,650 - - 765,650 765,650 - - - 

Levies 1,120,529 - 766,495 1,887,024 1,887,024 - - - 

Corporate Items (2,606,048) - 31,288 (2,574,760) (2,574,760) - - - 

Provisions 3,447,414 - (2,253,181) 1,194,233 (2,746,042) (3,940,275) 3,940,275 - 

Provisions - Pension Deficit 7,068,043 - - 7,068,043 7,068,043 - - - 

New Homes Bonus - - - - - - - - 

Contribution From Reserves / Balances - - (22,731,404) (22,731,404) (22,731,404) - - - 

sub-total Corporate Budgets 24,193,128 - (23,420,677) 772,451 (4,167,824) (4,940,275) 3,940,275 (1,000,000)

OVERALL AUTHORITY BUDGET 169,063,907 - - 169,063,907 156,929,118 (12,134,789) 8,556,384 (3,578,405)

G:\BTAccy\Revenue\BUDGETS\BudMon2003-04\Octoberbudgetmonitoring (new structure).xls (Appendix 2 -Rev Budget- June19)  01/08/2019  15:00

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3

DETAILED SERVICE VARIANCES @ 30th June 2019

ONGOING 

BASE BUDGET 

ISSUES

NON 

ACHIEVEMENT 

OF EFFICIENCY 

ISSUES

TOTAL - ALL 

BUDGETARY 

ISSUES

Adjustment 

for Slippage 

& Transfer to 

Reserves

Operational 

Deficit/(Surplus)

SERVICE / BUDGET HEAD June June June June June

PEOPLE - KEY FINANCIAL RISKS FOR 2018/19

ED People 

Pay and other strategic management costs 4,874                 4,874 4,874 

BU1 

Inclusion Services - agency costs (SEN) offset by savings on vacant posts 122,274 122,274 122,274 

Sufficiency - School Admission appeals panel expenses 7,608 7,608 7,608 

Education Welfare - staffing savings (24,911) (24,911) (24,911)

School Evaluation - underspend on external professional support to schools offset by 

lower schools clerking income
(60,789) (60,789) (60,789)

Targeted Youth Support - vacancy savings (21,334) (21,334) (21,334)

Other Minor Variances (23,348) (23,348) (23,348)

BU3

SD Management - use of social care support grant (98,901) (98,901) (98,901)

Assessment & Care - LIFT accommodation & Staff travel/Mileage costs 18,204 18,204 18,204 

Children in Care - LAC external residential care costs 403,881 403,881 403,881 

Children in Care - LAC fostering & other placement costs (161,751) (161,751) (161,751)

Children in Care - Other costs (CiC, fostering, adoptions teams) (102,618) (102,618) (102,618)

Safeguarding & QA - training income & staff vacancies (76,054) (76,054) (76,054)

Childrens Disability and Short Breaks - - - 

Leaving Care - support to care leavers (rent/accommodation costs) 17,239 17,239 17,239 

Total - PEOPLE 4,374 - 4,374 - 4,374 

PLACE - KEY FINANCIAL RISKS FOR 2018/19

BU4

Planning & Building Control - Staffing Costs (16,000) (16,000) (16,000)

Planning Fee Income - - 

Building Control Fee Income (13,000) (13,000) (13,000)

Other Miscellaneous (4,000) (4,000) (4,000)

Cultural Income 49,000 49,000 49,000 

Culture - Staffing (25,000) (25,000) (25,000)

Match Funding for Creative People & Places Bid (20,000) (20,000) (20,000)

Culture - Other Operating Overheads 29,000 29,000 29,000 

BU6

Contracts Management - Waste Disposal Costs 805,000 805,000 805,000 
Transfer Loading Station 134,000 134,000 134,000 
Bulky Waste/Bin Deliveries 63,000 63,000 63,000 
Purchasing & Supplies - Sale of Materials 80,000 80,000 80,000 
Commercial & Operational Services - Savings on Staff vacancies (56,000) (56,000) (56,000)
Car Parking - Fee Income (25,000) (25,000) (25,000)
Construction Services (530,000) (530,000) (530,000)
Highways Maintenance - Electricity Costs (181,000) (181,000) (181,000)
Highways Maintenance - Reactive Maintenance (66,000) (66,000) (66,000)
Highways Maintenance - Other (5,000) (5,000) (5,000)
Highways & Engineering - Savings on staff/Professional fees (170,000) (170,000) (170,000)
Highways Fee Income shortfall 144,000 144,000 144,000 
Travel Training shortfall 225,000 225,000 225,000 
Transport Consultant 24,000 24,000 24,000 
Bereavement Services Fee Income (50,000) (50,000) (50,000)
Other Miscellaneous 20,000 20,000 20,000 

Total - PLACE 412,000 - 412,000 - 412,000 

COMMUNITIES - KEY FINANCIAL RISKS FOR 2018/19

BU2

SD Management (404) (404) - (404)

Older People - direct payment clawback, increased client & health contributions (1,232,705) (1,232,705) (1,232,705)

Working Age Adults - increase health funding & direct payment clawback (699,995) (699,995) (699,995)

Commissioning - Staffing vacancies & contract savings (97,956) (97,956) (97,956)

BU7

Catering - loss of schools to external providers 56,000 56,000 56,000 

Provider Services Management underspend relates to closing ILAH bank account 

balance from closure of company in 2017/18

(172,000) (172,000) (172,000)

Day Services - staff vacancies & Transport underspend (312,000) (312,000) (312,000)

ALT & Reablement- staff vacancies + additional income from equipment rental (180,000) (180,000) (180,000)

Other<£50K each 9,311 9,311 9,311 

BU8

Think Family - grant underspend committed to be spent and earmarked to 2020/21 (641,000) (641,000) 641,000 - 

Safer Barnsley - Asylum Seekers & Housing New Burdens Grant underspend 

committed to be spend and earmarked to 2020/21

(324,000) (324,000) 324,000 - 

Stronger Communities - anticipated carry forward balances on commissioning and Ward 

Alliance budgets

(755,000) (755,000) 755,000 - 

Other<£50K each 3,000 3,000 3,000 

BU12

IT & Customer Services overspend due Vacancies underspend offset by computer 

projects and licences oversepnd

391,000 391,000 391,000 

Total - COMMUNITIES (3,955,749) - (3,955,749) 1,720,000 (2,235,749)

PUBLIC HEALTH - KEY FINANCIAL RISKS FOR 2018/19

BU10

Anticipated carry forward per 4 year plan - to meet future year costs (2,132,878) (2,132,878) 2,132,878 - 

Other <£50k each
Total - Public Health (2,132,878) - (2,132,878) 2,132,878 - 

CORE - KEY FINANCIAL RISKS FOR 2018/19

BU13

Vacancies (144,939) (144,939) (144,939)

Overachievement of Income (127,609) (127,609) (127,609)

Various Supplies & Services (25,096) (25,096) (25,096)

PFI Model (656,140) (656,140) 656,140 - 

BU14

Vacancies (194,947) (194,947) 49,091 (145,856)

Underachieved Income (H&S) 37,546 37,546 37,546 

BU15 -                     -                             

Vacancies (160,467) (160,467) 58,000 (102,467)

BU17
Staffing (68,237) (68,237) (68,237)
Services (22,000) (22,000) (22,000)
Legal Fees 40,265 40,265 40,265 
Printing 23,126 23,126 23,126 
Overachievement of income (Ent Licencing/fines) (67,200) (67,200) (67,200)
BU18

European Elections - previous yr spend (98,313) (98,313) (98,313)
BU19

Vacancies (69,381) (69,381) (69,381)
Various Supplies & Services (12,000) (12,000) (12,000)
Overachievement of income (Lord Lieutenant) (12,000) (12,000) (12,000)
Joint Authorities

Staffing (71,600) (71,600) (71,600)
Services 10,000 10,000 10,000 
Adoption Payment 35,000 35,000 35,000 
Unfunded Activities via SLA 61,731 61,731 61,731 

Total - Core Services (1,522,261) - (1,522,261) 763,231 (759,030)

Grand Total (7,194,514) - (7,194,514) 4,616,109 (2,578,405)

G:\BTAccy\Revenue\BUDGETS\BudMon2003-04\Octoberbudgetmonitoring (new structure).xls (Appendix 3 - Detailed Variances)  01/08/2019  15:01

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 4

KEY LINES OF ENQUIRY - VARIANCES AGAINST APPROVED BUDGET
£ £ £

Target Outturn Variance

PEOPLE

BU1 - Education & Early Start Prevention

BU1 E1 Co-location of the Targeted Youth Support Service 102,000 102,000 -                

BU1 E2 Increase income generation for services 65,000 65,000 -                

BU1 E3 Review current use of buildings in communities 30,000 30,000 -                

BU1 E4 Review current contracts and commissioned services 50,000 50,000 -                

BU1 E5 Review of staffing structures in Early start, prevention and sufficiency service 427,000 427,000 -                

BU1 E7 Review of education/schools support services funded through the Education Services Grant 370,000 370,000 -                

BU1 E11 Review current use of buildings in communities 80,000 80,000 -                

1,124,000        1,124,000        -                

1,124,000 1,124,000 -    

PEOPLE DIRECTORATE SUMMARY

KLOE's on target 1,124,000 1,124,000 -    

KLOE's delay in Delivery -    -    -    

KLOE's not on target -    -    -    

TOTAL PEOPLE KLOE's 1,124,000 1,124,000 - 

£ £ £
Target Outturn Variance

PLACE

BU4

BU4 - E4 (PLN) Community Infrastructure Levy Adoption 25,000 25,000 -    

BU4 - E5 (CROSS CUTTING) - IT Consolidation 11,000 11,000 -    

BU4 - E7 Capitalise the cost of the project managers working on specific capital projects e.g. Town Centre PH2, PIF PH2 220,000 220,000 -    

BU4 - E8 Markets Restructure 80,000 80,000 -    

BU4 - E10 Town Centre Events 50,000 50,000 -    

BU11 - E4a Minor Restructure in Shared Services 47,000 47,000 

BU11 - E4b Minor Restructure in Strategic Assets 23,000 23,000 

456,000 456,000 -    

BU5

BU5 - E1 Various Income Generation Proposals 95,000 95,000 -    

BU5 - E2 External Contributions 108,000 108,000 -    

203,000 203,000 -    

BU6

BU6 - E1 Various Income generation proposals 200,000 200,000 -    

BU6 - E2 Cross Business Unit Restructure 1,118,000 1,118,000 -    

BU6 - E7 PTE 3-5 Year strategic plan - Reduction in the levy through efficiencies in SYPTE 240,000 240,000 -    

1,558,000 1,558,000 -    

2,217,000 2,217,000 -    

PLACE DIRECTORATE SUMMARY

KLOE's on target 2,217,000 2,217,000 -    

KLOE's delay in Delivery -    -    -    

KLOE's not on target -    -    -    

TOTAL PLACE KLOE's 2,217,000 2,217,000 - 

£ £ £

Target Outturn Variance

COMMUNITIES

BU2 - Adult Assessment & Care Management  

BU2 E1 Targeted reviews - direct payments and high cost residential placements 150,000           150,000           -                

BU2 E6 Direct payment surplus draw-back and monitoring 200,000           200,000           -                

350,000 350,000 -    

BU7

BU7 E10 Day Opportunities and Enablement Teams 84,070 84,070 -    

84,070 84,070 -    

BU8

BU8 E3 Healthier Lifestyle Services: Phase 1 Efficiencies - Healthier Communities 400,000 400,000 -    

BU8 E5 Contract efficiencies 280,000 280,000 -    

BU8 E14 Safer Communities Out of Hours Service Review 10,000 10,000 -    

690,000 690,000 -    

BU12

BU12 Library Review 840,000 840,000 -    

840,000 840,000 -    

1,964,070 1,964,070 -    

COMMUNITIES DIRECTORATE SUMMARY

KLOE's on target 1,964,070 1,964,070 -    

KLOE's with Delays -    -    -    

KLOE's not on target -    -    -    

TOTAL COMMUNITIES KLOE's 1,964,070 1,964,070 - 

Page 43



APPENDIX 4

£ £ £

Target Outturn Variance

PUBLIC HEALTH

BU10

PH E2 Review of Contracts & Commissioning 96,000 96,000 -    

PH E3 (BU5)Various Efficiencies Regulatory Services 40,400 40,400 -    

PH E4 (BU5)Review of Management Structure within Regulatory Services 52,600 52,600 -    
189,000 189,000 -    

PUBLIC HEALTH DIRECTORATE SUMMARY

KLOE's on target 189,000 189,000 -    

KLOE's with Delays -    -    -    

KLOE's not on target -    -    -    

TOTAL PUBLIC HEALTH KLOE's 189,000 189,000 - 

£ £ £

Target Outturn Variance

CORE SERVICES

BU11 - BU19

BU7 E4 Reduce Resources in Customer Feedback & Improv. Team 31,486 31,486 -    

BU13 E1 Finance Business Unit - major restructure 239,000 239,000 -    

270,486 270,486 -    

CORE SERVICES SUMMARY

KLOE's on target 270,486 270,486 -    

KLOE's with Delays -    -    -    

KLOE's not on target -    -    -    

TOTAL CORE SERVICES KLOE'S 270,486 270,486 - 

OVERALL KLOE SUMMARY 2019/20

KLOE's on target 5,764,556 5,764,556 -    

KLOE's with Delays -    -    -    

KLOE's not on target -    -    -    

5,764,556 5,764,556 - 

100.0% 0.0%

£ £ £
Target Outturn Variance

Mitigations from prior years

BU6

Transfer Loading Station 300,000 30,000 (270,000)

Travel Training - Train 50 children 75,000 -    (75,000)

Contract Procurement 250,000 -    (250,000)

625,000 30,000 (595,000)

5% 95%

PLACE DIRECTORATE SUMMARY 2015 - 2019 Mitigations

KLOE's on target -    -    -    

KLOE's delay in Delivery 625,000 30,000 (595,000)

KLOE's not on target -    -    -    

TOTAL PLACE KLOE's 625,000 30,000 (595,000)

OVERALL KLOE TOTAL

KLOE's on target 5,764,556 5,764,556 -    

KLOE's with Delays 625,000 30,000 (595,000)

KLOE's not on target -    -    -    

6,389,556 5,794,556 (595,000)

Page 44



APPENDIX 5

Housing Revenue Account Position as at 30th June 2019

Original Forecast Variance Earmarkings Variance

Budget Outturn (Surplus)/ Deficit (Surplus)/ Deficit

2019/20 Jun 2019

£ £ £ £ £

Income

Dwellings Rent (67,821,511) (68,374,857) (553,346) - (553,346)

Non Dwellings Rent (360,560) (360,560) - - - 

Heating Charges (524,780) (524,780) - - - 

Other Charges for Services & Facilities (464,950) (464,950) - - - 

Contributions towards Expenditure (1,057,220) (1,057,220) - - - 

(70,229,021) (70,782,367) (553,346) - (553,346)

Expenditure

Repairs & Maintenance (including fees) 19,140,030 19,224,852 84,822 - 84,822 

Supervision and  Management 16,684,212 16,693,470 9,258 - 9,258 

HRA Share of CDC / NDC Total 211,905 211,905 - 

Rents Rates Taxes & Other Charges 251,175 251,175 - - - 

Provision for bad and doubtful debts 2,034,645 2,034,645 - - - 

Depreciation & Impairment of Fixed Assets 16,556,000 16,556,000 - - - 

Debt Management Costs 96,000 96,000 - - - 

54,973,967 55,068,047 94,080 - 94,080 

Net Cost of Services (15,255,054) (15,714,320) (459,266) - (459,266)

Interest Receivable (93,097) -93,097 - - 

Interest Payable and similar charges 11,113,620 11,113,620 - - 

MRP - - - - 

Premium Discounts 53,274 53,274 - - 

Contribution to Major Repairs Reserve 4,181,258 4,181,258 - - 

Revenue Contribution to Capital - - - - 

Total (Surplus)/ Deficit for the year - (459,265) (459,266) - (459,266)

Key:-

No Cause for Concern

Minor Cause for Concern

Major Cause for Concern

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

This matter is not a Key Decision within the Council’s definition and has not been included in 
the relevant Forward Plan 

 
Report of the Executive Director – Core Services & 

Service Director – Finance (Section 151 Officer) 
 

 
CAPITAL PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE – QUARTER ENDING 30 JUNE 2019 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
1.1. To consider the financial performance of the Council’s Capital Programme to the quarter 

ended June 2019 and assess the implications against the Council’s Medium Term Financial 
Strategy (MTFS). The key headlines are:- 

 

 The position of the Council’s Capital Programme for the 2019/20 financial year is 
currently projected to be an overall lower than anticipated expenditure of £6.219M; and 
 

 The position of the Council’s Capital Programme over the five year period to 2023/24 is 
currently projected to be an overall lower than anticipated expenditure of £1.872M. 

 
2. Recommendations 
 
2.1. It is recommended that Cabinet: 

 Note both the 2019/20 and overall five year Capital Programme positions; 

 Approve the 2019/20 scheme slippage totalling £4.347M (paragraph 5.4 and 
Appendix B refer);  

 Approve the total net decrease in scheme costs in 2019/20 of (£1.872M), which all 
relate to restricted funding. (paragraph 5.5 and Appendix B refer); 

3. Capital Programme & Funding Position 

3.1. The Council’s capital programme is planned over the five year period 2019/20 through 
2023/24 inclusive. Appendix A shows detailed plans per scheme under each respective 
Directorate. 

Directorate 

2019/20 
Capital 

Programme 

Later Years’ 
Capital 

Programme 

Total 
Capital 

Programme 
£M £M £M 

People 3.459 - 3.459 
Place 128.349 67.722 196.071 
Communities 8.792 - 8.792 
Housing Revenue Account 28.613 2.623 31.236 

Total 169.213 70.345 239.558 

 
 
3.2. The Council’s capital programme is funded from a range of sources. The table below shows 

the resources allocated to capital plans for the Council’s five year capital programme. It should 
be noted that this funding only relates to direct Council expenditure (or where the Council acts 
as the Accountable Body). A number of schemes also lever in private and public sector match 
funding but this is not reflected below unless the Council incurs spend. 

 

Page 47

Item 5



2 

 

Funding Source 

2019/20 
Planned 

Resources 

Later Years 
Planned 

Resources 

Total 
Planned 

Resources 
£M £M £M 

Capital Grants 34.222 6.745 40.967 
Third Party Contributions (Inc. S106) 6.054 - 6.054 
Capital Receipts 9.480 - 9.480 
Revenue Contributions 6.249 2.623 8.872 
Reserves 15.068 1.157 16.225 
Major Repairs Reserve 22.818 - 22.818 
Prudential Borrowing 72.844 59.520 132.364 
Leasing 2.478 0.300 2.778 

Total 169.213 70.345 239.558 

3.3. The pie chart below is a graphical representation of the 2019/20 resources in the table above. 

 

4. Approved Schemes During Quarter 1 

4.1 During the first quarter, only one scheme has been approved by Cabinet and is therefore 
included in the reported capital programme in section 3 above. The table below provides a 
reconciliation between the approved opening position and the quarter 1 position, with 
significant schemes shown separately: 

Reconciliation Between opening and Quarter 1 
Positions 

Directorate 
Approval / Cab 

Ref 

Capital 
Programme 

£M 

Approved Opening Position   220.488 

    
Approved Schemes During Quarter 1:    

Westgate Plaza Aquisition Place  19.070 

Total New Schemes   19.070 
    

Quarter 1 Opening Position   239.558 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

£34.222M, 20% 

£6.054M, 4% 

£9.480M, 6% 

£6.249M, 4% 

£15.068M, 9% 

£22.818M, 13% 

£72.844M, 43% 

£2.478M, 1% 
Capital Grants

Third Party
Contributions
Capital Receipts

Revenue Contributions

Reserves

Major Repairs Reserve

Prudential Borrowing

Page 48



3 

 

5. Capital Programme Monitoring Position – By Directorate 

5.1. The table below shows both the 2019/20 capital programme position and the overall, five year 
programme position as at 30th June. Appendix A shows detailed plans / outturn per scheme 
under each respective Directorate. 

Directorate 

2019/20 
Capital 

Programme 

2019/20  
Actuals 

2019/20 
Projected 
Outturn 

2019/20 
Variance 

Total 
Capital 

Programme 

Total 
Projected 
Outturn 

Total 
Variance 

£M £M £M £M £M £M £M 

People 3.459 0.263 3.001 (0.458) 3.459 3.001 (0.458) 
Place 128.349 33.228 127.781 (0.568) 196.071 196.003 (0.068) 
Communities 8.792 1.030 4.945 (3.847) 8.792 8.792 - 
Housing Revenue 
Account 

28.613 2.237 27.267 (1.346) 31.236 29.890 (1.346) 

Total 169.213 36.758 162.994 (6.219) 239.558 237.686 (1.872) 

5.2. The explanations for the 2019/20 variance of (£6.219M) and the overall net variance of 
(£1.872M) is shown in the table below and in more detail at paragraphs 5.3 - 5.6. 

  2019/20 Later Years Total 
  £M £M £M 

Reported Variance as at 30th June       

As a result of:   
 

  
    

 
  

Slippage:   
 

  
Place (0.500) 0.500  -  
Communities (3.847) 3.847 -  

Sub-Total (4.347) 4.347  -  
    

 
  

Re-phasing:   
 

  
Place - -  - 
Housing Revenue Account  - - - 

Sub-Total 
 

  -  
    

 
  

Funded Increases*/(Decreases**) in Scheme 
Costs: 

  
 

  

People (0.458) - (0.458) 
Place (0.068) - (0.068) 
Housing Revenue Account (1.346) - (1.346) 

Sub-Total (1.872) - (1.872) 

 
      

Total (6.219) 4.347  (1.872) 
 
 
**  The resources made available from these reductions in cost are restricted to specific areas / programmes by virtue 

of their conditions. The reprioritisation of these resources will be determined by that specific area / programme in 
due course. Paragraph 6.2 refers. 

2019/20 Position 

5.3. Overall, the 2019/20 position is currently projected as a lower than planned expenditure 
totalling (£6.219M), predominately as a result of slippage across various schemes. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 49



4 

 

5.4. 2019/20 Slippage 
 

Of the variation in expenditure against the approved plans, (£4.347M) relates to scheme 
slippage, where expenditure plans are expected to be utilised in a future year rather than the 
current year, due to events out of the control of the respective project managers. There are no 
financial implications in terms of the overall capital programme. The schemes that have been 
slipped are detailed below:  

 
Place: Cannon Hall Parks for People (-£0.500M) 
The slippage against the Cannon Hall Parks for People scheme is due to the unsuccessful 
tender process where no suitable proposals were received. The Heritage Lottery Fund insisted 
on a retendering exercise which has now been successfully completed. This has however 
delayed the project start date and slippage of £0.500M reflects the contract completion date 
running into the 2020/21 financial year. 
 
Communities: Disabled Facilities Grant (-£3.681M) 
Due to a significant roll forward of funding from 2018/19 to 2019/20 (mainly due to additional 
grant awarded to Barnsley late in 2018/19) the DFG programme is reporting slippage of 
£3.681M from 2019/20 to 2020/21. Recent changes to the framework contract, increased 
staffing capacity and localised decision making powers have all helped to speed up the 
process and reduce backlogs but at this moment in time it is only anticipated that the 2019/20 
programme of works will deliver against the current in year funding and it will take further time 
to reduce the balance of funding carried forward from previous financial years. This slippage of 
funding will give the team time to plan how previous years underspends can be utilised 
focusing on raising awareness on access to this funding and working in areas of greatest need 
across the Borough and supporting people with their applications.  

 
Recommendation 2 of this report is to formally approve the slippage of plans into later 
years within the capital programme as outlined above. 

 
5.5. 2019/20 Variation in Costs 
 

An amount totalling (£1.872M) relates to an estimated net decrease in expenditure across a  
number of schemes as a result of cost variations / scheme completion. The schemes that 
have seen a significant variance in 2019/20 are detailed below; 
 
People: SEND Capital Provision Fund (-£0.489M) 
This scheme relates to the SEND Resource Provision at Kendray which is reporting a 
decrease in scheme costs of £0.489M.  Ultimately, the Council also decided it did not need to 
commit to this investment as current data indicated that there are lower numbers of pupils with 
complex behavioural needs than originally projected and therefore wished to avoid oversupply 
for these types of places.  The funding previously set aside for this scheme will fall into 
restricted unallocated resources and will be subject to re-prioritisation.  
 
HRA: 19/20 Barnsley Homes Scheme – Penistone (-£0.563M) & Darton/Staincross (-£0.328M) 
The Barnsley Homes schemes at Penistone and Darton/Staincross have seen a reduction in 
overall costs due to a combination of customer refusals of work, the planned work not being 
necessary following inspection of the properties and ongoing scheme value engineering 
initiatives. The schemes are now forecasting a reduction in costs totalling £0.891 combined 
which will fall into restricted unallocated resources to be used on future projects.  A report to 
re-allocate these funds will follow shortly.  

 
Various: Others  
 
During Quarter 1, a number of individual schemes are also reporting minor variations (i.e. less 
than £0.2M) in 2019/20 amounting to (£0.492M) in total. Appendix B identifies these schemes 
individually. 

 

Page 50



5 

 

Where the funding is restricted in terms of what it can be used for, these resources fall back to 
specific directorate unallocated resources for utilisation in future periods. The resources 
relating to the reported net decrease of (£1.872M) relate entirely to restricted resources, which 
paragraph 6.2 refers. 
 
Appendix B identifies these schemes individually. 

 

 Recommendation 3 of this report is to formally approve the variation of plans within the 
capital programme due to cost variations as outlined above. 
 

5.6. Following approval of this report, the capital programme will be amended accordingly to take 
account of the variations as highlighted throughout. The table below shows the revised capital 
programme: 

 

Directorate 

2019/20 Q1 
Capital 

Programme 

Approved 
Changes 

by Q1 
Report 

2019/20 
Revised 
Capital 

Programme 

Total Q1 
Capital 

Programme 

Approved 
Changes 

by Q1 
Report 

Total 
Revised 
Capital 

Programme 

£M £M £M £M £M £M 

People 3.459 (0.458) 3.001 3.459 (0.458) 3.001 
Place 128.349 (0.568) 127.781 196.071 (0.068) 196.003 
Communities 8.792 (3.847) 4.945 8.792 - 8.792 
Housing Revenue 
Account 

28.613 (1.346) 27.267 31.236 (1.346) 29.890 

Total 169.213 (6.219) 162.994 239.558 (1.872) 237.686 

 
  

Page 51



6 

 

6. Unallocated Resources 
 
6.1. There is a balance of available unallocated resources at the end of quarter 1 in 2019/20 

totalling £12.359M as well as estimated resources expected to be available in future periods of 
£0.260M. This is over and above the funding identified at Table 3.2, all of which is ring-fenced 
as to how it can be spent. 

 
6.2. Members should note the distinction between resources ‘in the bank’ in 2019/20 and indicative 

allocations that haven’t yet been aligned to specific schemes. These allocations are due to be 
received in future years but are indicatively built into the programme at this stage.   These 
allocations are subject to change. 
 

6.3. The unallocated resources position is analysed in the table below which shows the funding that 
is restricted / earmarked to a specific area / activity. There are no unallocated resources that 
are unrestricted at this time. 

 

Restricted / Earmarked Funding 

 
2019/20 

Later Years 
(Indicative) 

Total 

 £M £M £M 

 
HRA 

 
HRA 

 
4.325 

 
- 4.325 

Highways Funding Place 0.263 - 0.263 
Section 106 Monies Place 5.736 - 5.736 
Schools Grants People 1.455 0.260 1.715 
Other Various 0.580 - 0.580 

Opening Resources Unallocated to Schemes   12.359 0.260 12.619 

     
Net Resources to be made available as per this Report (Paragraph 
5.6) 

1.872 - 1.872 

Increase / (Decrease) in Available Resources 1.872 - 1.872 

    

Revised Restricted Resources Unallocated to Schemes 14.231 0.260 14.491 

 
6.4. Following the approval of this Cabinet Report, restricted unallocated resources will increase by 

£1.872M due to scheme variations across the capital programme, as referred to in paragraph 
5.5. 

 
6.5. Ongoing reviews of existing resources/ unallocated balances will be carried out by the Capital 

‘Oversight’ Board. Any unrestricted resources will be considered as part of the update on the 
strategic reserves strategy. 

 
 
  

Page 52



7 

 

7. Capital Programme Monitoring Position – By Corporate Priority / Outcome  
 
7.1. The table below provides an analysis of the capital plans within the Council’s five year capital 

programme, identifying the capital resources that are aligned to achieving the Council’s 3 main 
Corporate Priorities and the 12 front facing outcomes. Any performance issues arising from the 
capital schemes assigned to each Corporate Priority are discussed within each relevant 
outcome section with material items referenced in the Corporate Performance Report. 
Appendix A shows detailed plans / outturn of the material schemes that are aligned to each 
Corporate Outcome.  

 

Corporate 
Priorities 

Corporate 
Outcomes 

2019/20 
Capital 

Programme 

2019/20  
Actuals 

2019/20 
Projected 
Outturn 

2019/20 
Variance 

Total 
Capital 

Programme 

Total 
Projected 
Outturn 

Total 
Variance 

£M £M £M £M £M £M £M 

 

(1) Create More & 

Better Jobs & Good 
Business Growth 

12.145 0.699 12.145 - 16.653 16.653 - 

(2) Increase Skills 

To Get More People 
Working 

- - - - - - - 

(3) Develop A 

Vibrant Town 
Centre 

69.915 28.780 69.915 - 128.385 128.385 - 

(4) Strengthen Our 

Visitor Economy 
5.529 0.100 4.961 (0.568) 6.578 6.510 (0.068) 

(5) Create More & 

Better Housing 
39.117 3.344 34.090 (5.027) 42.272 40.926 (1.346) 

Sub Total 126.706 32.923 121.111 (5.595) 193.888 192.474 (1.414) 

 

(6) Every Child 

Attends a Good 
School 

7.190 0.592 6.732 (0.458) 7.190 6.732 (0.458) 

(7) Early, Targeted 

Support For Those 
That Need It 

0.035 - 0.035 - 0.035 0.035 - 

(8) Children & 

Adults Are Safe 
From Harm 

0.061 - 0.061 - 0.061 0.061 - 

(9) People Are 

Healthier, Happier, 
Independent & 
Active 

0.838 0.115 0.838 - 0.838 0.838 - 

Sub Total 8.124 0.707 7.666 (0.458) 8.124 7.666 (0.458) 

 

(10) People 

Volunteering & 
Contributing 
Towards Stronger 
Communities 

- - - - - - - 

(11) Protecting The 

Borough For Future 
Generations 

34.057 3.118 34.057 - 37.220 37.220 - 

(12) Customers Can 

Contact Us Easily & 
Use More Services 
Online 

0.326 0.010 0.160 (0.166) 0.326 0.326 - 

Sub Total 34.383 3.128 34.217 (0.166) 37.546 37.546 - 

          

 Total 169.213 36.758 162.994 (6.219) 239.558 237.686 (1.872) 

 
 
 
  

Page 53



8 

 

8. Capital Programme ‘Oversight’ Board 
 
8.1. The Capital Programme ‘Oversight’ Board has oversight for the performance management of 

the Council’s capital programme including Sheffield City Region schemes where the Council is 
the lead Authority. 

 
8.2. The Oversight Board is particularly important in addressing the Council’s capital priorities over 

the planning period to 2022, especially with anticipated future funding reductions / changes. 
This is also the case in relation to capital resources that will be re-directed to City Regions as 
a result of local Devolution Deals and changing Government policies/ priorities. 

 
8.3. The Oversight Board continues to consider a number of detailed business cases relating to the 

2019 - 2022 capital programme as part of the budget setting process for capital, which relate 
to a wide range of capital investment. Subsequent reports will be presented to Cabinet to 
formally approve these schemes in due course. 

 
8.4. A further update of the Authority’s Reserves position is being prepared which includes an 

analysis of both existing and future resources. The strategy also considers prioritising Housing 
Revenue Account reserves and the use of Berneslai Homes’ company surplus against a range 
of emerging capital priorities. Members will be updated in due course. 

 
9. Background Papers 
 

  Service and Financial Planning 2019/20 – The Council’s Medium Term Financial 

Strategy – 2019/20 Budget recommendations (Cab.6.2.2019/6). 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 54



9 

 

Quarter 1 Capital Programme By Outcome 
 

 
 

OUTCOME 1 - CREATE MORE & BETTER JOBS & GOOD BUSINESS GROWTH 
 

Overall 
Financial 
Position: 

The financial position for Outcome 1, for both current year and overall is shown below. 
This outcome is currently forecasting an overall balanced position. 

A full list of schemes at outcome level is provided at Appendix A with the variance analysis shown in 
Appendix B. 

Directorate(s) 

2019/20 
Capital 

Programme 

2019/20 
Actuals 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

2019/20 
Variance 

Overall 
Capital 

Programme 

Overall 
Projected 
Outturn 

Overall 
Variance 

£M £M £M £M £M £M £M 

PLACE / CORE 12.145 0.699 12.145 - 16.653 16.653 - 

 

OUTCOME 1 – SIGNIFICANT SCHEMES / PROGRAMMES 
 
The most significant schemes / programmes for Outcome 1, in terms of value, are shown below, in respect of 
the financial position together with a commentary on progress during the quarter. 

 

Scheme / Programme: Barnsley Property Investment Fund Phase 2 

Overview: 

The second phase of the property investment fund scheme is aimed at accelerating inward 
investment and indigenous business economic growth. Specifically to move forward with the 
procurement activity relating to a relaunch of the fund, technical assessment of applications and 
identification of preferred schemes. 

Directorate: PLACE 

Financials: 
2019/20 
Capital 

Programme 

2019/20 
Actuals 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

2019/20 
Variance 

Overall 
Capital 

Programme 

Overall 
Projected 
Outturn 

Overall 
Variance 

Key: £M £M £M £M £M £M £M 

On Track / Underspend 2.012 0.004 2.012 - 2.012 2.012 - 
Minor Variance / Slippage 

Actual expenditure up to June 2019 on this scheme totals £0.004M against approved scheme plans 
of £2.012M. This scheme is currently forecasting an overall balanced position.   

Major Overspend 

 

Total Scheme Budget (inc 
previous years spend) 

£3.250M 

Operational Activity This 
Quarter: 

During quarter 1, progress has been made on the following approved PIF 2 Schemes 

 Capitol Park – This development has now been completed. 

 Everill Gate Lane – Planning permission has been submitted and an inception meeting will 
be held during quarter 2 19/20. 

 Enterprise 36 – Work has commenced on site and the developer is actively looking to 
secure end users for the units under construction. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 55



10 

 

Scheme / Programme: Strategic Business Parks 

Overview: 

The proposed employment sites at M1 J36 Hoyland; M1 J37 Barugh Green and Goldthorpe will be 
allocated as part of the emerging draft Local Plan 2014-2033, which is currently undergoing the 
Examination in Public, and we are awaiting the Planning Inspectors report.  
 
The overall delivery of the employment sites will be funded by Sheffield City Region Investment 
Fund (SCRIF) and Barnsley’s Jobs and Business Plan together with private sector investment in to 
the sites.  These projects will contribute significantly to the Council’s aspiration of creating 17,500 
new jobs over the next 20 years. 

Directorate: PLACE 

Financials: 
2019/20 
Capital 

Programme 

2019/20 
Actuals 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

2019/20 
Variance 

Overall 
Capital 

Programme 

Overall 
Projected 
Outturn 

Overall 
Variance 

Key: £M £M £M £M £M £M £M 

On Track / Underspend 0.949 0.132 0.949 - 0.949 0.949 - 
Minor Variance / Slippage 

Actual expenditure up to June 2019 on this scheme totals £0.132M against approved scheme plans 
of £0.949M. This scheme is currently forecasting an overall balanced position. 

Major Overspend 

 

Total Scheme Budget (inc 
previous years spend) 

£4.398M 

Operational Activity 
This Quarter: 

 M1 J36 Goldthorpe – SCRIF business case approved by Sheffield City Region and tender for the 
highway works issued. 
M1 J37 Phase 1 – Cross departmental working to seek necessary statutory approvals required. 
M1 J37 Phase 2 – SCRIF business case submitted to Sheffield City Region.  Ongoing refinements 
and appraisal clarifications. 

 

Scheme / Programme: M1 Junction 36 Phase 1 Hoyland 

Overview: 

The  Local Plan, adopted by full council on 3rd January 2019 CAB 12.12.2018/8  allocates 297ha of 
land for employment purposes,  including 110ha at Junction 36 Hoyland,  which can be developed 
up to  2033 to assist with the delivery of the overall Local Plan employment target of 28,840 jobs 
including around 16,920 net additional jobs. The overall delivery of the employment sites will be 
funded by Sheffield City Region Investment Fund and the Jobs and Business Plan together with 
private investment in the sites.. 

Directorate: PLACE 

Financials: 
2019/20 
Capital 

Programme 

2019/20 
Actuals 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

2019/20 
Variance 

Overall 
Capital 

Programme 

Overall 
Projected 
Outturn 

Overall 
Variance 

Key: £M £M £M £M £M £M £M 

On Track / Underspend 5.807 - 5.807 - 9.847 9.847 - 
Minor Variance / Slippage 

Actual expenditure up to June 2019 on this scheme totals £0M against approved scheme plans of 
£5.807M. This scheme is currently forecasting an overall balanced position. 

Major Overspend 

 

Total Scheme Budget (inc 
previous years spend) 

£17.101M 

Operational Activity 
This Quarter: 

M1 J36 Hoyland – Ongoing work with developers to progress draft masterplan for consultation 
over the summer 2019, subsequently leading to adoption by the Council in Q4 2019. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



11 

 

 
 

OUTCOME 3 – DEVELOP A VIBRANT TOWN CENTRE 
 

Overall 
Financial 
Position: 

The financial position for Outcome 3, for both current year and overall is shown below. 
This outcome is currently forecasting an overall balanced position.  

A full list of schemes at outcome level is provided at Appendix A with the variance analysis shown in 
Appendix B. 

Directorate(s) 

2019/20 
Capital 

Programme 

2019/20 
Actuals 

Projected 
Outturn 
2018/19 

2019/20 
Variance 

Overall 
Capital 

Programme 

Overall 
Projected 
Outturn 

Overall 
Variance 

£M £M £M £M £M £M £M 

PLACE / CORE 69.915 28.780 69.915 - 128.385 128.385 - 

 

OUTCOME 3 – SIGNIFICANT SCHEMES / PROGRAMMES 
 
The most significant schemes / programmes for Outcome 3, in terms of value, are shown below, in respect of 
the financial position together with a commentary on progress during the quarter. 
 

Scheme / Programme: Glassworks Development Phase 1 

Overview: 

Phase 1 of the Glassworks scheme is focussed on the redevelopment of the BMBC owned assets 
and land in Barnsley town centre. The investment to date has seen us complete the demolition of 
derelict and underused assets, the creation of two temporary markets to house the market 
traders. Significant progress has been made by the main contractor Henry Boot (appointed in 
February 2016). In train during the reporting period is the completion of the refurbishment of the 
Metropolitan Centre and construction of the Library@the Lightbox.  The construction of new 
public realm works on Cheapside is complete and design work continues for a new landscaped 
public open space (the Glass Works Square) and wider public realm improvements across the town 
centre due to additional allocation of resources to increase the area of the scheme. High quality 
car parking has been provided on the former CEAG site. These ambitious plans will boost 
regeneration, acting as a catalyst for further investment in the town. 

Directorate: CORE 

Financials: 
2019/20 
Capital 

Programme 

2019/20 
Actuals 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

2019/20 
Variance 

Overall 
Capital 

Programme 

Overall 
Projected 
Outturn 

Overall 
Variance 

Key: £M £M £M £M £M £M £M 

On Track / Underspend 7.357 3.356 7.357 - 7.357 7.357 - 
Minor Variance / Slippage 

Actual expenditure up to June 2019 on this scheme totals £3.356M against approved scheme plans 
of £7.357M. This scheme is currently forecasting an overall balanced position.  

Major Overspend 

 

Total Scheme Budget (inc 
previous years spend) 

£60.024M 

Operational Activity 
This Quarter: 

Overall the Glass Works phase 1 is making good progress, with real physical changes to the town 
centre visible above the hoardings.   
Library@the Lightbox 
Construction work on the library and adjacent restaurant unit have now been completed. Fit out 
work on the library has commenced in preparation for the formal Library opening mid-July. The 
adjacent restaurant was completed on the 1st April at which point it was handed over for tenant 
fit out. The restaurant – Falco Lounge – was formally opened 30th May.   
Metropolitan Centre 
Work in the markets elements of the Metropolitan Centre has now been completed, with the 
exception of the second phase of Market Kitchen. Construction work is continuing to the New 
Street Elevation alongside pre-letting activity for the retail units. Construction work to the retail 
units along Cheapside is continuing with some units achieving practical completion. The focus of 

Page 57



12 

 

letting activity is targeted at securing tenants for these units to compliment JD Sports who are 
already signed. 
Public Realm 
Public Realm works are now complete on Cheapside and May Day Green.  Detailed design work for 
Queen street has been completed and work will start on site in July 2019. The detailed design for 
the remaining areas will be completed to enable robust costings to be provided. The delivery 
phasing for the future public realm works will be determined by the construction activity on the 
Glass Works phase 2 and the Market Gate Bridge scheme. 
 
It should be noted that Henry Boots’ contractual key performance indicator targets for social 
value have not only been achieved but they have exceeded them in several areas. 
 
Demolition 
All demolition activity is now complete. 

 

Scheme / Programme: Glassworks Development Phase 2 

Overview: 

The Council has engaged with a private sector development management company to bring 
forward Phase 2 of the Glassworks scheme. This will include working with the Council to provide: 

 Fully tendered construction contract with a fixed price; 

 Pre-lets of the whole scheme,  

 A detailed financial model and cost plan 

 Management of the construction contract 

 Advice and guidance in respect of future Facilities and Asset Management arrangements 
of the Glass Works. 

The completed Phase 2 Glass Works scheme will deliver : 

 26 new retail units  

 4 leisure units including a 13 screen Cineworld and a  Super bowl Laser quest facility  

 7 restaurants  

 A 500 space car park 
These phase 2 elements will sit alongside  

 A new library & community facility (Library @ the Lightbox) 

 A new refurbished Market Hall and associated  Food Hall 

 A new Market Kitchen food court    

 A comprehensive programme of public realm for the scheme and wider town centre 

Directorate: PLACE 

Financials: 
2019/20 
Capital 

Programme 

2019/20 
Actuals 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

2019/20 
Variance 

Overall 
Capital 

Programme 

Overall 
Projected 
Outturn 

Overall 
Variance 

Key: £M £M £M £M £M £M £M 

On Track / Underspend 35.889 6.220 35.889 - 94.359 94.359 - 
Minor Variance / Slippage 

Actual expenditure up to June 2019 on this scheme totals £6.220M against approved scheme plans 
of £35.889M. This scheme is currently forecasting an overall balanced position. 

Major Overspend 

 

Total Scheme Budget (inc 
previous years spend) 

£105.923M 

Operational Activity 
This Quarter: 

Procurement activity to secure a Ph2 works contractor has been completed in Q4 of 2018/19. This 
has allowed the commencement of the first ‘enabling’ elements of ph2 construction to be 
commenced, including site remediation activity and installation of pilling matts and some initial 
pilling activity.  
Pre letting activity is progressing well with a number of deals at advanced stages and progressing 
to legal.   

 
 
 
 
 

Page 58



13 

 

 
 

OUTCOME 4 – STRENGTHEN OUR VISITOR ECONOMY 
 

Overall 
Financial 
Position: 

The financial position for Outcome 4, for both current year and overall is shown below. 
This outcome is currently forecasting an overall decrease in costs of £0.067M. These resources 
are restricted as to what it can be used on and therefore falls back into directorate unallocated 

resources. 
A full list of schemes at outcome level is provided at Appendix A with the variance analysis shown in 

Appendix B. 

Directorate(s) 

2019/20 
Capital 

Programme 

2019/20 
Actuals 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

2019/20 
Variance 

Overall 
Capital 

Programme 

Overall 
Projected 
Outturn 

Overall 
Variance 

£M £M £M £M £M £M £M 

PLACE 5.529 0.100 4.961 (0.568) 6.578 6.510 (0.068) 

 

OUTCOME 4 – SIGNIFICANT SCHEMES / PROGRAMMES 
 
The most significant schemes / programmes for Outcome 4, in terms of value, are shown below, in respect of 
the financial position together with a commentary on progress during the quarter. 
 

Scheme / Programme: Cannon Hall – Parks for People 

Overview: 

£3.2million Capital improvement scheme mainly funded by Heritage Lottery Fund of £2.9million, to 
renovate the lakes, external buildings and structures and to improve the landscaping with planting 
and infrastructure access and utilities – Activities and events scheduled to run throughout the 
scheme duration to improve visitor number and participation -Anticipated completion September 
2020 

Directorate: PLACE 

Financials: 
2019/20 
Capital 

Programme 

2019/20 
Actuals 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

2019/20 
Variance 

Overall 
Capital 

Programme 

Overall 
Projected 
Outturn 

Overall 
Variance 

Key: £M £M £M £M £M £M £M 

On Track / Underspend 2.348 0.041 1.842 (0.506) 2.348 2.342 (0.006) 
Minor Variance / Slippage Actual expenditure up to June 2019 on this scheme totals £0.041M against approved scheme plans 

of £2.348M. This scheme is currently forecasting an overall reduction in costs of £0.006M with 
£0.500M slipping into future years. 

Major Overspend 

 

Total Scheme Budget (inc 
previous years spend) 

£3.330M 

Operational Activity 
This Quarter: 

Contract 2 desilting the lakes has been finished, however Contract 1 Buildings was delayed due to 
a poor response to tenders, Contract 1 Buildings and Contract 3 landscaping went to tender in 
January with a successful outcome and both contracts have been awarded and have started on 
site, the project is now running approximately 9 months behind schedule, but still within the 
Funding deadline parameters. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 59



14 

 

Scheme / Programme: Replacement of Boilers - Metrodome 

Overview: 
Deliver the replacement of the heating system at the Metrodome utilising the EU compliant Re:fit 
Framework, work to be carried out spring 2019. 

Directorate: PLACE 

Financials: 
2019/20 
 Capital 

Programme 

2019/20 
Actuals 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

2019/20 
Variance 

Overall 
Capital 

Programme 

Overall 
Projected 
Outturn 

Overall 
Variance 

Key: £M £M £M £M £M £M £M 

On Track / Underspend 1.148 0.011 1.148 - 1.148 1.148 - 
Minor Variance / Slippage 

Actual expenditure up to June 2019 on this scheme totals £0.011M against approved scheme plans 
of £1.148M. This scheme is currently forecasting an overall balanced position. 

Major Overspend 

 

Total Scheme Budget (inc 
previous years spend) 

£1.200M 

Operational Activity 
This Quarter: 

DMT/SMT have approved the proposal including the funding proposals, BPL’s board separately 
approved the proposal. The paper will now go to Cllr Briefing and Cabinet in August. 
Legal work is continuing and we hope to have ‘agreed’ the contractual elements with Ameresco 
and BPL before the August Cabinet meeting pending its approval. At that point we will mobilising 
for delivery to commence in QTR 4.     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 60



15 

 

 
 

OUTCOME 5 – CREATE MORE AND BETTER HOUSING 
 

Overall 
Financial 
Position: 

The financial position for Outcome 5, for both current year and overall is shown below. 
This outcome is currently forecasting an overall decrease in costs of £0.1.346M. These resources 
are restricted as to what it can be used on and therefore falls back into directorate unallocated 

resources. 
A full list of schemes at outcome level is provided at Appendix A with the variance analysis shown 

in Appendix B. 

Directorate(s) 

2019/20 
Capital 

Programme 

2019/20 
Actuals 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

2019/20 
Variance 

Overall 
Capital 

Programme 

Overall 
Projected 
Outturn 

Overall 
Variance 

£M £M £M £M £M £M £M 

HRA / PLACE / 
COMMUNITES 

39.117 3.344 34.090 (5.027) 42.272 40.926 (1.346) 

 

OUTCOME 5 – SIGNIFICANT SCHEMES / PROGRAMMES 
 
The most significant schemes / programmes for Outcome 5, in terms of value, are shown below, in respect of 
the financial position together with a commentary on progress during the quarter. 
 

Scheme / Programme: Barnsley Homes Standard / Decent Homes Programme 

Overview: 

Berneslai Homes fulfilled its Decent Homes target by achieving full decency of HRA housing stock 
in December 2010. As the Decency Standard is essentially a time based elemental standard, when 
a number of elements in a property require replacement, because they are old and because of 
their condition, the property is said to be ‘non-decent’. It then requires improvement. The 
Barnsley Homes Standard (BHS) Programme improves these properties in planned improvement 
programmes, based on a whole house approach or elemental basis as appropriate.   

Directorate: HRA 

Financials: 
2019/20 
Capital 

Programme 

2019/20 
Actuals 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

2019/20 
Variance 

Overall 
Capital 

Programme 

Overall 
Projected 
Outturn 

Overall 
Variance 

Key: £M £M £M £M £M £M £M 

On Track / Underspend 15.733 -0.602 14.430 (-1.303) 15.733 15.430 (1.303) 
Minor Variance / Slippage Projected expenditure against these schemes totals £14.430M against approved plans of 

£15.733M.  An overall decrease of £1.303M is currently forecast against the schemes and is 
reported as part of this report. The decrease in scheme costs is planned to be reported to cabinet 
and approval requested to reallocate to priority projects identified by Berneslai Homes. The 
variance has arisen as result of surveys identifying planned replacements as not requiring 
improvements at this time. 

Major Overspend 

 

Operational Activity 
This Quarter: 

 Of the 8 schemes identified for the 2019/20 BHS programme, at the end of Quarter 1, 5 schemes 
are currently on site with the remaining 3 currently programmed for an July/August 2019 start on 
site. 

 

Scheme / Programme: Non Barnsley Homes Standard Programme 

Overview: 

The Non BHS schemes incorporated within the PRIP contact include:- 

 The Major Adaptations budget which assists people with specific identified needs within 
the Borough, allowing them to continue to live as independently as possible in the home 
of their choice. 

 The Replacement Items budget comprising items which are reported by tenants and 
subsequently on inspection deemed beyond repair. These are placed into a planned 
rolling programme of work throughout the year. Properties where BHS works are planned 

Page 61



16 

 

are excluded except in very urgent or emergency cases. 

 The Structural Extensive / Void Replacement Programme which allows for structural and 
replacement items in both tenanted and void properties where the existing property 
elements are beyond repair or dangerous. The budget allows for extensive works to single 
properties which do not lend themselves to ongoing or imminent programmed works. 

Directorate: HRA 

Financials: 
2019/20 
Capital 

Programme 

2019/20 
Actuals 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

2019/20 
Variance 

Overall 
Capital 

Programme 

Overall 
Projected 
Outturn 

Overall 
Variance 

Key: £M £M £M £M £M £M £M 

On Track / Underspend 7.435 0.611 7.392 (0.043) 7.435 7.390 (0.043) 
Minor Variance / Slippage 

Projected expenditure for 2019/20 on these demand led schemes totals £7.392M (against 
approved plans of £7.435M), giving an overall decrease of £0.043M. 

Major Overspend 

 

Operational Activity 
This Quarter: 

Progress against these budget heads is on programme with regular releases of work to partner 
contractors. All work is meeting time key performance indicators and costs expenditure is being 
monitored on a monthly basis.  Pressure has been experienced with a rise in demand for major 
home adaptations, attributable to the recognised ageing population and more older people living 
with long term health conditions, leading to an over expenditure in this budget area.  This trend is 
likely to continue and is being closely monitored. 

 

Scheme / Programme: Housing Growth Programme 

Overview: 

BMBC is committed to the delivery of both new build housing direct development, new build 
acquisitions and second hand property acquisitions to increase the availability of affordable 
housing in the borough and replenish some units sold via RTB. Funding has also been identified to 
support the Council’s strategic housing objectives in the public and private sector over a five year 
period to stimulate housing growth, make best use of our council land and assets and  contribute 
to our aspirational growth targets. 

Directorate: HRA 

Financials: 
2019/20 
Capital 

Programme 

2019/20 
Actuals 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

2019/20 
Variance 

Overall 
Capital 

Programme 

Overall 
Projected 
Outturn 

Overall 
Variance 

Key: £M £M £M £M £M £M £M 

On Track / Underspend 5.445 2.504 5.445 - 8.068 8.068 - 
Minor Variance / Slippage Actual expenditure incurred to date is £2.504M for 2019/20 against schemes currently approved in 

the housing growth programme. Forecasted outturn is projected to be £5.445M (against plans of 
£5.445M). 

Major Overspend 

 

Operational Activity 
This Quarter: 

Quarter 1 affordable housing completions are 30. They consist of 8 new build bungalows 
completed as part of the Council Build Programme, 7 Acquisitions and 15 homes delivered directly 
by our housing association partners and/or acquired as section 106 dwellings.  
 
There are currently 3x schemes on-site delivering 26 new build Council houses under 
construction, with all due to complete in early Q2.  
 
The Keresforth conversion scheme is progressing well, with all 12 properties due to be completed 
and let in Q2.  
 
There are currently two live Housing Association developments on-site delivering 94 new 
affordable homes for rent/sale. Both schemes have been delivered with support from the Local 
Authority.  
 
During Q1, planning approval and a GMP have been secured to deliver the next BHCS scheme at 
Kenworthy Road , Worsbrough, due to start in Q2.  
 
Feasibility work, Community Engagement and Pre-Planning discussions have also been completed 
for the next mixed tenure scheme due to come forward during 2019/20 – 38 units at St Michaels 
Avenue, Monk Bretton.  
 
As at end Q1, 26/28 properties at Blenheim View had been completed and sold.  

 

Page 62



17 

 

Scheme / Programme: SECTION 106 PROGRAMME 

Overview: 

Section 106 (S106) Agreements are legal agreements between Local Authorities and developers; 
these are linked to planning permissions when it is considered that a development will have 
significant impacts on the local area that cannot be moderated by means of conditions attached to 
a planning decision.   
The agreements will vary depending on the nature of the development and based on the needs of 
the district. The most common obligations include:- 

 Public Open Space 

 Affordable Housing 

 Education 

 Highways 
Monies received from S106 agreements are then allocated to schemes, which mitigate the impacts 
made by the development by making improvements to the local areas. 

Directorate: PLACE 

Financials: 
2019/20 
Capital 

Programme 

2019/20 
Actuals 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

2019/20 
Variance 

Overall 
Capital 

Programme 

Overall 
Projected 
Outturn 

Overall 
Variance 

Key: £M £M £M £M £M £M £M 

On Track / Underspend 3.055* 0.164 2.994 (0.061) 3.055 2.994 (0.061) 
Minor Variance / Slippage Actual expenditure up to June 2019 on these schemes totals £0.164M against approved scheme 

plans of £3.055M. These schemes are currently forecasting an overall decrease in costs of £0.061M 
which will fall back into the directorate unallocated resources. 

Major Overspend 

 

Operational Activity 
This Quarter: 

6 schemes valued at £172,000 completed during the 1st Qtr 2019/20, including an affordable 
homes scheme of 25 homes in Mapplewell, at a cost of £110,000. 
3 schemes have been approved with a value of £100,301, including support for improvements at 
Penistone Leisure Centre. 
We currently have 50 schemes in progress, with a budget of £3M and there is £4.77M awaiting 
allocation to suitable schemes. 

 
*Section 106 schemes are split across a number of outcomes but currently the majority of the overall budget sits under 
outcome 5.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 63



18 

 

 
 

OUTCOME 6 – EVERY CHILD ATTENDS A GOOD SCHOOL 
 

Overall 
Financial 
Position: 

The financial position for Outcome 6, for both current year and overall is shown below. 
This outcome is currently forecasting an overall decrease in costs of £0.458M. These resources 
are restricted as to what it can be used on and therefore falls back into directorate unallocated 

resources. 
A full list of schemes at outcome level is provided at Appendix A with the variance analysis shown 

in Appendix B. 

Directorate(s) 

2019/20 
Capital 

Programme 

2019/20 
Actuals 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

2019/20 
Variance 

Overall 
Capital 

Programme 

Overall 
Projected 
Outturn 

Overall 
Variance 

£M £M £M £M £M £M £M 

HRA / PLACE / 
COMMUNITES 

7.190 0.592 6.732 (0.458) 7.190 6.732 (0.458) 

 

OUTCOME 6 – SIGNIFICANT SCHEMES / PROGRAMMES 
 
The most significant schemes / programmes for Outcome 6, in terms of value, are shown below, in respect of 
the financial position together with a commentary on progress during the quarter. 

Scheme / Programme: School Condition 

Overview: 

The school condition programme (funded from DfE capital grant) comprises of a number of schools 
schemes that relates to, and addresses, the major defective building elements that have been 
identified as requiring urgent attention on Council Maintained schools. The schemes will ensure 
that pupils are taught in safe, dry, warm and bright environments. 

Directorate: PEOPLE 

Financials: 
2019/20 
Capital 

Programme 

2019/20 
Actuals 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

2019/20 
Variance 

Overall 
Capital 

Programme 

Overall 
Projected 
Outturn 

Overall 
Variance 

Key: £M £M £M £M £M £M £M 

On Track / Underspend 1.688 0.200 1.243 (0.445) 1.688 1.243 (0.445) 
Minor Variance / Slippage Actual expenditure up to June 2019 on these schemes totals £0.200M against approved scheme 

plans of £1.688M. These schemes are currently forecasting an overall decrease in cost of £0.445M 
which will fall back into the directorate unallocated resources.  

Major Overspend 

 

Operational Activity 
This Quarter: 

Work on the schemes making up the Schools Capital Maintenance Programme has continued 
through this period.  Tender prices have been received for 80% of the schemes, with the remaining 
20% due in the coming weeks.  All works are scheduled to be complete over the school summer 
holiday period. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 64



19 

 

Scheme / Programme: Additional Pupil Places 

Overview: 

The Authority has a statutory duty to ensure there are sufficient school places in the borough to 
provide appropriate education for its pupils. The Pupil Places programme comprised a number of 
capital schemes aimed at increasing the number of primary school places to meet increased 
demand. This is mainly achieved by providing additional classroom space in specific schools in 
areas of greatest need. 

Directorate: PEOPLE 

Financials: 
2019/20 
Capital 

Programme 

2019/20 
Actuals 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

2019/20 
Variance 

Overall 
Capital 

Programme 

Overall 
Projected 
Outturn 

Overall 
Variance 

Key: £M £M £M £M £M £M £M 

On Track / Underspend 1.676 0.063 1.662 (0.014) 1.676 1.662 (0.014) 
Minor Variance / Slippage Actual expenditure up to June 2019 on these schemes totals £0.063M against approved scheme 

plans of £1.676M. These schemes are currently forecasting an overall decrease in cost of £0.014M 
which will fall back into the directorate unallocated resources. 

Major Overspend 

 

Operational Activity 
This Quarter: 

Construction works have commenced on the final phase of work at Penistone St. Johns Primary.   
This will continue throughout the year, with a completion date of March 2020.     

 

Scheme / Programme: Penistone Grammar Extension 

Overview: 

Approval has been given for the publication of a Statutory Notice to enlarge the premises of 
Penistone Grammar School from a net capacity of 1,400 to 1,650 pupils with effect from 
September 2018. This increase in capacity relates to Years 7 to 11 only and will allow for an 
increase in pupils from 270 to 320, in the Year 7 intake from 2018 onwards. 
The scheme has been split into 2 phases: 
Phase 1 is internal re-modelling primarily to enable the School to accommodate the 50 additional 
pupils in September 2018 and as part of the long term plan. Construction works are underway. 
Phase 2 is an extension with a link corridor to the existing building to accommodate 50 additional 
pupils each year from September 2019 to September 2022. The detailed design has been 
submitted to the Authority and dialogue with planning has commenced. 

Directorate: Place 

Financials: 
2019/20 
Capital 

Programme 

2019/20 
Actuals 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

2019/20 
Variance 

Overall 
Capital 

Programme 

Overall 
Projected 
Outturn 

Overall 
Variance 

Key: £M £M £M £M £M £M £M 

On Track / Underspend 2.889 0.329 2.889 - 2.889 2.889 - 
Minor Variance / Slippage 

Actual expenditure up to June 2019 on these schemes totals £0.329M against approved scheme 
plans of £2.889M. These schemes are currently forecasting an overall balanced position. 

Major Overspend 

 

Total Scheme Budget (inc 
previous years spend) 

£4.226M 

Operational Activity 
This Quarter: 

Phase 1 
This scope of works is now fully complete and occupied by the school. 
Phase 2  
The Deed of Variation to the SPV One Project Agreement was executed on 15 May 2019 allowing 
Triton Construction Ltd to commence work on site. Due to the delay in execution of documents the 
expected completion date of the extension is now 20 March 2020 opposed to the original planned 
date of September 2019. A cashflow forecast of payments throughout the construction 
programme to be made to Triton has been provided. The majority of the professional fees have 
been paid. Other outstanding amounts that will be payable are for re-modelling of the kitchen 
within the existing school in the region of £100K and proposed works to the highway in the region 
of £200K. It is expected that the kitchen will be invoiced for in September 2019 and the highways 
work the latter end of this year. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 65



20 

 

 
 

OUTCOME 11 – PROTECTING THE BOROUGH FOR FUTURE GENERATIONS  
 

Overall 
Financial 
Position: 

The financial position for Outcome 11, for both current year and overall is shown below. 
This outcome is currently forecasting an overall balanced postion. 

A full list of schemes at outcome level is provided at Appendix A with the variance analysis shown 
in Appendix B. 

Directorate(s) 

2019/20 
Capital 

Programme 

2019/20 
Actuals 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

2019/20 
Variance 

Overall 
Capital 

Programme 

Overall 
Projected 
Outturn 

Overall 
Variance 

£M £M £M £M £M £M £M 

PLACE / 
CORE/ 

COMMUNITES 
34.057 3.118 34.057 - 37.220 37.220 - 

 

OUTCOME 11 – SIGNIFICANT SCHEMES / PROGRAMMES 
 
The most significant schemes / programmes for Outcome 11, in terms of value, are shown below, in respect of 
the financial position together with a commentary on progress during the quarter. 

 

Scheme / Programme: HIGHWAYS PROGRAMME 

Overview: 

The Highways Programme covers the whole range of highway asset infrastructure including 
carriageways, footways, bridges and structures (like retaining walls and fences), street lighting, 
drainage, traffic signals and signage. The schemes delivered through this programme maintain and 
improve these infrastructure assets. The programme is funded from Government Grants and 
Capital Resources from the Council. 

Directorate: PLACE 

Financials: 
2019/20 
Capital 

Programme 

2019/20 
Actuals 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

2019/20 
Variance 

Overall 
Capital 

Programme 

Overall 
Projected 
Outturn 

Overall 
Variance 

Key: £M £M £M £M £M £M £M 

On Track / Underspend 17.653 1.613 17.653 - 17.653 17.653 - 
Minor Variance / Slippage 

Actual expenditure up to June 2019 on these schemes totals £1.613M against approved scheme 
plans of £17.653M. These schemes are currently forecasting an overall balanced position. 

Major Overspend 

 

Operational Activity 
This Quarter: 

Schemes across the programme are progressing well. Work has commenced on the (electrical) 
preparatory works for the LED street lighting replacement programme along ‘A’ roads and the 
contract for the lantern replacement element of this work is currently out to procurement. 
Schemes on traffic sensitive routes are being planned for the summer holiday period to minimise 
impact on the network. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 66



21 

 

Scheme / Programme: VEHICLE REPLACEMENT PROGRAMME 

Overview: 
This scheme allows the replacement of 77 vehicles and ground maintenance equipment to be used 
by Waste, Neighbourhoods and Bereavement Services, Berneslai Homes and Norfolk Property 
Services for the period 1

st
 April 2018 to 31

st
 March 2019. 

Directorate: PLACE 

Financials: 
2019/20 
Capital 

Programme 

2019/20 
Actuals 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

2018/19 
Variance 

Overall 
Capital 

Programme 

Overall 
Projected 
Outturn 

Overall 
Variance 

Key: £M £M £M £M £M £M £M 

On Track / Underspend 2.193 - 2.193 - 2.193 2.193 - 
Minor Variance / Slippage 

Actual expenditure up to June 2019 on these schemes totals £0M against approved scheme plans 
of £2.193M. These schemes are currently forecasting an overall balanced position. 

Major Overspend 

 

Operational Activity 
This Quarter: 

This scheme was slipped into 2019/20 as a result of the long lead times on specialist vehicles. 
Eleven refuse collection vehicles with a value of £1,635,408 and grounds maintenance equipment 
with a value of £140,962 are due to be delivered in July 2019, all of which were ordered in 
2018/19. 
 
The remaining balance on the scheme of £416,630 is due to spent in 2019/20 on vehicles for 
Neighbourhood Services, Bereavement Services and Norse. Changes in department priorities and 
difficulties with suppliers have slowed the replacement process, but this situation should be 
resolved by the end of June and it is expected that the scheme will be fully spent by March 2020. 

 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A - Plan vs Forecast Per Corporate Priority

2019/20 Plan 2019/20 Actuals 2019/20 Forecast 2019/20 Variance Overall Budget Overall Forecast Overall Variance

(1) Create more and better jobs and good business growth

Replacement of Citrix Servers 9,077 0 9,077 0 9,077 9,077 0

Virtual Server Host Replacement 32,595 0 32,595 0 32,595 32,595 0

Cyber Security 154,920 0 154,920 0 154,920 154,920 0

SAP Success Factors 258,500 0 258,500 0 258,500 258,500 0

Enabling Digital Mobility 539,023 522,567 539,023 0 539,023 539,023 0

Communities Total 994,115 522,567 994,115 0 994,115 994,115 0

Penistone Market 900 0 900 0 900 900 0

Goldthorpe Master Plan- Eco Plan 38,475 0 38,475 0 38,475 38,475 0

Strategic Business Parks Eco Plan 949,485 131,775 949,485 0 949,485 949,485 0

Wombwell Library Extension 20,246 0 20,246 0 20,246 20,246 0

Project Management Costs 315,449 0 315,449 0 315,449 315,449 0

M1 Junction 36 Phase 1 Hoyland 5,807,103 162 5,807,103 0 9,847,070 9,847,070 0

J36 HCA Land Rockingham 290,365 2,217 290,365 0 290,365 290,365 0

Barnsley Property Investment Fund Phase 2 2,011,738 3,785 2,011,738 0 2,011,738 2,011,738 0

Courthouse Car Park Procurement 122,814 17,102 122,814 0 122,814 122,814 0

Superfast Broadband Phase 2 610,000 0 610,000 0 610,000 610,000 0

BBIC Phase 5 570,000 0 570,000 0 570,000 570,000 0

Acquisition of New Cremators 382,500 0 382,500 0 850,000 850,000 0

YEB Depot 32,016 21,200 32,016 0 32,016 32,016 0

Place Total 11,151,091 176,241 11,151,091 0 15,658,558 15,658,558 0

(1) Create more and better jobs and good business growth Total 12,145,206 698,807 12,145,206 0 16,652,673 16,652,673 0

(3) Develop a vibrant Town Centre

Digital Media Centre 10,000 0 10,000 0 10,000 10,000 0

Glass Works Development Phase 1 7,357,361 3,355,547 7,357,361 0 7,357,361 7,357,361 0

Market Gate Bridge 5,581,869 42,174 5,581,869 0 5,581,869 5,581,869 0

Glass Works Development Phase 2 35,889,158 6,220,215 35,889,158 0 94,359,158 94,359,158 0

Acquisition of the Core Building 0 53,250 0 0 0 0 0

Refurbishment of the Core Building 2,006,570 39,638 2,006,570 0 2,006,570 2,006,570 0

Westgate Plaza Aquisition 19,070,000 19,069,500 19,070,000 0 19,070,000 19,070,000 0

Place Total 69,914,958 28,780,324 69,914,958 0 128,384,958 128,384,958 0

(3) Develop a vibrant Town Centre Total 69,914,958 28,780,324 69,914,958 0 128,384,958 128,384,958 0

(4) Strengthen our visitor economy 

Visitor Economy Attraction 5,587 69 5,587 0 5,587 5,587 0

Cooper Cottage & Garden 224,328 357 224,328 0 224,328 224,328 0

Public Art Strategy Brassed Off 11,000 0 11,000 0 11,000 11,000 0

Barnsley Main 124,446 531 63,312 -61,134 124,446 63,312 -61,134 

Cannon Hall Parks for People 2,347,694 41,138 1,841,502 -506,192 2,347,694 2,341,502 -6,192 

Elsecar Master Plan 288,798 3,875 288,798 0 288,798 288,798 0

Pet Crematorium 6,170 299 6,170 0 6,170 6,170 0

Dorothy Hyman Football Pitch Refurb 691 0 691 0 691 691 0

Replacement Of Boilers At Metrodome 1,148,416 10,835 1,148,416 0 1,148,416 1,148,416 0

54 Affordable Homes - Athersley 118,716 0 118,716 0 118,716 118,716 0

RSPB Old Moor 25,000 25,000 25,000 0 25,000 25,000 0

Wentworth Castle & Stainborough Park 1,115,874 15,920 1,115,874 0 2,165,874 2,165,874 0

Elsecar Park Bandstand 10,132 20 10,132 0 10,132 10,132 0

Stairfoot Station Heritage Trail 8,000 0 8,000 0 8,000 8,000 0

Visit Darton 43,343 533 43,343 0 43,343 43,343 0

Worsbrough Mill shop refit 20,000 0 20,000 0 20,000 20,000 0

Stone Masons show room 30,000 1,198 30,000 0 30,000 30,000 0

Place Total 5,528,195 99,776 4,960,869 -567,326 6,578,195 6,510,869 -67,326 

(4) Strengthen our visitor economy  Total 5,528,195 99,776 4,960,869 -567,326 6,578,195 6,510,869 -67,326 

P
age 69



Appendix A - Plan vs Forecast Per Corporate Priority

2019/20 Plan 2019/20 Actuals 2019/20 Forecast 2019/20 Variance Overall Budget Overall Forecast Overall Variance

(5) Create more and better housing

Disabled Facilities Grant 6,657,263 428,565 2,976,280 -3,680,983 6,657,263 6,657,263 0

Communities Total 6,657,263 428,565 2,976,280 -3,680,983 6,657,263 6,657,263 0

Single Property Acquisition 324,436 268,504 324,436 0 324,436 324,436 0

New Build - General 0 533,537 0 0 0 0 0

New Build - Roy Kilner Road 55,929 436 55,929 0 55,929 55,929 0

New Build - 18 Locksley Gardens 628,557 83,412 628,557 0 628,557 628,557 0

Central Heating 0 12,199 0 0 0 0 0

Major Adaptations 0 68,544 0 0 0 0 0

Structural Extensive / Void Repl 0 79,159 0 0 0 0 0

Community Centre Rewires 0 -2,527 0 0 0 0 0

Environmental Imps 34,423 0 0 -34,423 34,423 0 -34,423 

Environmental Works Pearson Cresent 8,939 0 0 -8,939 8,939 0 -8,939 

Converstion 26-32 Rufford Av 10,527 147 10,527 0 10,527 10,527 0

Major Adaptaions 4 Orchard 1,458 42 1,458 0 1,458 1,458 0

50 Hope Avenue 2,283 416 2,283 0 2,283 2,283 0

Baden Street 188,723 160,360 188,723 0 188,723 188,723 0

Central Htg Prog 17/18 25,000 16,172 25,000 0 25,000 25,000 0

Sprinklers Independent Living Schemes 75,201 0 75,201 0 75,201 75,201 0

Bellbrooke New Build Bungalows 0 208 0 0 0 0 0

Lundwood Acqusitions 617,496 515,420 617,496 0 617,496 617,496 0

18/19 BHS Ardsley Kier 0 -295,522 0 0 0 0 0

18/19 BHS Athersley South CS 0 -4,634 0 0 0 0 0

18/19 BHS Bolton-On-Dearne Kier 0 -34,868 0 0 0 0 0

18/19 BHS Brierley CS 0 -466 0 0 0 0 0

18/19 BHS Burton Grange CS 0 3,358 0 0 0 0 0

18/19 BHS Darfield Kier 0 -32,946 0 0 0 0 0

18/19 BHS Goldthorpe Kier 0 -12,401 0 0 0 0 0

18/19 BHS Great Houghton Kier 0 -282,396 0 0 0 0 0

18/19 BHS Grimethorpe CS 0 -13,229 0 0 0 0 0

18/19 BHS Monk Bretton CS 0 -1,400 0 0 0 0 0

18/19 BHS Redbrook CS 0 -210 0 0 0 0 0

18/19 BHS Smithies CS 0 2,747 0 0 0 0 0

18/19 BHS Town CS 0 -15,905 0 0 0 0 0

18/19 BHS Wombwell Kier 0 -982 0 0 0 0 0

Major Adaptations 79 Beeston Sq 6,426 -324 6,426 0 6,426 6,426 0

Pilley Acqusitions 228,660 22,200 228,660 0 228,660 228,660 0

8a & 8b Park Road Thurnscoe 0 -53,648 0 0 0 0 0

Beevor Street Redevelopment (HRA) 0 13,796 0 0 0 0 0

Meadstead New Build 895,029 326,810 895,029 0 895,029 895,029 0

18/19 Central Heating Replacements 0 1,060 0 0 0 0 0

Woodhall Flats Conversion 0 -122 0 0 0 0 0

Fire Safety Works Sheffield Rd Flats 2,666 0 2,666 0 2,666 2,666 0

Conversion 20 Morrison Road 17,320 0 17,320 0 17,320 17,320 0

Keresforth Acquisition & Conversion 596,057 313,366 596,057 0 596,057 596,057 0

External Works Carlton Acq 47 Props 0 -252 0 0 0 0 0

Central Htg Prog 18/19 PH2 588,635 377,964 588,635 0 588,635 588,635 0

19/20 BHS Kendray CS 2,802,439 7,457 2,676,429 -126,010 2,802,439 2,676,429 -126,010 

19/20 BHS Penistone CS 1,339,676 3,604 777,017 -562,659 1,339,676 777,017 -562,659 

19/20 BHS Barsnley West CS 943,330 72 943,330 0 943,330 943,330 0

19/20 BHS Kexborough CS 1,831,665 703 1,820,648 -11,017 1,831,665 1,820,648 -11,017 

19/20 BHS Darton/Staincross CS 1,527,329 1,937 1,199,496 -327,833 1,527,329 1,199,496 -327,833 

19/20 BHS Wombwell Kier 2,833,945 2,078 2,833,945 0 2,833,945 2,833,945 0

19/20 BHS Great Houghton Kier 800,732 1,887 800,732 0 800,732 800,732 0

P
age 70



Appendix A - Plan vs Forecast Per Corporate Priority

2019/20 Plan 2019/20 Actuals 2019/20 Forecast 2019/20 Variance Overall Budget Overall Forecast Overall Variance

19/20 BHS Goldthorpe Kier 670,844 15,302 670,844 0 670,844 670,844 0

19/20 BHS Gas Elemental Scheme 994,154 14,486 852,391 -141,763 994,154 852,391 -141,763 

19/20 BHS Roofing Elemental Scheme 1,988,503 40,057 1,854,697 -133,806 1,988,503 1,854,697 -133,806 

Heather Court Lift replacement 35,750 336 35,750 0 36,070 36,070 0

Kenworthy Road New Build 437,158 4,636 437,158 0 437,158 437,158 0

Empty Homes Acquisitions 1,098,000 261,500 1,098,000 0 2,596,000 2,596,000 0

Section 106 Acqusitions 375,000 0 375,000 0 1,500,000 1,500,000 0

19/20 Replacement Items 1,539,000 0 1,539,000 0 1,539,000 1,539,000 0

19/20 Major Adaptations 2,007,000 36,039 2,007,000 0 2,007,000 2,007,000 0

19/20 Central heating Replacement 475,474 0 475,474 0 475,474 475,474 0

19/20 Structural Extensive / Void Repl 1,685,000 0 1,685,000 0 1,685,000 1,685,000 0

19/20 Community Centre Rewires 65,379 0 65,379 0 65,379 65,379 0

District Heating Hawthorne House 357,370 196 357,370 0 357,370 357,370 0

District Heating Bulk Heat Meters 75,348 0 75,348 0 75,348 75,348 0

CAPITALISED SALARIES 178,303 0 178,303 0 178,303 178,303 0

WORSBROUGH REGENERATION 40,000 0 40,000 0 40,000 40,000 0

District Heating 0 30,905 0 0 0 0 0

BHS New Starts 0 -276,250 0 0 0 0 0

11/12 Asset Management Database 12,333 2,000 12,333 0 12,333 12,333 0

CRS 190,893 7,247 190,893 0 190,893 190,893 0

Replacement Items 0 3,559 0 0 0 0 0

District Heating Elm & Maltas Court 600 30,845 600 0 600 600 0

Housing Revenue Account Total 28,612,990 2,236,619 27,266,540 -1,346,450 31,236,310 29,889,860 -1,346,450 

Affordable Housing Enabling 3,380 16,481 3,380 0 3,380 3,380 0

Affordable Warmth 295,673 6,872 295,673 0 295,673 295,673 0

LAIP - COALFIELDS/ELSECAR 65,000 0 65,000 0 65,000 65,000 0

ACCREDITED LANDLORD SCHEME 4,708 0 4,708 0 4,708 4,708 0

Local Growth Fund - Better Homes 104,876 505 104,876 0 104,876 104,876 0

Warm Homes - Healthy People Project 25,000 0 25,000 0 25,000 25,000 0

Longcar PDC Housing Development 1,107,564 536,427 1,107,564 0 1,107,564 1,107,564 0

Empty Homes 602,837 118,610 602,837 0 1,134,837 1,134,837 0

Affordable Housing - Lundwood Hotel Bungalows 100,000 0 100,000 0 100,000 100,000 0

Affordable Housing - Barnsley Community Build 450,000 0 450,000 0 450,000 450,000 0

Affordable Housing - Billingley View 1,087,753 0 1,087,753 0 1,087,753 1,087,753 0

Place Total 3,846,791 678,895 3,846,791 0 4,378,791 4,378,791 0

(5) Create more and better housing Total 39,117,044 3,344,080 34,089,611 -5,027,433 42,272,364 40,925,914 -1,346,450 

(6) Every child attends a good school

DFC - ALL SCHOOLS 0 112,200 0 0 0 0 0

SCHOOL ACCESS WORKS 3,176 0 3,176 0 3,176 3,176 0

HEALTH & SAFETY REACTIVE WORKS 57,177 63,949 101,772 44,595 57,177 101,772 44,595

Hunningley - Increase Admission Number t 1,571 0 1,571 0 1,571 1,571 0

Thurlstone Primary - Increase Admission 3,594 37 3,594 0 3,594 3,594 0

Milefield - Increase Admission Number to 67,699 23,000 67,699 0 67,699 67,699 0

Churchfields - Increase Admission Number 1,585 0 1,585 0 1,585 1,585 0

Wilthorpe Primary Roof/Building Repairs 273 0 273 0 273 273 0

Penistone St Johns - Increase Ad - P2 3,529 0 3,529 0 3,529 3,529 0

Penistone St Johns - Increase Ad - P2A 7,895 0 7,895 0 7,895 7,895 0

Penistone St Johns - Increase Admissions - P3 1,590,027 39,941 1,576,504 -13,523 1,590,027 1,576,504 -13,523 

Hunningley - Increase Admission - P2 29 0 29 0 29 29 0

P
age 71



Appendix A - Plan vs Forecast Per Corporate Priority

2019/20 Plan 2019/20 Actuals 2019/20 Forecast 2019/20 Variance Overall Budget Overall Forecast Overall Variance

Hoyland Greenfield - Drainage Repairs 951 0 951 0 951 951 0

Worsbrough Common - Convert Quas to Classroom 1,089 0 1,089 0 1,089 1,089 0

Shawlands - Remodel Entr/Office 3,888 42 3,888 0 3,888 3,888 0

Ladywood - Roofing 59 0 59 0 59 59 0

Millhouse - Emergency Lighting 1,182 1,159 1,182 0 1,182 1,182 0

Wilthorpe Infants - Boilers 15 0 15 0 15 15 0

Silkstone Common - Kitchen/Hall Floor 31 31 31 0 31 31 0

Hoylandswaine - Drainage/Resur/Wind/Doors 772 0 772 0 772 772 0

Millhouse -  Playground Repairs/Replace 1,314 0 1,314 0 1,314 1,314 0

Barugh Green/Cudworth Primary - Flood 20,400 10,137 20,400 0 20,400 20,400 0

Jump Primary - Replace Light/Ceilings P1 3,339 46 3,339 0 3,339 3,339 0

Oxspring Primary - Replace Fire Alarm 1,796 0 1,796 0 1,796 1,796 0

Athersley South Primary - Boiler Replace 11,317 4,893 11,317 0 11,317 11,317 0

Churchfield Primary - Boiler Replace 5,378 2,689 5,378 0 5,378 5,378 0

Wilthorpe Primary - Boiler Replace 10,242 3,651 10,242 0 10,242 10,242 0

Barugh Green Primary - Roof 5,153 0 5,153 0 5,153 5,153 0

Burton Road Primary - Roof 5,789 181 5,789 0 5,789 5,789 0

Gawber Primary - Roof 4,399 718 4,399 0 4,399 4,399 0

Milefield Primary - Roofing Works 137,828 0 137,828 0 137,828 137,828 0

Millhouse Primary - Roof - KS1 2,154 0 2,154 0 2,154 2,154 0

Summer Lane Primary - Roofing Works 1,321 200 1,321 0 1,321 1,321 0

Barugh Green Primary - Fencing 5,655 0 5,655 0 5,655 5,655 0

Milefield Primary - Playground/MUGA 4,585 0 4,585 0 4,585 4,585 0

Keresforth Primary - Replace Cladding 566 0 566 0 566 566 0

Jump Primary - Nursery Toilet Refurb 789 0 789 0 789 789 0

SEN Capital Provision Fund 650,428 0 161,055 -489,373 650,428 161,055 -489,373 

EHCP Hub 70,000 0 70,000 0 70,000 70,000 0

Ladywood Primary - Fire Alarm 42,000 0 42,000 0 42,000 42,000 0

Gawber Primary - Fire Alarm 42,000 0 42,000 0 42,000 42,000 0

Barugh Green Primary - Re-roofing P2 140,000 0 140,000 0 140,000 140,000 0

Athersley North Primary - Re-roof P1 50,000 0 50,000 0 50,000 50,000 0

Shawland Primary - Re-roof P1 32,000 0 32,000 0 32,000 32,000 0

Mapplewell Primary - Ballcourt Fencing 20,000 0 20,000 0 20,000 20,000 0

Thurlstone Primary - Hall Block 16,000 0 16,000 0 16,000 16,000 0

Burton Road Primary - Toilet Refurb P1 50,000 0 50,000 0 50,000 50,000 0

Keresforth Primary - Safety Glazing 16,500 0 16,500 0 16,500 16,500 0

Milefield Primary - Toilet Refurb 50,000 0 50,000 0 50,000 50,000 0

Millhouse Primary - Entrance 56,000 0 56,000 0 56,000 56,000 0

Oxspring Primary - Entrance 115,000 0 115,000 0 115,000 115,000 0

Silkstone Primary - Entrance 47,000 0 47,000 0 47,000 47,000 0

People Total 3,363,495 262,873 2,905,194 -458,301 3,363,495 2,905,194 -458,301 

Penistone Grammar Extension 2,888,549 329,158 2,888,549 0 2,888,549 2,888,549 0

Darton/Outwood/Carlton Add Pupil Places 762,589 0 762,589 0 762,589 762,589 0

Keresforth Primary School 150,000 0 150,000 0 150,000 150,000 0

Hoylandswaine Primary Community Room 25,615 0 25,615 0 25,615 25,615 0

Place Total 3,826,753 329,158 3,826,753 0 3,826,753 3,826,753 0

(6) Every child attends a good school Total 7,190,248 592,031 6,731,947 -458,301 7,190,248 6,731,947 -458,301 

(7) Early, targeted support for those that need it

Darfield Family Centre 35,000 0 35,000 0 35,000 35,000 0

People Total 35,000 0 35,000 0 35,000 35,000 0

(7) Early, targeted support for those that need it Total 35,000 0 35,000 0 35,000 35,000 0

P
age 72



Appendix A - Plan vs Forecast Per Corporate Priority

2019/20 Plan 2019/20 Actuals 2019/20 Forecast 2019/20 Variance Overall Budget Overall Forecast Overall Variance

(8) Children and adults are safe from harm

Better Care Fund - Market Place/Mob Working/NHS Num/Contact 59,001 0 59,001 0 59,001 59,001 0

Autism Innovation 1,999 0 1,999 0 1,999 1,999 0

People Total 61,000 0 61,000 0 61,000 61,000 0

(8) Children and adults are safe from harm Total 61,000 0 61,000 0 61,000 61,000 0

(9) People are healthier, happier, independent and active

Assisted Living Technology 35,442 7,736 35,442 0 35,442 35,442 0

Communities Total 35,442 7,736 35,442 0 35,442 35,442 0

Goldthorpe Recreation Ground MUGA 9,473 0 9,473 0 9,473 9,473 0

Provision of MUGA Grimethorpe 3,875 0 3,875 0 3,875 3,875 0

Former Yorkshire Traction Site Sheffield Road Public ROW Lin 105,977 56,937 105,977 0 105,977 105,977 0

Barnsley Boundary Footpath Improvements 10,000 0 10,000 0 10,000 10,000 0

The Mullins Anti-Vehicle Protection 7,427 0 7,427 0 7,427 7,427 0

Thurnscoe Park Infrastructure Improvements 2,749 0 2,749 0 2,749 2,749 0

Station Road Footpath - Royston 7,651 0 7,651 0 7,651 7,651 0

High Street Footpath repairs Royston 15,000 0 15,000 0 15,000 15,000 0

TPT Resurfacing Royston North 23,000 0 23,000 0 23,000 23,000 0

Royston Pavillion 8,991 1,642 8,991 0 8,991 8,991 0

Monk Bretton Park Improvements 664 0 664 0 664 664 0

Countryside Sites & POS 25,247 322 25,247 0 25,247 25,247 0

Play Development 2017 122,148 73 122,148 0 122,148 122,148 0

Grimethorpe Sports Ground 7,500 0 7,500 0 7,500 7,500 0

Penistone Managed Workspace P3 59,350 11,500 59,350 0 59,350 59,350 0

Playing Pitch Improvements 46,001 17,450 46,001 0 46,001 46,001 0

Pilley/Jubilee/Lidgett Rec Ground 3,169 0 3,169 0 3,169 3,169 0

Penistone Footpath Improvements 1,207 0 1,207 0 1,207 1,207 0

Footpath/Drainage - Vicarage/Park Lane 2,667 2,000 2,667 0 2,667 2,667 0

Sugdens Recreation Ground Car Park 32,000 0 32,000 0 32,000 32,000 0

Mapplewell Park MUGA & Gym Equipment 8,074 1,500 8,074 0 8,074 8,074 0

Barnsley Golf Course 28,893 550 28,893 0 28,893 28,893 0

The Dell, Red City Park 1,882 0 1,882 0 1,882 1,882 0

Dearne & District Welfare Pavilion 183,194 0 183,194 0 183,194 183,194 0

Barnsley Golf Club Improvements 63,788 15,154 63,788 0 63,788 63,788 0

Reds in the Community 22,971 0 22,971 0 22,971 22,971 0

Place Total 802,898 107,128 802,898 0 802,898 802,898 0

(9) People are healthier, happier, independent and active Total 838,340 114,864 838,340 0 838,340 838,340 0

(11) Protecting the Borough for future generations

Hoyland Nether Public Hall 3,572 0 3,572 0 3,572 3,572 0

Worsbrough Dale Pavillion 13,919 2,300 13,919 0 13,919 13,919 0

Pocket Peace Garden Cudworth Park 443 0 443 0 443 443 0

Carlton Park House 22,097 20,409 22,097 0 22,097 22,097 0

Ride on Mowers 39,449 39,394 39,449 0 39,449 39,449 0

Town Centre CCTV Upgrade 700,000 0 700,000 0 700,000 700,000 0

Communities Total 779,480 62,103 779,480 0 779,480 779,480 0

Planned Maintenance 1,982,397 346,404 1,982,397 0 1,982,397 1,982,397 0

Road Safety / Danger Reduction 75,000 10,543 75,000 0 75,000 75,000 0

Social Inclusion 0 12,483 0 0 0 0 0

Aids To Pedestrian Movements 0 162 0 0 0 0 0

New Footways 0 32,297 0 0 0 0 0

Cycling Facilities 147,203 1,150 147,203 0 147,203 147,203 0

Traffic Signals 110,000 149,856 110,000 0 110,000 110,000 0

Residual Exp On Completed Schemes 0 102 0 0 0 0 0

Fees For Future Schemes 80,000 1,474 80,000 0 80,000 80,000 0

Condition Surveys 0 6,754 0 0 0 0 0

P
age 73



Appendix A - Plan vs Forecast Per Corporate Priority

2019/20 Plan 2019/20 Actuals 2019/20 Forecast 2019/20 Variance Overall Budget Overall Forecast Overall Variance

Assessment Programme 100,000 76,949 100,000 0 100,000 100,000 0

Retaining Walls General 0 15,326 0 0 0 0 0

BIN REPLACEMENT PROGRAMME 284,766 69,207 284,766 0 584,766 584,766 0

Barnsley Hotspot Programme 0 11,952 0 0 0 0 0

Vehicle Replacement Programme 2,192,971 0 2,192,971 0 2,192,971 2,192,971 0

Carriageways Planned Maintenance 766,484 394,097 766,484 0 766,484 766,484 0

Footways Planned Maintenance 565,602 223,394 565,602 0 565,602 565,602 0

Street Lighting Planned Maintenance 400,000 20,000 400,000 0 400,000 400,000 0

Structures Planned Maintenance 120,000 12,712 120,000 0 120,000 120,000 0

Drainage Planned Maintenance 162,551 75,548 162,551 0 162,551 162,551 0

Traffic Signs & SNP Planned Maintenance 160,000 28,806 160,000 0 160,000 160,000 0

Key Route Barnsley to Wakefield 0 342 0 0 0 0 0

Monkton Colliery Bridge 20,000 0 20,000 0 20,000 20,000 0

LED Street Lighting Replacements 0 34,074 0 0 0 0 0

DFT Pothole Fund Scheme 218,272 47,717 218,272 0 218,272 218,272 0

Safety Barriers (PRN) 50,000 18,959 50,000 0 50,000 50,000 0

Traffic MGT - Server Upgrade 0 86 0 0 0 0 0

Principal Roads 0 74,906 0 0 0 0 0

Transfer Loading Station 650,740 7,137 650,740 0 650,740 650,740 0

Dodworth River Bridge No.2 (B4.119) 0 210 0 0 0 0 0

Oaks Lane Retaining Wall 0 14,445 0 0 0 0 0

Principal Inspections 60,000 6,623 60,000 0 60,000 60,000 0

Principal Towns 2,231,445 102,387 2,231,445 0 2,389,075 2,389,075 0

Car Parking (MSCP) Mitigations 0 43 0 0 0 0 0

Skid Resistance Programme 600,000 0 600,000 0 600,000 600,000 0

Planned Patching Programme 282,939 288,240 282,939 0 282,939 282,939 0

M1 J37 Phase 1 3,870,036 0 3,870,036 0 3,870,036 3,870,036 0

Ardsley Crematorium Car Park 3,000 3,000 3,000 0 3,000 3,000 0

Cemetery Improvements 28,833 27,417 28,833 0 28,833 28,833 0

M1 Junction 36 Phase 2 Goldthorpe 4,314,483 887,534 4,314,483 0 7,019,354 7,019,354 0

Group A Street Lights LED Replacement 4,198,430 53,788 4,198,430 0 4,198,430 4,198,430 0

Monk Bretton Cemetery Extension 40,452 0 40,452 0 40,452 40,452 0

Hoylandswaine Church Interior 25,615 0 25,615 0 25,615 25,615 0

Furlong Road 105,779 0 105,779 0 105,779 105,779 0

Wath Road 51,650 0 51,650 0 51,650 51,650 0

Pogmoor Road 175,544 0 175,544 0 175,544 175,544 0

Barber Street 70,528 0 70,528 0 70,528 70,528 0

Redthorne Way 50,204 0 50,204 0 50,204 50,204 0

Rotherham Road 63,013 0 63,013 0 63,013 63,013 0

Barnsley Road (Old) 117,762 0 117,762 0 117,762 117,762 0

Mortimer Road 117,865 0 117,865 0 117,865 117,865 0

Mossley Road/Hartcliffe Hill 83,948 0 83,948 0 83,948 83,948 0

Midland Road 60,637 0 60,637 0 60,637 60,637 0

Ardsley Road 105,011 0 105,011 0 105,011 105,011 0

Contingency 100,000 0 100,000 0 100,000 100,000 0

Private Streets 100,000 0 100,000 0 100,000 100,000 0

Medium Term Programme LRP CW 180,000 0 180,000 0 180,000 180,000 0

Lining Programme 200,000 0 200,000 0 200,000 200,000 0

Manor Park 117,923 0 117,923 0 117,923 117,923 0

Clarel Street 55,729 0 55,729 0 55,729 55,729 0

Highgate Railway Brdg Bearing Repl & Concrete Works 420,000 0 420,000 0 420,000 420,000 0

Keresforth Road Culvert Replacement 300,000 0 300,000 0 300,000 300,000 0

Lanbra Road Bridge VRS/Parapet Repl & Concrete Works 250,000 0 250,000 0 250,000 250,000 0

Mortimer Road Bridge 62,051 0 62,051 0 62,051 62,051 0

P
age 74



Appendix A - Plan vs Forecast Per Corporate Priority

2019/20 Plan 2019/20 Actuals 2019/20 Forecast 2019/20 Variance Overall Budget Overall Forecast Overall Variance

Cooper Lane, Hoylandswaine 60,204 0 60,204 0 60,204 60,204 0

Pontefract Road, Lundwood 60,204 0 60,204 0 60,204 60,204 0

Windmill Lane, Thurlstone 84,286 0 84,286 0 84,286 84,286 0

Local Roads Reactive Drainage 114,388 0 114,388 0 114,388 114,388 0

Land Drainage Reactive Works 60,204 0 60,204 0 60,204 60,204 0

Ben Bank Road (B6449), Silkstone Common 67,000 0 67,000 0 67,000 67,000 0

High Street, Goldthorpe 76,000 0 76,000 0 76,000 76,000 0

Neville Avenue, Kendray 57,841 0 57,841 0 57,841 57,841 0

A61 Harborough Hill Road 371,230 0 371,230 0 371,230 371,230 0

A6133 Old Mill Lane 100,000 0 100,000 0 100,000 100,000 0

A6133 Park Road 191,000 0 191,000 0 191,000 191,000 0

A628 Pontefract Road, Lundwood 256,037 0 256,037 0 256,037 256,037 0

A629 Jockey Road, Oxspring 574,892 0 574,892 0 574,892 574,892 0

A633 Grange Lane 150,000 0 150,000 0 150,000 150,000 0

A633 Remainder of Wombwell Lane 200,000 0 200,000 0 200,000 200,000 0

A633 Rotherham Road, Monk Bretton 203,835 0 203,835 0 203,835 203,835 0

A633 Wath Road, Wombwell 105,000 0 105,000 0 105,000 105,000 0

A633 Wombwell Bypass 550,000 0 550,000 0 550,000 550,000 0

A633 Wombwell Lane, Stairfoot 443,722 0 443,722 0 443,722 443,722 0

A635 Doncaster Road Ards to Grdn Cntre 330,000 0 330,000 0 330,000 330,000 0

A635 Doncaster Road Grdn Cntre to Cathill 335,000 0 335,000 0 335,000 335,000 0

Planned/Route based signage 100,000 255 100,000 0 100,000 100,000 0

Bridge Parapet Repair minor works 50,000 0 50,000 0 50,000 50,000 0

Street Name Plates 25,000 0 25,000 0 25,000 25,000 0

ITP - Laithes Lane Junction Signal Upgrade 300,000 0 300,000 0 300,000 300,000 0

ITP - Sheff Rd/Cote Ln Thurgoland Signal Upgrade 100,000 0 100,000 0 100,000 100,000 0

ITP - Royston to Smithies Cycle Deliverability/Feasibility 250,000 0 250,000 0 250,000 250,000 0

Medium Term Programme LRP FW 85,000 0 85,000 0 85,000 85,000 0

Safer Roads 1,400,000 0 1,400,000 0 1,400,000 1,400,000 0

Reseivoirs 48,163 0 48,163 0 48,163 48,163 0

Place Total 33,277,869 3,056,376 33,277,869 0 36,440,370 36,440,370 0

(11) Protecting the Borough for future generations Total 34,057,349 3,118,479 34,057,349 0 37,219,850 37,219,850 0

(12) Customers can contact us easily and use more services online

Libraries Mgmt Information System - LMIS 75,660 0 75,660 0 75,660 75,660 0

Replacement Programme for People's Netwo 33,865 0 33,865 0 33,865 33,865 0

Customer Services Project 216,020 9,521 50,000 -166,020 216,020 216,020 0

Central Library PM 153 0 153 0 153 153 0

Communities Total 325,698 9,521 159,678 -166,020 325,698 325,698 0

(12) Customers can contact us easily and use more services online Total 325,698 9,521 159,678 -166,020 325,698 325,698 0

Grand Total 169,213,038 36,757,883 162,993,958 -6,219,080 239,558,326 237,686,249 -1,872,077 

P
age 75



Appendix B - Variance Analysis Per Corporate Priority

2019/20 Variance 2019/20 Slippage
2019/20 Re-

phasing

2019/20 Variation in 

Scheme Costs
Overall Variance Overall Slippage Overall Re-phasing

Overall Variation in 

Scheme Costs

(4) Strengthen our visitor economy

Barnsley Main -61,134 0 0 -61,134 -61,134 0 0 -61,134 

Cannon Hall Parks for People -506,192 -500,000 0 -6,192 -6,192 0 0 -6,192 

Place Total -567,326 -500,000 0 -67,326 -67,326 0 0 -67,326 

(4) Strengthen our visitor economy  Total -567,326 -500,000 0 -67,326 -67,326 0 0 -67,326 

(5) Create more and better housing

Disabled Facilities Grant -3,680,983 -3,680,983 0 0 0 0 0 0

Communities Total -3,680,983 -3,680,983 0 0 0 0 0 0

19/20 BHS Kendray CS -126,010 0 0 -126,010 -126,010 0 0 -126,010 

19/20 BHS Penistone CS -562,659 0 0 -562,659 -562,659 0 0 -562,659 

19/20 BHS Kexborough CS -11,017 0 0 -11,017 -11,017 0 0 -11,017 

19/20 BHS Darton/Staincross CS -327,833 0 0 -327,833 -327,833 0 0 -327,833 

19/20 BHS Gas Elemental Scheme -141,763 0 0 -141,763 -141,763 0 0 -141,763 

19/20 BHS Roofing Elemental Scheme -133,806 0 0 -133,806 -133,806 0 0 -133,806 

Environmental Imps -34,423 0 0 -34,423 -34,423 0 0 -34,423 

Environmental Works Pearson Cresent -8,939 0 0 -8,939 -8,939 0 0 -8,939 

Housing Revenue Account Total -1,346,450 0 0 -1,346,450 -1,346,450 0 0 -1,346,450 

(5) Create more and better housing Total -5,027,433 -3,680,983 0 -1,346,450 -1,346,450 0 0 -1,346,450 

(6) Every child attends a good school

HEALTH & SAFETY REACTIVE WORKS 44,595 0 0 44,595 44,595 0 0 44,595

Penistone St Johns - Increase Admissions - P3 -13,523 0 0 -13,523 -13,523 0 0 -13,523 

SEN Capital Provision Fund -489,373 0 0 -489,373 -489,373 0 0 -489,373 

People Total -458,301 0 0 -458,301 -458,301 0 0 -458,301 

(6) Every child attends a good school Total -458,301 0 0 -458,301 -458,301 0 0 -458,301 

(12) Customers can contact us easily and use more services online

Customer Services Project -166,020 -166,020 0 0 0 0 0 0

Communities Total -166,020 -166,020 0 0 0 0 0 0

(12) Customers can contact us easily and use more services online Total -166,020 -166,020 0 0 0 0 0 0

Grand Total -6,219,080 -4,347,003 0 -1,872,077 -1,872,077 0 0 -1,872,077 

P
age 76



 

1 

BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
This matter is not a Key Decision within the Council’s definition and has not 
been included in the relevant Forward Plan 
 

Report of the Executive Director, Core Services 
and Service Director, Finance (S151 Officer) 

  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE - QUARTER ENDED JUNE 2019 

 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 This document reviews the treasury management activities carried out by the 

Council during the quarter ended June 2019, in accordance with statutory 
guidance. 

 
1.2 In broad terms it covers the following: 

 The overarching strategy for 2019/20; 

 An economic summary for the quarter; 

 An update on the Council’s borrowing and investment activities; 

 The Council’s Prudential and Treasury Indicators. 
 
2. Recommendations 
 
2.1 It is recommended that Members note: 

 The latest expectations for interest rates (as outlined in section 4); 

 The activities undertaken during the quarter to support the Council’s 
borrowing and investment strategies (as outlined in sections 5-6), and 

 The Prudential and Treasury Indicators set out in Appendix 1. 
 
3. The Agreed Strategy for 2019/20 
 
3.1 The Treasury Management Strategy identifies the key risks associated with the 

Council’s borrowing and investment activities and sets out how those risks will 
be managed. 

 
3.2 The Council’s borrowing strategy is about actively reducing its exposure to 

interest rate risk, whilst maintaining a small under-borrowed position in order to 
keep its financing costs to a minimum. 

 
3.3 The Council’s investment strategy is about minimising credit risk and 

maintaining sufficient liquid funds in order to meet its ongoing spending 
commitments. As such the pursuit of higher investment returns is a secondary 
objective. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 77

Item 6



 

2 

4. Economic Summary 
 

 
4.1 Interest rates are a key driver of the Council’s treasury management activities 

and as such are monitored by officers on a regular basis. This section covers 
both the recent movements in, and future outlook for interest rates, to provide 
context for the activities undertaken to date and planned for the near future. 

 
4.2 Due to the continued economic uncertainty, the UK base rate remained 

unchanged during the quarter at 0.75%. In the event of an orderly EU exit this 
rate is expected to increase (as early as September 2020), although the 
prospect of a no-deal exit appears to have increased as a result of the change 
in Prime Minister. 

 
 4.3 As illustrated in the chart below, there was a downward trend in PWLB* 

borrowing rates during the quarter, which reflects the general uncertainty that 
currently exists: 

 

4.4 That said, rates are still expected to rise over the medium term (see table below 
from the Council’s advisors), however the rate of increase anticipated is now 
much slower: 

 
Latest Interest Rate Projections (Link Asset Services) 

Jun-19 Sep-19 Dec-19 Mar-20 Jun-20 Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21 

Base rate 0.75% 0.75% 0.75% 0.75% 0.75% 1.00% 1.00% 1.25% 

5 year PWLB 1.41% 1.50% 1.60% 1.70% 1.80% 1.90% 2.00% 2.10% 

10 year PWLB 1.68% 1.80% 1.90% 2.00% 2.10% 2.20% 2.30% 2.40% 

25 year PWLB 2.30% 2.40% 2.50% 2.60% 2.70% 2.80% 2.90% 3.00% 

50 year PWLB 2.16% 2.30% 2.40% 2.50% 2.60% 2.70% 2.80% 2.90% 

 
 
 

Highlights: 

 Continued economic uncertainty resulted in a downward trend in borrowing 
rates during the quarter; 

 Rates are still expected to rise over the medium term; however the rate of 
increase anticipated is now much slower. 

* The Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) is an Executive Agency of HM Treasury whose 
primary function is to lend money to local authorities. Page 78



 

3 

5. Borrowing Activity 
 

 
5.1 As outlined previously (see paragraph 3.2), the Council’s borrowing strategy is 

to actively reduce its exposure to interest rate risk, whilst maintaining a small 
under-borrowed* position to keep its financing costs to a minimum.  

 
5.2 No long term borrowing was undertaken during the quarter (appendix 2 refers), 

particularly in light of the recent change in interest rate environment (see 
section 4). In addition, the Council is on track to achieve its exposure targets for 
2019/20 (paragraphs 5.5-5.6 refer), and is currently managing a substantial 
amount of temporary cash (section 6 refers). As such, no long term borrowing 
is planned for the immediate future. 

 
5.3 However, based on current projections, the Council may need to borrow up to 

£215M by the end of 2021/22, with the majority of this requirement arising next 
year: 

 

 
 

 
 
 

Highlights: 

 No long term borrowing was carried out during the quarter, particularly in 
light of the recent change in interest rate environment; 

 The Council is on track to achieve its exposure targets in 2019/20, therefore 
no borrowing is planned for the immediate future; 

 However, based on current projections, the Council may be need to borrow 
up to £215M by the end of 2021/22 (£68M of which may arise in 2019/20); 

 Officers will monitor this position closely throughout the year in the context 
of the prevailing interest rate environment, and explore any opportunities to 

fix out this borrowing requirement. 

* The term under-borrowed refers to the temporary use of internal cash resources (e.g. 
earmarked reserves or grants received in advance of expenditure) to support its 
borrowing requirement, which enables the Council to defer an element of long term 
borrowing until its spending commitments occur (thereby reducing credit risk and any 
cost of carry).  
 Page 79



 

4 

5.4 As outlined below and in paragraph 5.3, the Council’s borrowing requirement is 
significantly influenced by its planned capital investment, maturing loans and 
use of reserves throughout the period. Whilst the timing of maturing loans is 
known the rest is subject to change, and as such will be monitored closely 
throughout the year in the context of the prevailing interest rate environment: 

 
Projected external borrowing requirement through to 2021/22 £M 

Planned capital investment 148.777 

Maturing loans / support from useable reserves 118.615 

Amounts set aside to repay debt (12.189) 

Loans secured but not yet drawn down (40.000) 

Total 215.203 

 
5.5 As a minimum, the Council has committed to reducing its exposure to interest 

rate risk over the period to within 30% of its borrowing requirement, which 
includes any external borrowing which is subject to interest rate risk (based on 
the Council’s temporary, variable rate and LOBO loans), and the Council’s 
under-borrowed position - which at some point will need financing through 
external borrowing. 

 
5.6 As shown in the chart at paragraph 5.3, the Council may have a borrowing 

requirement of some £68M in 2019/20; however it will stay within its target of 
30% irrespective of how this is financed, owing to the £148M fixed out last year. 
In light of the current interest rate environment, officers would if required look to 
draw down on the Council’s investments in the first instance (in order to meet 
this borrowing requirement), but may look to change this approach should the 
expectations around future interest rate rises change. 

 
5.7 To deliver against its strategy and targets throughout the period, it is anticipated 

that the Council will need to fix out up to £82M (of the £215M identified in 
paragraphs 5.3-5.4), with the majority of this requirement arising next year: 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 80



 

5 

5.8 The options set out in the Council’s borrowing strategy are as follows: 
 

 Further deferred loans - these allow the Council to borrow at a fixed rate - 
typically 0.15-0.20% above PWLB - and draw down the cash up to 4 years in 
advance, thus protecting the Council from any sudden interest rate rises whilst 
reducing cost of carry and counterparty risk. The Council has secured £40M 
to date and will continue to work with its advisors in order to identify any other 
potential lenders. 

 Loans from other local authorities - the Council could look to replace some 
maturing debt with longer-term loans from other local authorities, which would 
help to spread refinancing risk whilst reducing the cost of carry (the interest 
rates on these loans are typically much lower than the longer term PWLB 
loans). 

 Fixed-rate borrowing from the PWLB - the Council borrowed £148M from 
the PWLB during 2018/19 at an average rate of 2.57%; whilst rates are still 
relatively low this continues to be a suitable option for the Council to consider. 

 Refinancing of existing debt - Officers have recently taken an opportunity to 
refinance one of its LOBOs which reduced the Council’s exposure to interest 
rate risk whilst resulting in a small annual saving on its capital financing costs. 
It has also refinanced its Building Schools for the Future PFI programme in 
conjunction with the Local Education Partnership, creating additional savings 
for the Council and key partners which have been factored into the Council’s 
MTFS. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



 

6 

6. Investment Activity 
 

 
6.1 The Council’s investment strategy is to ensure its cash balances are invested 

prudently and are available when needed to meet its spending commitments. In 
November 2018 the Council approved several changes to its counterparty limits 
to ensure that it could safely accommodate its increased cash balances going 
forwards - these limits have been incorporated into the 2019/20 strategy. 

 
6.2 The key investment issues for the Council to manage in future are as follows: 

1. Money Market Fund (MMF) Reforms - the Council’s Money Market Funds 
converted to a new structure in early 2019, known as LVNAV funds. In order 
to maintain their status as LVNAV funds there are a number of requirements 
that must be satisfied. Whilst there are no issues foreseen at present (these 
funds typically operate well within the parameters set), officers will monitor 
the funds closely over the coming months to identify any potential risks going 
forwards. 

2. IFRS9 Financial Instruments - this was a new accounting standard for 
2018/19 which changed the way that certain investments were categorised 
and valued. It also required the Council to recognise any potential losses on 
investment through its General Fund.  This resulted in a reduction in fair 
value of equity investments of £0.3M (no impact on the general fund) and a 
loss allowance of £0.5M. Officers will monitor this position on a regular basis 
to identify any further potential risks to the General Fund budget. 

3. Local Authority Creditworthiness - a number of local authorities have 
been in the spotlight which has raised the question as to whether they are a 
safe investment. Whilst there are no issues foreseen as present (there are 
regulations in place to avoid local authorities going bankrupt), officers 
recognise the reputational risk associated with such investments. 

 
6.3 To reflect the agreed strategy and challenges set out above, the majority of 

new investments are placed in secure Money Market Funds and instant access 
accounts (see appendix 2 for further details). In order to safely accommodate 
its increased cash balances, the Council has also placed a significant level of 
short terms deposits with reputable banks and other local authorities, which 
also helps to boost investment returns whilst the cash is needed to meet its 
spending commitments. 

 
 
 
 

Highlights: 

 Security and liquidity remained the key investment priorities, with the 
majority of new investments placed in secure Money Market Funds and 
instant access accounts (appendix 2 refers); 

 Officers continued to take advantage of the competitive rates offered on 
short term local authority deposits. 

Page 82



 

7 

7. Performance Measurement / Compliance with Prudential and Treasury 
Limits 

 
7.1 The Council’s capital financing budget is projected to underspend by around 

£1M in year, as a result of deferring further long term borrowing. As referred to 
in section 5, the Council fixed out a significant proportion of its borrowing 
requirement in 2018/19, and is on track to meet its exposure targets in 2019/20. 
As such the plan is to defer further long term borrowing until the Council’s 
reserves are depleted or interest rates are expected to rise quickly. 

. 
7.2 The Council has operated within the prudential and treasury indicators set out 

in the agreed strategy and in compliance with the Council's Treasury 
Management Practices (see Appendix 1 for more details). 

 
8. Consultations 
 
8.1 This report has been prepared using information supplied by Link Asset 

Services and approved by the Treasury Management Panel. 
 
9. Financial Implications 
 
9.1 The financial implications arising from the Council’s treasury management 

activities (section 7 refers) are reported to Cabinet quarterly as part of the 
Council’s Corporate Financial Performance Report. 

 
10. Employee Implications 
 
10.1 None arising from this report. 
 
11. Regulatory Framework & Risk Assessment 
 
11.1 The Council has adopted the statutory guidance issued by the Chartered 

Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Ministry of 
Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), which seeks to 
ensure that its capital expenditure and borrowing are prudent, affordable and 
sustainable, and its treasury practices demonstrate a low risk approach. 

 
11.2 The Council is aware of the risks of passive management of the treasury 

portfolio and, with the support of its Treasury Management advisers, has 
proactively managed the debt and investments over the year. 

 
11.3 Treasury Management is subject to annual inspection from the Council’s 

Internal Audit function, and Treasury Management risks are identified and 
monitored as part of the Council’s overall approach to managing risk. The 
current assessment of Treasury Management systems is ‘substantial’, with no 
outstanding recommendations. 

 
12. Background Papers 
 
12.1 Various Financial Services working papers

Page 83



 

APPENDIX 1 - PRUDENTIAL AND TREASURY INDICATORS 
 

Prudential Indicators 
Limit for 
2019/20 
 (£M) 

Quarter 1 
Actual 
(£M) 

Compliance 
with 
Indicator? 

Average Debt to Operational Boundary 1,000.971 875.512 Yes 

Maximum Debt to Authorised Limit 1,030.971 882.621 Yes 

      

Maturity structure of GF 
borrowing 

Lower 
Limit (%) 

Upper 
Limit (%) 

Quarter 1 
Actual 
(£M) 

Quarter 1 
Actual 
(%) 

Compliance 
with 
Indicator? 

Under 12 months 0 50 45.965 11 Yes 

12 months to 2 years 0 25 20.000 5 Yes 

2 years to 5 years 0 25 36.194 9 Yes 

5 years to 10 years 0 25 12.838 3 Yes 

10 years to 20 years 0 75 8.391 2 Yes 

20 years to 30 years 0 75 24.070 6 Yes 

30 years to 40 years 0 75 82.466 21 Yes 

40 years to 50 years 0 75 171.714 43 Yes 

      

Maturity structure of HRA 
borrowing 

Lower 
Limit (%) 

Upper 
Limit (%) 

Quarter 1 
Actual 
(£M) 

Quarter 1 
Actual 
(%) 

Compliance 
with 
Indicator? 

Under 12 months 0 25 47.939 18 Yes 

12 months to 2 years 0 25 0 0 Yes 

2 years to 5 years 0 25 18.654 7 Yes 

5 years to 10 years 0 25 16.962 6 Yes 

10 years to 20 years 0 75 8.571 3 Yes 

20 years to 30 years 0 75 31.712 12 Yes 

30 years to 40 years 0 75 109.934 42 Yes 

40 years to 50 years 0 75 31.816 12 Yes 

 

Page 84



 

Treasury Indicators 
Limit for 
2019/20 
 (%) 

Quarter 1 
Actual 
(%) 

Compliance 
with 
Indicator? 

GF      

Upper limit of fixed interest rates based on gross 
debt 

100 91 Yes 

Upper limit of variable interest rates based on gross 
debt 

15 9 Yes 

HRA      

Upper limit of fixed interest rates based on gross 
debt 

100 83 Yes 

Upper limit of variable interest rates based on gross 
debt 

20 17 Yes 

      

 
Limit for 
2018/19 (£M) 

Quarter 2 
Actual 
(£M) 

Compliance 
with 
Indicator? 

Upper limit for principal sums invested over 365 
days 

20.000 - Yes 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 85



 

APPENDIX 2 - MOVEMENT ON EXTERNAL BORROWING / INVESTMENTS 
 
Movement on External Borrowing 
 
As shown below, officers took out £10M of temporary loans during the quarter in 
order to manage the Council’s day to day cash position, and made principal 
repayments totalling £3M: 
 

 
Balance on 
01/04/2019 

(£M) 

New 
Borrowing 

(£M) 

Principal 
Repaid 

(£M) 

Balance on 
30/06/2019 

(£M) 

Net 
Movement 

(£M) 

PWLB borrowing 573.713 - (0.949) 572.764 (0.949) 

Other long term loans 55.000 - - 55.000 - 

Temporary loans 2.004 10.000 (2.000) 10.004 8.000 

Long term local authority loans 29.458 - - 29.458 - 

Total external borrowing 660.175 10.000 (2.949) 667.226 7.051 

 
Movement on Investments 
 
As shown below, the majority of new investments were placed in secure Money 
Market Funds and instant access accounts (£114M), however officers continued to 
take advantage of the competitive rates offered on short term local authority 
deposits, placing new investments of (£65M): 
 

 
Balance on 
01/04/2019 

(£M) 

New 
Investments 

(£M) 

Redeemed 
Investments 

(£M) 

Balance on 
30/06/2019 

(£M) 

Net 
Movement  

(£M) 

Short term deposits 156.500 65.000 (67.500) 154.000 (2.500) 

Money Market Funds / 
instant access accounts 

38.080 113.550 (129.930) 21.700 (16.380) 

Total investments 194.580 178.550 (197.430) 175.700 (18.880) 

 
Further details regarding the Council’s borrowing and investment portfolios are 
available on request. 

Page 86



The Annual Audit Letter for 

Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council

Year ended 31 March 2019

August 2019

P
age 87 Item

 7



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  | Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council | August 2019 2

Contents

Section Page

1. Executive Summary 3

2. Audit of the Financial Statements 5

3. Value for Money conclusion 10

Appendix

A     Reports issued and fees

Your key Grant Thornton 

team members are:

Gareth Mills

Engagement Lead

T:  0113 200 2535

E: Gareth.Mills@uk.gt.com

Thilina De Zoysa

Engagement Manager 

T: 0113 200 1589

E: Thilina.De.Zoysa@uk.gt.com

Jack Walsh 

Engagement In-charge 

T: 0113 200 2529

E:Jack.H.Walsh@uk.gt.com

P
age 88



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  | Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council | August 2019 3

1. Executive Summary
Purpose

Our Annual Audit Letter (Letter) summarises the key findings arising from the 

work that we have carried out at Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council (the 

Council) and its subsidiaries (the group) for the year ended 31 March 2019.  

This Letter is intended to provide a commentary on the results of our work to 

the group and external stakeholders, and to highlight issues that we wish to 

draw to the attention of the public. In preparing this Letter, we have followed 

the National Audit Office (NAO)'s Code of Audit Practice and Auditor 

Guidance Note (AGN) 07 – 'Auditor Reporting’. 

We reported the findings from our audit work to the full Council, as those 

charged with governance, in our Audit Findings (ISA260) Report on 25 July 

(we also reported our findings to the Audit Committee on 22 July).

Respective responsibilities

We have carried out our audit in accordance with the NAO's Code of Audit Practice, 

which reflects the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act). 

Our key responsibilities are to:

• give an opinion on the Council and group’s  financial statements (section two)

• assess the Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources (the value for money conclusion) (section three).

In our audit of the Council and the group's financial statements, we comply with 

International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs) and other guidance issued by the NAO.

Materiality We determined materiality for the audit of the group’s financial statements to be £10,000,000, which was 1.8% of the group’s gross 

revenue expenditure. 

Financial Statements opinion We gave an unqualified ‘clean’ audit opinion on the Council and group’s financial statements on 30 July 2019.  

Whole of Government Accounts 

(WGA)

We completed work on the Council’s consolidation return following guidance issued by the NAO.

Use of statutory powers We did not identify any matters which required us to exercise our additional statutory powers.

Value for Money arrangements We were satisfied that the Council put in place proper arrangements to ensure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources. We reflected this in our audit report to the members of the Council on 30 July 2019.

Certificate We certified that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the 

Code of Audit Practice on 22 August 2019. 

Our work

P
age 89



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  | Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council | August 2019 4

Executive Summary

Working with the Council

In our first year of audit at the Council, we believe we have developed 

professional working relationships with you and your officers and have 

delivered a number of positive outcomes, including:

• regular liaison with senior officers including the Chief Executive, the s151 

Officer, senior finance managers and the Chair of the Audit Committee to 

understand the issues facing the Council

• an efficient audit - we delivered an efficient audit with you in June and July 

and worked well with your finance team

• understanding your operational environment and challenges – through the 

value for money conclusion work, we provided assurances around your 

arrangements in place to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 
use of Council’s resources

• Sharing our insight – we provided regular audit committee updates covering 

best practice. We also contributed to discussions and debates on a variety of 

committee topics outside of external audit agenda items

• Providing accounts workshops  – we provided your finance team with training 

workshops, focusing on key changes to 2018-19 financial statements and main 

risk areas for the audit. 

• Supporting development – we provided a workshop for members of the Audit 

Committee on the roles and responsibilities of audit committees including 

governance issues, accounting developments and value for money 

arrangements.  The day was an opportunity for members to network with other 

members across our Yorkshire local authority client base and discuss audit 

committee effectiveness.

We would like to record our appreciation for the assistance and co-operation

provided to us during our audit by the Council's staff.

Grant Thornton UK LLP

August 2019

P
age 90



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  | Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council | August 2019 5

2. Audit of the Financial Statements

Our audit approach

Materiality

In our audit of the group's financial statements, we use the concept of 

materiality to determine the nature, timing and extent of our work, and in 

evaluating the results of our work. We define materiality as the size of the 

misstatement in the financial statements that would lead a reasonably 

knowledgeable person to change or influence their economic decisions. 

We determined materiality for the audit of the group financial statements to 

be £10,000,000, which was 1.8% of the group’s gross revenue expenditure. 

We determined materiality for the audit of the Council’s financial statements 

to be £9,900,000, which was 1.7% of the Council’s gross revenue 

expenditure.  We used this benchmark as, in our view, users of the Council's 

financial statements are most interested in where the Council has spent its 

revenue in the year. 

We also set a lower level of specific materiality of £5,000 for senior officer 

remuneration. 

We set a lower threshold of £500,000, above which we reported errors to the 

Audit Committee and full Council  in our Audit Findings (ISA260) Report.

The scope of our audit

Our audit involves obtaining sufficient evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 

the financial statements to give reasonable assurance that they are free from material 

misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes assessing whether:

• the accounting policies are appropriate, have been consistently applied and 

adequately disclosed

• the significant accounting estimates made by management are reasonable

• the overall presentation of the financial statements gives a true and fair view. 

We also read the remainder of the financial statements, the narrative report and the  

annual governance statement published alongside the financial statements to check it 

is consistent with our understanding of the Council and with the financial statements 

on which we gave our opinion.

We carry out our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK) and the NAO Code of Audit 

Practice. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the group's operational 

activities and is risk based. 

We identified key risks and set out overleaf the work we performed in response to 

these risks and the results of this work.

P
age 91



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  | Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council | August 2019 6

Audit of the Financial Statements

Significant Audit Risks
These are the significant risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work. 

Risks identified in our Audit Plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Management over-ride of controls

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable 

presumed risk that the risk of management over-

ride of controls is present in all entities. The 

Authority faces external scrutiny of its spending 

and this could potentially place management 

under undue pressure in terms of how they 

report performance.

We identified management over-ride of controls 

as a risk requiring special audit consideration.

As part of our audit work we:

• evaluated the design effectiveness of management controls over 

journals

• analysed the journals listing and determined the criteria for 

selecting high risk unusual journals

• tested unusual journals recorded during the year and after the 

draft accounts stage for appropriateness and corroboration

• gained an understanding of accounting estimates and critical 

judgements applied and made by management and considered 

their reasonableness with regard to corroborative evidence

• evaluated the rationale for any significant changes in accounting 

policies, estimates or significant unusual transactions.

Our audit work did not identify any issues 

in respect of management override of 

controls.  

P
age 92



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  | Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council | August 2019 7

Audit of the Financial Statements

Significant Audit Risks continued

Risks identified in our Audit Plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Valuation of land and buildings

The Council revalues its land and buildings on a 

rolling five-yearly basis. This valuation represents 

a significant estimate by management in the 

financial statements due to the size of the 

numbers involved (c£845m) and the sensitivity of 

this estimate to changes in key assumptions.

Additionally, the Council needs to ensure the 

carrying value of land and buildings in the 

Council’s financial statements is not materially 

different from the current value  at the financial 

statements date, where a rolling programme is 

used.

We therefore identified valuation of land and 

buildings, particularly revaluations and 

impairments, as a significant risk, which was one 

of the most significant assessed risks of material 

misstatement

As part of our audit work we:

• evaluated management's processes and assumptions for the 

calculation of the estimate, the instructions issued to valuation 

experts and the scope of their work

• evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the 

valuation expert

• discussed with the valuer the basis on which the valuation was 

carried out

• challenged the information and assumptions used by the valuer to 

assess completeness and consistency with our understanding

• tested revaluations made during the year to see if they had been 

accounted correctly in line with applicable accounting guidance and 

input correctly into the Council's asset register

• assessed how management have confirmed assets valued at 1 

April 2018 have not significantly changed in value by the year end, 

31 March 2019 

• evaluated the assumptions made by management for those assets 

not revalued during the year and how management has satisfied 

themselves that these are not materially different to current value at 

year end

• reviewed the Council’s PFI schemes to consider the 

appropriateness of the accounting entries.

Our audit work identified a material 

misstatement in relation to accounting for 

a school disposal. This required c37m  

prior period adjustment (PPA) and 

restatement of accounts.

This issue was corrected  by 

management and therefore it did not 

impact our audit opinion issued on 30 

July.

The adjustment did not impact the 

useable reserves of the Council as at 31 

March 2019.

We also identified minor disclosure 

amendments in relation to land and 

buildings valuations. All adjustments were 

reported to those charged with 

governance.

As part of our Audit Findings (ISA260) 

report presented to the full Council in July 

2019, we agreed two recommendations 

with the management to address our 

findings

Our audit work did not identify any other 

significant issues.

P
age 93



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  | Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council | August 2019 8

Audit of the Financial Statements
Significant Audit Risks continued

Risks identified in our Audit Plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Valuation of the pension fund net liability

The Council's pension fund net liability, as 

reflected in its balance sheet, represents a 

significant estimate in the financial statements. 

The pension fund net liability is considered a 

significant estimate due to the size of the 

numbers involved and the sensitivity of the 

estimate to changes in key assumptions.

We therefore identified valuation of the 

Council’s pension fund net liability as a 

significant risk, which was one of the most 

significant assessed risks of material 

misstatement.

As part of our audit work we:

• updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by 

management to ensure that the Council’s pension fund net liability is not 

materially misstated and evaluated the design of the associated controls

• evaluated the instructions issued by management to their management 

expert (an actuary) for this estimate and the scope of the actuary’s work

• assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who 

carried out the Council’s pension fund valuation

• assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information provided to 

the actuary to estimate the liabilities

• tested the consistency of the pension fund assets and liabilities and 

disclosures in the notes to the core financial statements with the actuarial 

reports from the actuary

• performed procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial 

assumptions made by reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as 

auditor’s expert) and performing any additional procedures suggested 

within the report

• requested the council to obtain updated reports from its actuary to take into 

account the impact on the Council’s pension numbers as a result of the 

McCloud judgement. . We assessed the updated actuary report to 

understand the overall impact to the pension fund liability of the Council

• obtained assurances from the auditor of South Yorkshire Pension Fund as 

to the controls surrounding the validity and accuracy of membership data; 

contributions data and benefits data sent to the actuary by the pension fund 

and the fund assets valuation in the pension fund financial statements 

The Council requested updated reports 

from its actuary to take into account 

the impact on the Council’s pension 

numbers as a result of the McCloud 

judgement.  

The revised report resulted in an 

increase in the Council’s pension fund 

liability of £12.5m, which was adjusted 

in the final accounts approved by those 

charged with governance.  This 

adjustment did not impact on the 

Council’s level of useable reserves. 

Our audit work did not identify any 

other significant issues. 

P
age 94



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  | Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council | August 2019 9

Audit of the Financial Statements

Audit opinion
We gave an unqualified ‘clean’ opinion on the Council's financial statements on 

30 July 2019. 

Preparation of the financial statements

The Council presented us with draft financial statements in accordance with the 

national deadline, and provided a good set of working papers to support them. 

The finance team responded promptly and efficiently to our queries during the 

course of the audit.

Issues arising from the audit of the financial statements

We reported the key issues from our audit to the Audit Committee on 22 July 

and to full Council on 25 July 2019. 

Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report

We are required to review the Council’s Annual Governance Statement and 

Narrative Report. It published them on its website alongside the Statement of 

Accounts in line with the national deadlines. 

Both documents were prepared in line with the CIPFA Code and relevant 

supporting guidance. We confirmed that both documents were consistent with 

the financial statements prepared by the Council and with our knowledge of the 

Council. 

Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) 

We carried out work on the Council’s Data Collection Tool in line with instructions 

provided by the NAO. We issued an assurance statement which did not identify any 

issues for the group auditor to consider. 

Certificate of closure of the audit

We certified that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of Barnsley 

Metropolitan Borough Council in accordance with the requirements of the Code of 

Audit Practice on 22 August 2019.

P
age 95



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  | Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council | August 2019 10

3. Value for Money conclusion

Background
We carried out our review in accordance with the NAO Code of Audit 

Practice, following the guidance issued by the NAO in November 2017 which 

specified the criterion for auditors to evaluate:

In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions 

and deploys resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for 

taxpayers and local people. 

Key findings
Our first step in carrying out our work was to perform a risk assessment and 

identify the risks where we concentrated our work.

The risks we identified and the work we performed are set out overleaf.

We identified two risks in our 2018-19 audit plan issued in January 2019.

As part of our Audit Findings (ISA260) report presented to the Audit 

Committee on 22 July and the full Council on 25 July 2019, we agreed one 

recommendation to maintain appropriate governance, risk management

and financial management arrangements to continue to make informed 
decision making regarding the Glassworks Project in 2019-20 and beyond. 

Overall Value for Money conclusion
We are satisfied that in all significant respects the Council put in place proper 

arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 

for the year ending 31 March 2019.

.

P
age 96



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  | Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council | August 2019 11

Risks identified in our Audit Plan How we responded 

to the risk

Findings and conclusions

Financial standing – delivery of 2018-19 

budget and savings plan and 

achievement of Medium Term Financial 

Strategy (MTFS)

The Council, in line with other local 

authorities, continues to operate under 

significant financial pressures. For 2018-

19, the Council was planning to deliver a 

balanced outturn position but to achieve 

this, it needs to deliver savings of some 

£4.4m whilst managing cost pressures 

within Children’s Social Care and 

Safeguarding and Adult Social Care (ASC) 

and Health at a time of reduced funding. 

The Council’s latest financial projections at 

end of quarter 2 (available in January 

2019) indicated it was expecting to deliver 

an underspend of £2.76m by 31 March 

2019. We continued to monitor the 

Authority’s financial position through 

regular meetings with senior management 

and considered how the Authority manages 

its budget. 

We also continued to assess progress in 

the identification and delivery of the future 

savings required as identified in the current 

iteration of the MTFS (of some £5.8m 

2019-20 and £15.3m 2020-21)

As part of our work 

we:

• reviewed key 

financial and 

operational 

documents 

including the final 

outturn report for 

2018-19

• reviewed financial 

performance 

against the budget 

as at year end 31 

March 2019 and 

determination of 

future financial 

projections  

• discussed key 

relevant financial 

matters with senior 

management.

• The Council achieved it’s 2018-19 budget with an overall underspend of £7.5m after utilisation of £5.8m general 

fund reserves. As a result, the general fund reserves reduced from £135.8m to £130m as at 31 March 2019. The 

overall underspend before earmarking to 2019-20 was £47.2m, of which £39.7m of this has been earmarked into 

2019-20, leaving the above £7.5m as a general fund underspend. The Council also achieved it’s savings targets of 

£4.4m for 2018-19.

• The Council  agreed that £4m of this will be carried forward to 2019-20 to address social care and future 

demography pressures and remaining balance of £3.5m will be earmarked for strategic priorities such as mitigating 

against the impact of Brexit. The underspent against the budget was mainly due to one off events during the year 

and scheme project slippages, mainly in respect of the receipts of one off uncommitted grant funding. 

• The Council agreed the 2019-20 budget in February 2019. The Council needs to achieve £5.8m of saving 

efficiencies to deliver a balanced budget for 2019-20. The Council has a track record of achieving its saving plans. 

However, with continually increasing financial pressures around adult social care and children’s services and 

reduced government funding the Council will need to continue to be financially resilient.  This reflects an increasing 

pattern across the local authority sector. 

• The Council’s MTFS was approved in February 2019 covering the 3 years from 2019-20 to 2021-22. The MTFS is 

in the process of being updated to confirm the assumptions made for 2020-2022 and include a forecast position for 

2022-23. For 2020-21, the Council estimates that it requires a further £9.5m savings in addition to £5.8m savings 

required in 2019-20 to achieve a balanced budget. Draft proposals were already in place to meet this gap at the 

time of our review. These proposals were currently being finalised before being approved later in 2019-20. There is 

a further anticipated budget gap of £4.8m for 2021-22 for which further efficiencies are expected to be required and 

identified. 

• This further highlights the challenging financial environment the Council operates. It has to be noted that the 

Comprehensive Spending Review, Fair Funding Review and outcome of Business Rates Retention have been 

delayed. This delay has not been conducive to Council’s budget setting process for the medium term. The MTFS 

prudently assumes a reduction in grants receivable from the central government to compensate with the increased 

Business Rates Retention from 50% to 75% in the future.

• The Council’s Dedicated School Grant account was in deficit by £8.5m at the year end.  As a result, a total of 

£8.5m was transferred from general fund reserves to ensure the DSG account ultimately achieved a break-even 

outturn at 31 March 2019. 

• The Council’s updated reserves strategy from 2019-20 to 2021-22 was approved by the full Council in February 

2019. After allocating all the earmarked reserves and commitments, the Council has £15m set aside for 

contingency and emergency funds and further £16m for potential Brexit impact and increased capital costs. The 

reserves strategy is currently in the process of being further updated and approved to reflect the 2018-19 final 

outturn position.

• We have considered the Council’s arrangements to ensure it is financially resilient to deal with budgetary pressures 

and, overall, we are satisfied proper arrangements were in place for the delivery of in year and future budget and 

savings plans. We concluded that the Council has proper arrangements in place for ensuring sustainable resource 

deployment.

Value for Money conclusion 

P
age 97



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  | Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council | August 2019 12

Risks identified in our Audit Plan How we responded to the 

risk

Findings and conclusions

Arrangements in place for the Glass 

Works development

The Glass Works scheme is one of the 

most significant projects undertaken by the 

Council in recent history. The development 

has two phases with an estimated capital 

cost of £178.1m, with associated revenue 

running costs of £11.4m over three years 

up to 2020-21.

As part of our Value for Money 

arrangements work we considered the 

Council’s arrangements in place in relation 

to Glass Works project specifically

considering the governance and risk 

management arrangements in relation to

the scheme. 

We continued  to meet with senior 

management and Internal Audit in

relation to Glass Works to obtain the latest 

information on the progress, cost

and governance of the development. We  

considered any financial reporting

and Prudential Framework implications 

arising from the Glass Works scheme.

As part of our work we:

• reviewed third party 

reports including 

consultants/contractors  

workings around this 

capital project 

• discussed key relevant 

matters with senior 

management.

Our focus in this area was around governance and risk management arrangements in place to secure 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in Council’s use of resources. Our findings were as follows:

The Council set up a Glass Works Board in September 2017 with Terms of Reference. The objective of the 

Board was to provide leadership on strategic governance and decision making for the Glass Works project. 

The Board included key senior officers from the Council and external project members including the 

contractors for the scheme.

The remit of the Glass Works Board covered conflict of interests, Key Performance Indicator reporting, 

health and safety, design and constructions, funding of the project, financial management, risk management 

and mitigation, change management and other areas that are required for effective management of the 

project. Monthly meetings were held since the inception, including throughout 2018-19. The Council’s SMT 

are updated with key matters arising from the Glass Works Board meetings.

Cost plan reports were developed for key stages of the project by the key contractors. These were 

discussed and action taken before approval at each stage by the Glass Works Board.

Under the remit of Glass Works Board, an Asset Management sub group was set up which comprised of 

relevant Council officers and external stakeholders. The sub group met on a monthly basis to monitor 

construction phases of key buildings and assess associated risks which were reported back to the Glass 

Work Board for further action

A detailed leasing strategy of the glasswork project was also developed by an external consultant with rental 

income projections upon potential tenants subscribed to take up tenancy.  The financial projections in 

respect of the Glass Works scheme are then acknowledged within the Council’s MTFS.

Professional legal advice was obtained from a nationally known legal firm at each key juncture of the project 

and the Council is continuing to involve relevant and appropriate advisors on an ongoing basis.  For 

example, on key matters including drafting appropriate tenancy agreements for discussion and signing with 

relevant stakeholders.  There was a Terms of Reference agreed with the external legal advisor and they also 

attend Glass Works Board meetings as relevant. At the time of this report, the Council is in the process of 

drafting future tenancy agreements for prospective tenants for discussion and finalisation. 

In addition to risk identification and management discussions at Glass Works Board meetings on a monthly 

basis, the Council’s strategic Risk Register has a standard risk around glass work project. This risk is 

discussed at Council, Cabinet and Audit Committee level and monitored and actions taken on a regular 

basis.  We were aware from our review that appropriate actions are taken when significant risks have arisen 

in 2018-19 in relation to the scheme, including revising financial projections, updating the Cabinet on a 

timely basis and seeking appropriate re-approvals of elements of the scheme.

We considered the Council’s governance and risk management arrangement in place to secure economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in Council’s use of resources. Overall, we were satisfied proper arrangements 

were in place during 2018-19  in respect of the Glass Works development scheme.

We concluded that the Council has proper arrangements in place for informed decision making in relation to 

the Glass Works development project. 

Value for Money conclusion (continued) 

P
age 98



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  | Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council | August 2019 13

Appendix A: Reports issued and fees
We confirm below our final reports issued and fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services.

Fees

Planned

£

Actual fees 

£

2017-18 fees

£

Statutory audit 104,718 TBC – see 

table on right

135,998

Total fees 104,718 TBC 135,998

The proposed fee variations are subject to PSAA approval.

Reports issued

Report Date issued

Audit Plan January 2019

Audit Findings (ISA260) Report July 2019

Annual Audit Letter August 2019

Audit fee variation

As outlined in our Audit Plan, the 2018-19 scale fee published by PSAA of £104,718 

assumes that the scope of the audit does not significantly change.  There are a 

number of areas where the scope of the audit has changed, which has led to 

additional audit work.  We noted this expectation in our ISA260 Report in July. 

The areas of additional work and resulting fee implications are set out in the following 

table.

Area Reason

Fee 

proposed  

£ 

McCloud:

Assessing the 

impact of the 

McCloud ruling 

The Government’s transitional arrangements for 

pensions were ruled discriminatory by the Court of 

Appeal last December. The Supreme Court refused 

the Government’s application for permission to 

appeal this ruling.  As part of our audit we reviewed 

the revised actuarial assessment of the impact on 

the financial statements along with any audit 

reporting requirements. 

3,000

Pensions:

IAS 19 audit 

work

The Financial Reporting Council has highlighted 

that the quality of work by audit firms in respect of 

IAS 19 needs to improve across local government 

audits. Accordingly, we have increased the level of 

scope and coverage in respect of IAS 19 this year 

to reflect this.

3,000

Land and 

Building

Valuation:

work of experts 

As above, the Financial Reporting Council has 

highlighted that auditors need to improve the quality 

of work on land and buildings valuations across the 

sector. We have increased the volume and scope of 

our audit work to reflect this. 

3,000

Total 9,000

Non- audit services 

There were no non-audit related services delivered in 2018-19. The amounts 

detailed above are fees agreed for audit related services to be undertaken by 

Grant Thornton UK LLP in 2018-19. These services are consistent with the 

Council’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors.  

None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees. We have not 

provided any other services in 2017-18 prior to our appointment as external 

auditors to the Council on 1 April 2018

Fees for other services Fees £

Audit related services:

• Housing Benefit Certification 

• Certification of Teachers’ Pension Return 

• Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts 

16,400

4,200

3,000

Total audit related services 23,600

P
age 99



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  | Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council | August 2019

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 

firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 

separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 

another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 100



Report of the Service Director
Business Improvement, Human 
Resources & Communications

Audit Committee – 11th September 2019

Business Improvement, Human Resources and Communications Progress Report

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To give an overview of the functions of the Business Improvement, Human Resources 
and Communications Business Unit and related elements of the Annual Governance 
Statement process in line with the Audit Committee programme.

2. Functions of the Business Unit

2.1 The Business Unit has seven broad functions reporting to the Service Director, 
Business Improvement, Human Resources and Communications:

 Business Improvement and Intelligence (including the Overview and Scrutiny 
function)

 Communications, Marketing and Campaign Management
 Corporate Programmes, Projects, Feedback and Improvement 
 Equality and Inclusion 
 Organisation and Workforce Improvement (including the Member Development 

function)
 HR Business Advisory, Employee Wellbeing and Reward
 Recruitment and HR Traded Services

2.2 The core purpose of the business unit is to,

‘Provide high quality, value for money, customer focussed, professional and strategic 
core services’.

The Business Unit is responsible for driving and delivering business improvement and 
communications to ensure the organisation is a customer focussed, modern, efficient 
and commercial minded Future Council.

3. Related Elements of the Annual Governance Statement

3.1    The business unit has a role in ensuring assurance against the following elements of 
the Annual Governance Statement:

 Management Arrangements – services can demonstrate compliance with the 
Managing People Framework through the completion of Performance and 
Development Reviews (P&DR) and managing absence through the Managing 
Attendance Policy.

 Business Improvement and Intelligence –support the development of the 
Corporate Plan to illustrate progress achieved in delivering the priorities and 
outcomes of the Corporate Plan 2017-2020.

Page 101

Item 8



 Equality and Inclusion – Legal obligations fall into two areas; the need to pay 
‘due regard’ to the public sector equality duty, and the requirement to publish 
specific information. Directorates demonstrate compliance with the equality duty 
through completion of equality impact assessments. Information compliance is 
achieved through our external facing website. 

Business Improvement and Intelligence

3.2 The Business Improvement and Intelligence team (BII) supports the development of 
performance frameworks and co-ordinates performance management arrangements 
across our organisation, ensuring a consistent and coherent approach.

3.3 The BII team delivers the Corporate Plan Performance report on a quarterly basis, to 
provide an overview of the council’s latest performance, drawing upon information 
available for each quarter, and to illustrate progress achieved in delivering the priorities 
and outcomes of the Corporate Plan 2017-2020.

3.4 The Corporate Plan contains three priorities, supported by 12 outcomes. These are 
reflected in the 2020 Outcomes Framework and outline what the council has 
committed to undertake in order to deliver the priorities. It is also recognised that the 
council is not solely accountable for delivering these outcomes, as it works in 
partnership with other organisations. 

3.5 The framework identifies what the council is seeking to achieve for the people of 
Barnsley, as defined in our key strategies and plans, and a series of objectives which 
focus on specific areas of service delivery and support for the borough and its 
residents.  

3.6 To support the delivery of the Corporate Performance Plan and to communicate the 
progress against the Outcomes Framework, 3 products are produced for the public:

 The Corporate Plan Performance Report
 Stronger Communities Service narrative report
 Power BI online report

3.7 The Power BI online report is a self-service report that allows users to review the 
red/amber/green status of each of the key corporate indicators that are measured each 
quarter, and allows the user to view progress over time (quarterly or annually).

3.8 The latest Power BI report for quarter 1 2019/20 is available at: 
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiNzFkZWNlMmYtNjEwMy00NWY5LTg4NTktM
mViZTY1OTA2OTdkIiwidCI6ImJhNmEyNDcxLTMzNDAtNDMxNC1hOTY5LTQ4ZDhjZ
GM0YzRmOCIsImMiOjh9

Page 102

https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiNzFkZWNlMmYtNjEwMy00NWY5LTg4NTktMmViZTY1OTA2OTdkIiwidCI6ImJhNmEyNDcxLTMzNDAtNDMxNC1hOTY5LTQ4ZDhjZGM0YzRmOCIsImMiOjh9
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiNzFkZWNlMmYtNjEwMy00NWY5LTg4NTktMmViZTY1OTA2OTdkIiwidCI6ImJhNmEyNDcxLTMzNDAtNDMxNC1hOTY5LTQ4ZDhjZGM0YzRmOCIsImMiOjh9
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiNzFkZWNlMmYtNjEwMy00NWY5LTg4NTktMmViZTY1OTA2OTdkIiwidCI6ImJhNmEyNDcxLTMzNDAtNDMxNC1hOTY5LTQ4ZDhjZGM0YzRmOCIsImMiOjh9


Performance and Development Review (PDR)

3.9 The new simplified PDR process was implemented in April 2018 and feedback has 
been positive.

3.10 In June 2019 a visual reporting tool was made available to managers via Power BI to 
provide them with up-to-date information regarding PDRs for their respective areas.  
The report shows:

 Percentage of PDRs completed / not completed
 Dates PDRs are due to be completed
 PDRs that are out-of-date
 Details of employees with PDRs due who are currently absent (due to sickness, 

maternity etc.) 

3.11 The provision of these reports has provided managers with an oversight of PDR 
completions within their area, enabling them to manage this effectively.

3.12 The Power BI report also shows PDR completions for the council broken down by 
business unit.  As at 23rd August 2019, the completion rate for PDRs for the council 
was 67.7% which is 17% higher than the completion rate reported to Audit Committee 
in 2018 (51.6%),

Equality and Inclusion

3.13 The public sector Equality Duty (PSED), at section 149 Equality Act 2010, is a duty on 
public bodies to consider, in their day-to-day work, the needs of people who share 
particular protected characteristics. There are three strands to the duty stating the 
Council must pay ‘due regard’ to:

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct prohibited by the Act.

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a particular 
protected characteristic and people who do not share it.

 Foster good relations between people who share a particular protected 
characteristic and people who do not share it.

3.14 The Council complies with the PSED by conducting Equality impact assessments 
(EIA). The assessment provides a prediction of how the work could impact different 
groups. This ensures that the organisation does not discriminate unlawfully against a 
person or group of people, and actively promotes equality. The EIA template provides 
an audit trail to record the equality related decision making process. 

3.15 The outcome of an EIA is subsequently summarised in the relevant Cabinet report, 
enabling informed decision making. The Equality and Inclusion team assess the 
robustness of Cabinet reports by dip-sampling cabinet reports throughout the year.

3.16 Work is on-going to strengthen equalities compliance through:
 Improved project management guidance
 Embedding equalities considerations into contract management and guidance
 Creation of a new simplified EIA template and guidance
 Face-to-face training across all directorates on the Equality Act and EIA’s.

Page 103



 Updating the Cabinet report template to ensure more robust equalities 
consideration.

3.17 The Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties) Regulations 2011 require public bodies to 
publish relevant, proportionate information demonstrating their compliance with the 
Equality Duty (annually); and to set themselves specific, measurable equality 
objectives (at least every four years). The statute is drafted in such a way to allow for 
flexibility of interpretation. The information required must include:

 Information relating to employees who share protected characteristics 
 Information relating to people who are affected by the public body’s policies 

and practices who share protected characteristics (for example residents).

3.18 Compliance is achieved through publications on the external website. The ‘Equality 
and inclusion strategy 2018-20’ contains equality objectives and ‘The borough profile’ 
contains demographic details. The Corporate performance report for quarter two will 
contain details of staff demographics and work undertaken over the previous year 
which evidences ‘due regard’ to the Equality Duty.

Corporate Programmes, Projects, Feedback and Improvement 

3.19 The service provides three key functions:

 Corporate Programmes and Projects: overseeing a corporate approach to both 
programme and project management, ensuring governance arrangements are 
effectively managed; reporting supports decision making and activity contributes 
towards the Council’s corporate priorities

 Customer Feedback, Information and Improvement (CFIIT): supporting our 
business units to effectively manage complaints, compliments, comments and 
information requests to drive continuous improvement and improving the customer 
experience

 Business Improvement and Communications Continuous Improvement: supporting 
our business unit to strive for excellence through re-designing and re-engineering 
services, systems and processes 

 Change Management: supporting our business units to manage major change 
initiatives by demonstrating the positive impacts this can bring whilst driving 
transformation in a planned and seamless way

3.20 In line with the Council’s Corporate Plan, the Customer Feedback, Information and 
Improvement Team is committed to ensuring a genuine focus is placed upon its 
customers; placing them at the heart of what we do. As such, it is undertaking a 
schedule of work in reshaping internal processes designed to effectively manage 
customer expectations.

3.21 The submission of feedback (compliments, complaints, and comments) is an important 
means in which a customer can inform the Council about their experiences. The 
Council’s Annual Customer Feedback Report 2018/19 sets out a number of headline 
figures which demonstrates its performance against its values and behaviours. 

3.22 In 2018/19, the service received 502 compliments, an increase from 490 in 2017/18 
and 333 complaints, an increase from 317 in 2017/18. Budgetary constraints and 
limited resources are likely to have had an impact on the services mostly affected by 

Page 104



the differential in number. However, it is encouraging to note the continual rise in 
compliments received. 

During 2019/20 the CFIIT is committed to undertaking the following activities:

 Work in collaboration with services to strengthen its learning from complaints 
received and continual review of internal process arrangements

 Explore how it ensures our most vulnerable customers know how to make a 
complaint, including customers who are receiving a service paid for by the Council 
whilst delivered by a third party

 Explore how it captures and reports on all compliments and complaints made 
directly to other organisations that provide services on the Council’s behalf

 Implement a new performance management system and reporting software across 
the organisation to effectively manage feedback received  

 Continue to develop a meaningful intranet webpage for staff using new guidance 
and research available on dispute resolution

3.23 To achieve this, it will act as a ‘critical friend’ and engage in offering constructive 
challenge in relation to change programmes, projects and review of customer 
feedback against corporate priorities, outcomes, strategies and plans in order to drive 
continuous service improvement.

4. Sickness Absence – 2018/19

Directorate Days  
lost Q1 

Days  
lost Q2 

Days  
lost Q3

Days  
lost Q4 

totals for 
2018/19 

Communities 1.67 1.85 2.35 2.90 8.77
People 1.75 2.03 2.10 2.22 8.10
Place 2.08 2.27 2.72 2.70 9.77
Public Health 2.11 1.65 2.68 2.63 9.07
Core 1.43 1.82 1.66 1.40 6.31
Total days lost per employee 1.80 2.01 2.01 2.02 7.84

4.1  The absence levels identified above show a total days lost per employee of 7.84 days 
this is an improvement on the overall days lost for 2017/18 (7.87). The graph below 
shows a year on year improvement from 2013/ 14 onwards. 
 

Page 105



2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Actual Days Lost

Actual Days Lost per FTE Employee
Da

ys
 L

os
t p

er
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

4.2 On average, Local Government employees had 8.8 days of absence during 2017/18 
according to the most recent (June 19) Local Government Workforce Survey.  The 
Council’s current absence level of 7.84 days is below the Local Government average.  

4.3 Regional figures for 2018/19 are shown below.

7.84 8.13
8.9 9.09

10.9 11.3 11.4
12.2

Barnsley Harrogate Calderdale Doncaster Kirklees York Rotherham Hull
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Days Lost Yorkshire and Humberside

4.4 Across the Council the total number of days lost in 2018/19 was 22,321.45. The Councils 
average salary is £20,456 p.a. as a March 18 the estimated cost of sickness to the 
Council is therefore £1,750,894 (this cost does not include the cost of cover for front line 
positions). 

4.5 Mental health issues including stress, anxiety and depression remain the most common 
reasons for absence with 7,829 days lost in 2018/19. The second is musculoskeletal, 
back pain and injuries with 6,020 days lost. 

4.6 There are many examples of good practice where Directorates and Services are 
proactively addressing sickness absence.  These include:-

 Continued senior management commitment to addressing levels of absence and 
supporting interventions

 Managers seeking advice and support from Human Resources Advisors on a 
regular basis when dealing with long term and short term sickness

Page 106



 Proactive management of sickness including issuing formal sanctions where 
appropriate

 Majority of managers are actively managing persistent intermittent sickness 
cases and early intervention for long term sickness cases e.g. Absence review 
meeting being held at 4 weeks absence followed by a referral to OHU

 Pro-active and early intervention support for employees 
 Absence review meetings being carried out across the majority of services and 

Managers are involving Human Resources Advisors particularly where 
employees are found unfit for their substantive post

 Across the Council early intervention is assisting in bringing employees back to 
work earlier from long term sickness e.g. meetings carried out after 4 weeks of 
absence and early referrals made to OHU, considering temporary alternative 
working options e.g. working from home, adjusted duties 

4.7 In relation to mental health specifically the following interventions have taken place 
during 2018/19:

 2 Stretch and Strain courses (159 people attended) 
 3 Mindfulness Sessions (56 people attended). 
 In addition to the existing POD self-help courses available to employees a 

new Mental Health Awareness Course has been developed 
 Exercise classes continue to be held on site (Gateway, Westgate, Town 

Hall), Pilates, Zumba
 Self-help information is available via the Well@Work website 

4.8 Workplace counselling is available which can be accessed by employees through the 
Occupational Health Unit. Counselling support was accessed by 178 employees 
during 2018/19.  

4.9 There have also been 27 workstation assessments undertaken to support 
predominantly desk based employees.

4.10 A total of 226 employees (172 female / 54 male) attended a Know your numbers 
Assessment from across the Council with the following outcomes:- 

 197 employees had no issues,
 9 employees advice was given,
 20 employees were advised to visit their GP.

4.11 Since the current employee wellbeing strategy was introduced in 2016, attitudes 
towards health and wellbeing at work have changed.  Bearing this in mind we are 
undertaking a full review of our employee health and wellbeing offer during 2019/20 
and the outcome of this review will feature in future Audit Committee reports. 

5. Other Issues Affecting Elected Members

5.1    Overview & Scrutiny

The Business Unit is responsible for the Overview and Scrutiny function and annual 
work programme.  

5.2 Barnsley Council’s revised scrutiny arrangements include one Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (OSC); however its membership has been increased to 34 Councillors 
instead of the previous 26. 

5.3 The OSC will continue to meet formally 12 times per year in total; 3 of these meetings 
will be in plenary mode to consider safeguarding topics and other key strategic 

Page 107



business. For the remaining 9 meetings, Committee Members will allocate time to 3 
work-streams which will each meet 3 times per year consisting of 12 Elected 
Members, aligned to the Council priorities of:

• Thriving and Vibrant Economy
• People Achieving Their Potential
• Strong and Resilient Communities

5.4 The OSC will maintain 3 Member-led Task and Finish Groups (TFGs) which carry out 
in-depth investigations.

5.5 Further to the corporate peer review recommendation, an annual report of the OSC will 
now be completed, commencing from 2019-20.

5.6 We measure the percentage of Members attending the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee which was 44.7% for Quarter 1 2019/20.  The target is now more 
meaningful as all Members on the Committee are expected to attend 50% of the 
meetings throughout the year. Quarter 1 includes one meeting under the old 
committee structure (26 Members) and two meetings under the new structure (with the 
expectation of 12 Members at each).

6. Conclusion / Recommendations

6.1 This report is presented for information.

7. Background papers

7.1 Business Improvement and Communications Business and Delivery Plans and Annual 
Governance Statement are available for inspection.

Report Author: Michael Potter Contact: 774594 Date: 30 September 2019

Page 108



 

ANNUAL CUSTOMER
FEEDBACK REPORT

 
2018-19

COMPLAINTS  COMPLIMENTS LEARNING COMMENTS

Page 109



2018-19  ANNUAL CUSTOMER FEEDBACK REPORT 2

INTRODUCTION
Welcome to Barnsley  Council’s annual customer feedback report, which provides the
Council, partners and  members of the public with important information on what our
customers have told us about their expectations and experiences of the services they
have received during 2018-19.  This report looks at all of the complaints, compliments
and comments that have been recorded by the Council during the period 1 April 2018 to
31 March  2019, including those complaints received about Adult and Children  Social
Care services.  
 
Whilst we have achieved so many great things this year, it is our aim to ensure that we
respond to and manage rising customer expectations and demands, but also recognise
the opportunities this presents. To achieve this we need to listen to what our customers
are telling us, manage their expectations and continuously improve our services. This is
why customer feedback is important, and why it is our aim to ensure that our customers
feel able to provide us with feedback and know how to do this.   We also aim to respond
fairly, in partnership with the customer and reach a swift resolution where putting it right
is at the heart of what we always consider.
 
It is also vital to continuous service improvement to know when things have gone right
and when people are happy with the services they receive. However, on those occasions
when things go wrong, complaints are equally valuable because they provide a chance to
identify areas for improvement to ensure the same mistakes are not  repeated in the
future. Not all customer concerns need to be processed as a complaint and where a
customer has contacted the service direct and their concerns are resolved by the service
there is no need to escalate these to the Council’s complaints procedures. Therefore the
information reported on below does not include these concerns unless the customer
remained unhappy and pursued their concerns further.
 
The Customer Feedback, Information and Improvement Team are part of the Business
Improvement, Human Resources and Communications business unit and are responsible
for the management, facilitation and collation of all customer feedback received  for the
Council.  

  
 

Page 110



 2018-19 ANNUAL CUSTOMER FEEDBACK REPORT 3

05 06
Core Feedback

 
  
 

Directorates Introduction

08
Place Feedback

12
Communities Feedback

14

People Feedback

10

Public Health Feedback

  

CONTENTS
TABLE OF

Introduction

02
We Value your Feedback

04

Learning from Feedback
16 17

Customer Feedback Data

Page 111



WE VALUE YOUR FEEDBACK

We've received
a total of 502
compliments

We received 333 
complaints and agreed that
there were things we could

improve upon for 207 of these
complaints

We listen to what our
customers say and learn when

things go wrong - see our
learning from feedback page

There have been 33 
Ombudsman contacts

received

 2018-19 ANNUAL CUSTOMER FEEDBACK REPORT 4Page 112



CUSTOMER FEEDBACK

 2018-19 ANNUAL CUSTOMER FEEDBACK REPORT 5

Core
This directorate provides both internal and external services that are core to how the Council
operates.  These include : Finance (such as payments and council tax); Human Resources
(services for employees); Business Support (such as administration); Business Improvement
and Communications (such as performance management, marketing and communications);
Legal (such as law and compliance) and Governance (such as member support and elections).

Place
This directorate provides services that help to transform the borough.  The type of services
this includes are: Environment and Transport (such as waste management and highways);
Culture & Housing (such as museums and housing) Economic Regeneration (such as planning
and town centre re-design); and Assets (such as buildings).

People
This directorate provides services that relate specifically to the people of the Borough. 
These include: Education (such as education welfare and attendance), Early Start (such as
childcare);  Prevention (such as family centres); and Children's Social Care and
Safeguarding.

Communities
This directorate services the communities within the borough and includes services such as:
Customer services (such as libraries, customer support and contact centre); Information
services (such as technology and information governance); Stronger, Safer and Healthier
Communities (such as parks, safer neighbourhoods and enforcement) and Adult Social
Care.

The customer feedback we receive from our customers is registered against the five main
directorates of the Council. What each directorate does is described below.

Public Health
This directorate provides the services to the borough relating to health and regulation such
as: 0 to 19 Service (health visitors) and Regulation Services (commercial regulations, food
hygiene and pollution control).

The Council has two complaints procedures; the management of customer feedback which
has two stages, and the management of children's social care procedures which has 3 stages. 
All complaints that do not relate to children's social care will be processed through the first
procedure.  For further information on either of these procedures you can visit our internet
page at https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/have-your-say/complaints-compliments-and-
comments/
 

Page 113



The majority of
complaints were
resolved by an
explanation being
provided

CUSTOMER FEEDBACK
CORE DIRECTORATE

 2018-19 ANNUAL CUSTOMER FEEDBACK REPORT 6

A total of 32 compliments have been
received  - this is an increase on the
number we reported last year.
 
 
The Finance business unit received
the highest for this directorate.

17

38 complaints were
received, this is an
increase on last year. 
We resolved 22 of these
quickly and 16 required
a formal investigation. 
Of these 16, one
progressed onto a stage
2 review.

UPHELD 12
 
PARTIALLY UPHELD 12
 
NOT UPHELD 9
 
INCONCLUSIVE 0
 
WITHDRAWN 2
 
PENDING 3
 

OUTCOMES RESOLUTIONS

There were 3 Local
Government and
Social Care
Ombudsman
Contacts.  Two were
resolved as
enquiries and 1
received an
investigation

TIMESCALESEARLY
RESOLUTIONS

We resolved 79%
of complaints within the
agreed timescales.  This
means that of the 38
complaints we received,
6 were responded to out
of the agreed timescale.

For this directorate,
most of our customers
told us they were
unhappy with how we
told you what was
happening and the way
this was done

97% of complaints
were made by the
customer receiving
the service. There
were no complaints
made through the
use of an advocate.

There are 60+ services
delivered in this
Directorate
 
 

Page 114



CUSTOMER FEEDBACK
CORE DIRECTORATE

 2018-19 ANNUAL CUSTOMER FEEDBACK REPORT 7

Organisation and Workforce Improvement

We received the following positive feedback for our training
team:

I would like to take this opportunity to say
thank you to your team for the way the
course was run and the excellent way you
achieved the balance of learning, using
examples, the structure and keeping the
days interesting throughout the whole
training. It was not an easy task, especially
when people are not used to being in
training and in a classroom environment.

Here are some examples of compliments we've received:

Finance

I want to express my thanks as the service
you gave today was exceptional.
 
They explained that they felt listened to,
reassured and praised the staff member’s
customer services.

A customer told us:

Page 115



The majority of
complaints were
resolved by an
explanation being
provided

CUSTOMER FEEDBACK
PLACE DIRECTORATE

 2018-19 ANNUAL CUSTOMER FEEDBACK REPORT 8

A total of 195 compliments have been
received  - this is a decrease on the
number we reported last year.
 
 
The Environment and Transport
business unit received the highest
number of compliments.

137

152 complaints were
received, this is an
increase on last year. 
We resolved 100 of
these quickly and 52
required a formal
investigation.  Of these
52, 3 progressed onto a
stage 2 review.

UPHELD 56
 
PARTIALLY UPHELD 37
 
NOT UPHELD 31
 
INCONCLUSIVE 16
 
WITHDRAWN 7
 
PENDING 5

OUTCOMES RESOLUTIONS

There were 7
Ombudsman and
Social Care
contacts.  Four were
resolved as
enquiries and 3
received an
investigation

TIMESCALESEARLY
RESOLUTIONS

We resolved 80% of
complaints within the
agreed timescales.  This
means that of the 152
complaints we received,
28 were responded to out
of agreed timescales.

For this directorate,
most of our customers
told us they were
unhappy with the way
we deliver our services

97% of complaints
were made by the
customer receiving
the service. There
were no complaints
made through the
use of an advocate.

There are 40+ services
delivered in this
Directorate

Page 116



CUSTOMER FEEDBACK
PLACE DIRECTORATE

 2018-19 ANNUAL CUSTOMER FEEDBACK REPORT 9

Here are some examples of compliments we've received:

Environment and Transport - Waste Management

A resident told us they were very happy with their local waste
collection team:

Thank you to the amazing waste collectors
who have visited our area over the last few
months, my little boy loves watching the bin
lorry, and the workmen always wave and
smile, and it makes his day. They're always
happy, pleasant and polite and I just wanted
to say thank you, great job!”

Culture, Housing and Regulation - Museums

Thank you so much for meeting my group
yesterday. They had a wonderful visit and
appreciated the gentleman volunteer who
talked to them about the various exhibits.
What a lovely museum you have and what
super staff you all are. Congratulations on
being one of the nicest places we've visited in
ages!

A visitor to Experience Barnsley gave us this feedback:

Page 117



CUSTOMER FEEDBACK
PEOPLE DIRECTORATE

A total of 83 compliments have been
received  - this is the same as the
number we reported last year.
 
 
The adult social care business unit
received the highest number for this
directorate.

43

91 complaints were
received.  We received
29 adult social care
complaints and we
formally investigated 23
of these. We also
received 45 children’s
social care complaints
and we formally
investigated 32.
 
 For this directorate,
most of our customers
told us they were
unhappy with the way
we delivered our
services

There were
13 Local
Government and
Social
Care Ombudsman
contacts.  Five were
resolved as
enquiries and
8 received an
investigation.

The majority of
complaints were
resolved by an
explanation being
provided

UPHELD 9
 
PARTIALLY UPHELD 43
 
NOT UPHELD 30
 
INCONCLUSIVE 1
 
WITHDRAWN 1
 
PENDING 7

OUTCOMES RESOLUTIONS TIMESCALESEARLY
RESOLUTIONS

We resolved 79% of
complaints within the
agreed timescales. This
means that of the 91
complaints we received
18 were responded to out
of agreed timescales.

 2018-19 ANNUAL CUSTOMER FEEDBACK REPORT 10

78% of complaints
were made by the
customer receiving
the service. There
were 2 complaints
made through the
use of an advocate.

There are 25+ services 
delivered in this
Directorate

Page 118



CUSTOMER FEEDBACK
PEOPLE DIRECTORATE

 2018-19 ANNUAL CUSTOMER FEEDBACK REPORT 11

Here are some examples of compliments we've received:

Education, Early Start and Prevention

A parent told us that they were very happy with the support
their young person had received from the Education Inclusion
Service – Vision Support team.  They told us:

They have supported my son and me in
making the right decision, and his
transition has been as smooth as possible.
This is just one of the many times in which
I have looked to them for support, and
they have provided the most professional,
caring and personal support. I'm eternally
grateful for all they do and regard them as
a wonderful asset.

Adult Social Care  
 A customer was happy with

support they had received:

Thank you, to the social worker for making
me safe, thank you for making me happy,
and thank you for placing me with other
people.

Page 119



CUSTOMER FEEDBACK
COMMUNITIES DIRECTORATE

A total of 175 compliments have been
received  - this is an increase on the
number we reported last year.
 
The customer information and digital
services unit received the highest
number of compliments.

91

40 complaints were
received, this is a slight
increase from last year. 
We managed to resolve
18 of these cases
quickly and 22 required
formal investigation.
 

For this directorate,
most of our customers
told us they were
unhappy with the way
we delivered our
services

There were 4 Local
Government and
Social
Care Ombudsman
Contacts.  One was
resolved as an
enquiry and 3
received an
investigation

The majority of
complaints were
resolved by an
explanation being
provided

UPHELD 13
 
PARTIALLY UPHELD 19
 
NOT UPHELD 4
 
INCONCLUSIVE 2
 
WITHDRAWN 2
 
PENDING 0

OUTCOMES RESOLUTIONS TIMESCALESEARLY
RESOLUTIONS

We resolved 79% of
complaints within the
agreed timescales.  This
means that of the 40
complaints we received, 8
were responded to out of
agreed timescales.

 2018-19 ANNUAL CUSTOMER FEEDBACK REPORT 12

95% of complaints
were made by the
customer receiving
the service. There
were no complaints
made through the
use of an advocate.

There are 20+  services
delivered in this
Directorate

Page 120



CUSTOMER FEEDBACK
COMMUNITIES DIRECTORATE

 2018-19 ANNUAL CUSTOMER FEEDBACK REPORT 13

Customer Services - Libraries

A customer gave us some positive feedback about a member of
our home library team:

The books she picked for my mum were
perfect, and I was really happy that she
chose to change a few of the books as my
mum can't do this. She has gone above
and beyond.

Customer Services - Central Call

I feel you have saved me numerous of
times in fact you have, and the small
amount of money we pay for this privilege
is nothing for the job you do, I just want
say thank you from the bottom of my
heart.

A customer who used our central call service said:

Did you know?
Every month Barnsley Council receives:
 
30,000+ Customer telephone calls
 
 
80,000+ Online / self service transactions
 

Page 121



CUSTOMER FEEDBACK
PUBLIC HEALTH DIRECTORATE

A total of 17 compliments have been
received  - this is an increase on the
number we reported last year.
 
The Public Health 0-19 service
received the highest number of
compliments.

11

12 complaints were
received.  We managed
to resolve 2 of these
cases quickly and
10 required formal
investigation.
 

For this directorate,
most of our customers
told us they were
unhappy with the way
we delivered our
services  

 

There were
no Local
Government and
Social care
Ombudsman
Contacts received
for this directorate.

The majority of
complaints were
resolved by a change
to service  

 

UPHELD 2
 
PARTIALLY UPHELD 4
 
NOT UPHELD 2
 
INCONCLUSIVE  0
 
WITHDRAWN  1
 
PENDING 3

OUTCOMES RESOLUTIONS TIMESCALESEARLY
RESOLUTIONS

We resolved 78% of
complaints within the
agreed timescales.  This
means that of the 12
complaints we received, 2
were responded to out of
agreed timescale.

 2018-19 ANNUAL CUSTOMER FEEDBACK REPORT 14

83% of complaints
were made by the
customer receiving
the service. There
were no complaints
made through the
use of an advocate.

There are 10+ services
delivered in this
Directorate

Page 122



CUSTOMER FEEDBACK
PUBLIC HEALTH DIRECTORATE

 2018-19 ANNUAL CUSTOMER FEEDBACK REPORT 15

0-19 Public Health Nursing Team

A customer gave us some positive feedback about a member of
the 0-19 team.

Regulation Services

They told us that we made them feel like
nothing was too much trouble.  As a first
time parent they had lots of questions and
a staff member was able to answer them
all and explain everything.  They were a
truly lovely person and thank you.

We received the following positive feedback:

A customer told us that they were happy
with how quickly the regulation service
responded when they reported a problem
wasp nest. They also found the website was
easy to use when making their request, and
the staff member who attended contacted
them prior to their visit, completed the job
quickly and explained what they were
doing. They found them to be personable,
interested and efficient. The customer said
that they could not have asked for more,
and stated well done to BMBC.

Page 123



LEARNING FROM FEEDBACK

 2018-19 ANNUAL CUSTOMER FEEDBACK REPORT 16

CUSTOMER
COMMUNICATION

PROCESSES AND
PROCEDURES

WORKING TOGETHER

Learning from our customers is really important to us.  During the investigations we undertake
we look at what may have gone wrong, why, and what we can do to improve the services we
provide.  Below are a few examples of learning we have identified from our complaints
investigations and improvements we are working towards achieving.

We recognise the importance of how we communicate with our customers and we have
identified the opportunities below to learn from what our customers have experienced:
 

 Review how we respond to Highway requests for services, with a view to improving
 customer communications.
 For acknowledgement timescales to be applied to customer contacts within the               
 safer communities service.
 Provide signage and literature to customers regarding the guidelines when attending the
 public gallery.

 

 
Customers shared with us their experiences of using our services and from this we identified
opportunities where we could improve our procedures, so that our customers experienced
improved service delivery and our staff had clearer guidance. Here are a few of the
improvements we identified:
 
 To create a procedure, building upon existing guidance, for assisted and rural waste             

 collections.
 To review the escalation process in place within the contact centre to improve            
  customer satisfaction with call handling.
  Retraining to be provided to staff members on the appointment system for disabled             
  bus passes and other appointments booked via the library service.

 

It is important that we are seen by the customer as one council and therefore the services we
provide are seamless and coordinated as much as it is possible. We have therefore listened
and learnt from our customers who have told us this has not always been the case, and below
are a few of the improvements we are working to achieve:
 
 To have monthly meetings with allotment contractors and within the set agenda to               

 include customer enquiries.
Training to be given to independent living at home staff members to improve               
 communications with providers.
 Health visitors to attend training on education and health care plans and further               
 develop their understanding of special educational needs code of practice.

  

Page 124



CUSTOMER FEEDBACK

 2018-19 ANNUAL CUSTOMER FEEDBACK REPORT 17

1.  NUMBER OF COMPLIMENTS

One of the aims of the Customer Feedback, Information and Improvement Team is to try and
make the information we produce interesting and easy to read. However, we also understand it
is important to be clear and transparent. It is for this reason that we have included the key data
that has supported the compilation of this report. 

This year has seen an increase in the number of compliments we
have received compared to last year (490), with the place
directorate receiving the highest number (195).

Compliments

TOP THREE BUSINESS UNITS

Environment and
Transport  137

Customer Information and
Digital Services 

91

Customer Services
(provider services)

62

502

Page 125



2.  NUMBER OF COMPLAINTS AND RESOLUTION METHOD

 2018-19 ANNUAL CUSTOMER FEEDBACK REPORT 18

There has been a slight increase in the number of complaints we received this
year compared to last year's figure (317).  There have also been more
complaints that have required formal investigation (145).
 
 
  

 
This year nine of our
complaints were
reviewed at stage 2 of
the procedures when
the customer told us
they were unhappy
with their response. 
Of these, two were
investigated at the
second stage of the
children's social care
procedures.  
 
When we reviewed
 what we had said to
the customer in our
response we agreed
that we had not quite
got our response right
the first time and
agreed to take further
action to address the
complaint.

We have managed to achieve early resolutions on 50% of complaints.
 

Whilst only nine complaints were  reviewed we understand that it is not to say that the rest of our
customers were always happy after their investigation. However, when they let us know this we
worked with them to establish why and to resolve their outstanding concerns through clarification
and explanation of our original response to their complaint.  
 
No complaints progressed to stage 3 of the children's social care complaints procedure.

Page 126



 2018-19 ANNUAL CUSTOMER FEEDBACK REPORT 19

3.  TYPE OF COMPLAINT

We acknowledge that we have either upheld or partially upheld most of the complaints we have
received, therefore we are agreeing that we need to improve and learn from what our customers
are telling us. In doing this we have provided an explanation to the customer as a resolution to
their complaint to explain what went wrong and what we will do to address this.

Most of our complaints were  about the way we are delivering our services
and how we are communicating with our customers.   This trend is to be
expected as these are the main interactions the Council has with members of
the public. 

Please note that 13 complaints were withdrawn and 18 still required a response at the time of writing.

Page 127



 2018-19 ANNUAL CUSTOMER FEEDBACK REPORT 20

4. TIMESCALES

We resolved 79% of our complaints within timescales.  However, this
means that we failed to meet agreed timescales on 21% of occasions, the
same number that we reported last year.  We will continue to work to
improve meeting the timescales we agree with our customers as we
know that this is important. However, sometimes due to availability,
work pressures and the complexity of some complaints these timescales
are exceeded. We always aim to keep the customer up  to date when
there will be a delay with their complaint investigation. 
 
It is important to us that we ensure that we keep customers informed
and updated on what happens when they contact the Customer
Feedback, within 3 working days.  59% of the customer complaints we
received were acknowledged within the 3 working day timescale. During
2018-19 we will continue to monitor our acknowledgement rate to
customers, and hope to improve this area of performance through the
implementation of a number of changes within service delivery.

Page 128



 2018-19 ANNUAL CUSTOMER FEEDBACK REPORT 21

This year we have seen a slight decrease in the number of Local Government
and Social  Care Ombudsman and Housing Service Ombudsman contacts than
last year (41). We have received two decisions where fault has been found and
action has been recommended to address.  A letter of apology to the customer
was written in both instances.

5.  OMBUDSMAN

Page 129



 2018-19 ANNUAL CUSTOMER FEEDBACK REPORT 22

6.  WHO, HOW, WHERE?

The upward trend has continued from last
year and we are now seeing over 90% of
complaints made by the person who is
receiving the service.  Again there are very
few people who have used an advocate this
year.  However, we always advise customers
whose complaints are being formally
investigated to contact us if they would like
to know what support is available when
making a complaint.

91% 8% 1%

38%

34%

14%

It's great to report that
this year we have seen
an 10 per cent increase
in the number of
complaints made online,
and the number made by
telephone has reduced
from 52% to 38%.  As a
council we are keen to
encourage and support
our customers to use our
online services.

The trend continues that
most of the customers who
made a complaint raised
their concerns directly with
the Customer Feedback,
Information and
Improvement Team.  This
shows that the team are
continuing to be accessible
to customers and  that they
are aware of their rights to
complain. This is great news
and we welcome all
feedback from our
customers.

62%

14%

10%

Page 130



CONTACT US

If you need help understanding this document: 
 

Contact: : Customer Feedback, Information and
Improvement team

 
Email: customerfeedback@barnsley.gov.uk 

 Westgate Plaza One, Westgate, Barnsley, S70 2DR

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank



BARNSLEY MBC AUDIT COMMITTEE – INDICATIVE WORK PROGRAMME 

Mtg. No. 3 4 5 6 7 8 1 2

Committee Work Area Contact /  
Author 11.09.19 30.10.19

(2.00 pm) 4.12.19 22.01.20 18.03.20 15.04.20 3.06.20 27.07.20

Committee Arrangements Workshop

Committee Work 
Programme

WW X X X X X X X

Minutes/Actions Arising WW X X X X X X X
Review of Terms of 
Reference and Self-
Assessment

RW/CHAIR X(?) X

Training Review and Skills 
Assessment 

RW/CHAIR X(?)

Review of Terms of 
Reference & Working 
Arrangements

ACF

Draft Audit Committee 
Annual Report

RW/CHAIR X

Audit Committee Annual 
Report

RW/CHAIR X

Internal Control and 
Governance Environment
Local Code of Corporate 
Governance

AF/RW

Annual Governance Review 
Process and Timescales 

AF/RW

Draft Annual Governance 
Statement & Action Plan

AF/RW X

Final Annual Governance 
Statement 

AF/RW X

AGS Action Plan Update AF/RW X
Corporate Whistleblowing 
Update & Annual Report

RW X

Annual Fraud Report RW X

P
age 133

Item
 9



Mtg. No. 3 4 5 6 7 8 1 2

Committee Work Area Contact /  
Author 11.09.19 30.10.19

(2.00 pm) 4.12.19 22.01.20 18.03.20 15.04.20 3.06.20 27.07.20

Corporate Fraud Team - 
Report

RW X

Corporate Risk 
Management
Risk Management Policy & 
Strategy

RW X

Risk Management Update* RW
Risk Management 
Framework

X

Annual Report RW X
Strategic Risk Register 
Review

RW

Internal Audit
Internal Audit Charter 
(Annual)

RW X

Internal Audit Plan RW X
Internal Audit Quarterly 
Report 

RW X X

Annual Review of the 
Effectiveness of Internal 
Audit

RW X

Internal Audit Annual 
Report

RW X

External Audit (Grant 
Thornton)
Annual Governance Report 
(ISA260 Report)

GT X

Audit Plan GT X
Annual Fees Letter GT X
Claims & Returns Annual 
Report

GT X

P
age 134



Mtg. No. 3 4 5 6 7 8 1 2

Committee Work Area Contact /  
Author 11.09.19 30.10.19

(2.00 pm) 4.12.19 22.01.20 18.03.20 15.04.20 3.06.20 27.07.20

External Audit Progress 
report & Technical Update

GT X X X X X X

Financial Reporting and 
Accounts
Financial Regulations - 
Update

SL X

Budget Proposal Section 25 
Report

NC X

Draft Statement of 
Accounts

NC X

Corporate Finance 
Summary

NC X X

Corporate Finance and 
Performance Management 
& Capital Programme 
Update 

NC X X X

Treasury Management 
Annual Report 

IR X

Treasury Management 
Progress Report

IR/SW X

Treasury Mgt. Policy & 
Strategy Statement 

IR X

Other Corporate Functions 
contributing to overall 
assurance
Human Resources (annual) AB/JH X
Business Improvement and 
Communication (annual)

MP X 
(moved from 

22.7.19)

X

Health & Safety Resilience 

(6 monthly report – March 
Update – September 

SD X
(moved from 

11.9.19)

X

P
age 135



Mtg. No. 3 4 5 6 7 8 1 2

Committee Work Area Contact /  
Author 11.09.19 30.10.19

(2.00 pm) 4.12.19 22.01.20 18.03.20 15.04.20 3.06.20 27.07.20

Annual)

Governance & Member 
support (annual)

MMc/WW X

Information Governance 
update

DR X X X

General Data Protection 
Regulations - Update

RW/SH X

*Members of the Senior Management Team to be invited periodically to report on any issues identified within the Strategic Risk Register

P
age 136


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	4. Corporate Financial Performance Report - Quarter Ended 30th June, 2019
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5

	5. Capital Programme Performance Report - Quarter Ended 30th June, 2019
	Appendices A & B

	6. Treasury Management Update - Quarter Ended 30th June, 2019
	7. Annual Audit Letter
	8. Business Improvement, Human Resources and Communications Progress Report
	Appendix

	9. Audit Committee Work Plan 2019/20 and 2020/21

